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1. Introduction
United Energy is required to respond to the Annual Regulatory Information Notice (RIN), issued on 6 August 2014
under Division 4 of Part 3 of the National Electricity Law (NEL).

The Notice requires United Energy to provide, prepare and maintain the information in the manner and form
specified in the Notice issued on 6 August 2014. The AER requires the information for the performance or exercise
of a function or power conferred on it under the NEL or the National Electricity Rules (NER).

The Excel templates in which the information is provided, were issued as final by the AER on the 6 August 2014.

The information contained in the templates relates to the 2015 calendar year only.

1.1  Preparation process

The following diagram provides a high-level summary of UE’s approach to preparing the 2015 Annual RIN.

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 4 Stage 5 Stage 6
Allocation of Data Internal External CEOQO, Audit Risk Submission
responsibilities for collection review audit Committee and to the AER
data collection and collation Board approval

United Energy’s response is audited in accordance with Appendix E of the Notice. The audit report and information
provided by the AER is verified by statutory declaration.
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2.1

Compliance with AER requirements

Compliance with Schedule 1 of the Notice
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The table below outlines how United Energy has complied with the requirements of Schedule 1 of the Notice.

Clause detail United Energy response

1. Regulatory accounting statements and non-financial information

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

1.1. Provide:

the Regulatory Accounting Statements, being the information required in the worksheets in the Microsoft
Excel workbook attached at Appendix B, as amended by the AER on 6 August 2014,

the non-financial information required in the worksheets in the Microsoft Excel workbook attached at
Appendix C, as amended by the AER on 6 August 2014;

a Microsoft Excel workbook that reconciles and explains all adjustments between the Statutory Accounts and
the Regulatory Accounting Statements. United Energy must separately list each adjustment to the Statutory
Accounts made to derive the Regulatory Accounting Statements, and for each adjustment made:

i. specify the amount of the adjustment

ii. describe the nature and basis of each adjustment

a Basis of Preparation demonstrating how United Energy has complied with the Notice, in accordance with
this Notice and the Principles and Requirements at Appendix A.

the Regulatory Accounting Principles and Policies and the Capitalisation
Policy for the Relevant Regulatory Year.

a statement of the policy for determining the allocation of overheads in accordance with the approved Cost
Allocation Method for the relevant Regulatory year.

Appendix A — Annual Financial RIN Excel Template

Appendix B — Annual Non-Financial RIN Excel Template

Appendix E — Reconciliation of the RIN to the Statutory Accounts

Appendix C — Basis of preparation

Appendix F2 — Cost Allocation Methodology (CAM) and Capitalisation
Policy

In accordance with the CAM
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Clause detail United Energy response

1.2

a)

b)

13

a)

b)

14

a)
b)

d)

e)

15

1.6

Identify all changes between the Regulatory Accounting Principles and Policies provided in the response to Not applicable — no differences
paragraphs 1.1(e). For each change identified:

explain the nature of and the reasons for the change;

quantify the effect of the change on the Regulatory Accounting Statements for the current Relevant
Regulatory Year.

Identify all changes between the statements of the policy for determining the allocation of overheads in Not applicable — no differences
accordance with the approved Cost Allocation Method provided in the response to paragraphs 1.1(f). For each
change identified:

explain the nature of and the reasons for the change;

quantify the effect of the change on the Regulatory Accounting Statements for the current Relevant
Regulatory Year.

Identify material difference (where the difference is greater than or equal to 10 per cent) between the amount Appendix G — Explanation of material differences
provided for in the 2011-15 Distribution Determination for the following items:

total actual revenue and total forecast revenue;

total actual operating expenditure and total forecast operating expenditure;

total actual maintenance expenditure and total forecast maintenance expenditure;
total actual capital expenditure and total forecast capital expenditure; and

total actual energy sales and total forecast energy sales.

Explain the reasons underlying the changes in expected operational activities or drivers that caused each Appendix G — Explanation of material differences
material difference identified in the response to paragraph 1.4.

Identify each material differences (where the difference is equal to or greater than 10 per cent) between the Appendix G — Explanation of material differences
target performance measure specified in the service target performance incentive scheme and actual
performance reported in the response paragraph 1.1(b).




&

UNITED ENERGY

Clause detail United Energy response

1.7 Explain the reasons underlying the changes that caused each material difference identified in the response to

paragraph 1.6.

1.8 Where itis not possible to provide the information in Schedule 1 as required by the Notice, provide:
a) an estimate, using best endeavours to generate the most appropriate estimate; and
b) the basis for this estimate, explaining why it is the most appropriate estimate; or

c) ifitis not possibleto provide an estimate, explain why the information as required by this notice has not been
provided, and why an estimate is not able to be derived.

2. Compliance

2.1 Explain the procedures and processes used by United Energy to ensure that the distribution services have
been classified as determined in the 2011-15 Distribution Determination.

2.2 Explain the procedures and processes used by United Energy to ensure that the negotiated service criteria, as
set out in the 2011-15 Distribution Determination, have been applied.

2.3 Describe the process United Energy has in place to identify negative change events under clause 6.6.1(f) of
the NER and the materiality threshold applied to these events.

Appendix G — Explanation of material differences

Appendix A — Annual Financial RIN Excel Template
Appendix B — Annual Non-Financial RIN Excel Template

Appendix C — Basis of preparation

UE has classified distribution services in accordance with the CAM and
Capitalisation Policy approved by the AER in line with the 2011-15
Distribution Determination.

Negotiated service criteria have been applied in accordance with the
CAM and Capitalisation Policy approved by the AER in line with the
2011-15 Distribution Determination.

Each business area holds responsibility for identifying negative change
events under clause 6.6.1(f) of the NER. The respective General
Manager formally attests to compliance with 6.6.1 (f) of the NER during
the RIN reporting period.

The materiality threshold applied is 1 per cent of 1 per cent of the
smoothed forecast revenue specified in the final decision for the
applicable regulatory year(s), pro rata for the applicable event period.
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Clause detail United Energy response

3. Cost allocation to regulated distribution business

3.1 Identify each Item in the Regulatory Accounting Statements that is:

a) not allocated on adirectly attributable basis but is allocated on a causation basis to the distribution business;
or

b) not allocated on a directly attributable basis and cannot be allocated on a causation basis to the distribution
business.

3.2 For each Item identified in the response to paragraphs 3.1(a):
a) state the amount of the item that has been allocated,;
b) explain the method of allocation and reasons for choosing that method; and

c) state the numeric amount of the allocator(s) used.

3.3 For each Item identified in the response to paragraphs 3.1(b):

a) state its amount;

b) state whether it was material;

c) explain the method of allocation and reasons for choosing that method; and

d) explain the reason(s) why it cannot be allocated on a causation basis.

4. Cost allocation to service segments

4.1 Identify each item in the Regulatory Accounting Statements that is:

a) Not allocated on a directly attributable basis but is allocated on a causation basis from the distribution
business to a service segment; and

b) Not allocated on a directly attributable basis and cannot be allocated on a causation basis from the
distribution business to a service segment.

All costs have been directly allocated. Refer to Appendix F — Cost
allocation to regulated distribution business and cost allocation to
service segments.

All costs have been directly allocated. Refer to Appendix F — Cost
allocation to regulated distribution business and cost allocation to
service segments.

All costs have been directly allocated. Refer to Appendix F — Cost
allocation to regulated distribution business and cost allocation to
service segments.

All costs have been directly allocated. Refer to Appendix F — Cost
allocation to regulated distribution business and cost allocation to
service segments.
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Clause detail United Energy response

4.2 For each Item identified in the response to paragraphs 3.1(a):
a) state the amount of the item that has been allocated;
b) explain the method of allocation and reasons for choosing that method; and

c) state the numeric amount of the allocator(s) used.

4.3 For each Item identified in the response to paragraphs 3.1(b):

a) state its amount;

b) state whether it was material;

c) explain the method of allocation and reasons for choosing that method; and

d) (explain the reason(s) why it cannot be allocated on a causation basis.

5. Related Party Transactions

5.1 Identify each Related Party to which a transaction has been conducted

5.2 Identify each transaction relating to the provision of standard control services, alternative control services,
AMI or negotiated distribution services between United Energy and a Related party, where the transaction
amount is greater than five per cent of the relevant total expenditure or revenue category. Relevant categories
are standard control revenues, alternative control revenues, AMI revenues, negotiated distribution services
revenues, standard control capex, alternative control capex, AMI capex, standard control operation
expenditure, standard control maintenance expenditure, alternative control operations expenditure, alternative
control maintenance expenditure, AMI operations expenditure, AMI maintenance expenditure and negotiated

distribution services expenditure.

5.3 For each transaction identified in the response to paragraph 5.2:
a) State the name of the Related Party;

b) Identify any other parties involved;

All costs have been directly allocated. Refer to Appendix F — Cost
allocation to regulated distribution business and cost allocation to
service segments.

All costs have been directly allocated. Refer to Appendix F — Cost
allocation to regulated distribution business and cost allocation to
service segments.

Appendix A — Tab 20

Appendix A — Annual Financial RIN Excel Template — Tab 20

Appendix A — Annual Financial RIN Excel Template — Tab 20
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Clause detail United Energy response

c) Explain the nature and purpose of the transaction, including the good(s) or service(s) provided by the Related
Party;

d) State the actual costs incurred by the Related Party in providing good(s) or service(s), not including any profit
margin or management fee incurred by United Energy;

e) Explain how the actual costs of the good(s) or service(s) incurred was determined;

f)  Explain how the actual costs of the good(s) or service(s) incurred is reflected in the Regulatory Accounting
Statements;

g) Identify the Asset Category, Maintenance Cost category or Operating cost category to which the actual costs)
is allocated; and

h) Explain the basis upon which the actual costs of the good(s) or service(s) were allocated, as identified in the
response to paragraph (f), and state the quantum of any allocator applied.

6. Capitalisation policy

6.1 Identify all changes between the Capitalisation Policies provided in the response to paragraph 1.1 (e). Not applicable — No changes to the capitalisation policy
6.2 For each change identified in the response to paragraph 6.1:

a) state, if any, the financial impact of the change;

b) state the reasons for the change;

c) explain the effect of the change, if any, on the actual operating expenditure, actual maintenance
expenditure and actual capital expenditure incurred, in comparison to the forecast operating expenditure,
forecast maintenance expenditure and forecast capital expenditure determined in the 2011-15 Distribution
Determination during the Relevant Regulatory year.

7. Demand Management Incentive Allowance

7.1 Identify each demand management project or program for which United Energy seeks approval. Appendix H — Demand Management Incentive Scheme Report — 2015

7.2 For each demand management project or program identified in the response to paragraph 7.1: Appendix H — Demand Management Incentive Scheme Report — 2015

a) explain:
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Clause detail United Energy response

i. how it complies with the Demand Management Incentive Allowance criteria set out at
section 3.1.3 of the demand management incentive scheme;

ii. its nature and scope;

iii. its aims and expectations;

iv. the process by which it was selected, including its business case and consideration of any alternatives;
v. how it wasl/is to be implemented,;

vi. its implementation costs; and

vii. any identifiable benefits that have arisen from it, including any off peak or peak demand reductions

b) confirm that its associated costs are not: Appendix H — Demand Management Incentive Scheme Report — 2015
i. recoverable under any other jurisdictional incentive scheme;
ii. recoverable under any other Commonwealth or State Government scheme

iii. included in the forecast capital or operating expenditure approved in the 2011-15 Distribution
Determination or recoverable under any other incentive scheme in that determination; and

c) explain any assumptions and/or estimates used in the calculation of forgone revenue, demonstrating the Appendix H— Demand Management Incentive Scheme Report — 2015
reasonableness of those assumptions and/or estimates in calculating forgone revenue, including the reasons
for United Energy’s decision to adjust or not to adjust for other factors and the basis for any such
adjustments.

7.3 State the total amount of the Demand Management Incentive Allowance spent in the Relevant Regulatory Year, Appendix H— Demand Management Incentive Scheme Report — 2015
and explain how it was calculated.

8. Advanced Metering Infrastructure

1) Delivering Alternative Control Services at lower cost to

8.1 Describe each efficiency improvement made to United Energy’s operations directly or indirectly arising from ! |
consumers and in a more timely manner:

or associated with the roll out of the Advanced Metering Infrastructure.
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Clause detail United Energy response

8.2 For each efficiency improvement identified in the response to paragraph 8.1: *

a) Explain how it arises from or is associated with the roll out of the Advanced Metering Infrastructure; and

b) If quantifiable, state its amount.

2)

More than 50,000 connections and disconnections were
completed remotely in 2015 using the contactor in the AMI
meter. Charges paid by customers for these services have
been reduced by more than $30 for each transaction,
delivering aggregate savings to customers to date of over
$1.5 million for this activity alone;

More than 2,500 unnecessary truck visits to customers’
premises have been avoided in 2015 by utilising the AMI
meter to remotely confirm supply status using the ping
functionality. The savings to these customers range from $51
to $115 per truck visit — where the higher amount applies to
truck visits outside normal business hours;

More than 5,000 remote meter reconfigurations in 2015
facilitated data collection of net solar energy exported to our
network. Avoided site visits to undertake a meter exchange
to a bi-directional meter resulted in customer savings of over
$80 for each transaction;

More than 5,0 special meter reads were undertaken remotely
in 2015 resulting in customer savings of more than $10 per
transaction; and

The collection of data remotely allows customers to be billed
on actual data and avoids estimated bills and associated
customer enquiries and complaints.

Managing the network smarter and safer:

Neutral integrity testing can be undertaken largely remotely
avoiding site visits and manual testing at around 65,000
premises pa and saving $26m pa (included on our EDPR
submission)

Enhanced monitoring of supply to life support customers can
be undertaken during storm events using a on demand
supply status check via a regular ping to the AMI meter;
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Clause detail United Energy response

. Faults can be identified remotely, to avoid wasted truck visits
and restore supply more quickly;

. Improved voltage data (use of severe over or under voltage
data) provides us with a better understanding of equipment
failure risks and assessment of damage claims (potential
fatalities have bend averted);

. Improved power quality data and Engineering Analytics to
assess transformer peak load and the likely requirement for
transformer upgrades facilitates more efficient use of existing
capacity and more efficient investment;

. Calculation of dynamic cyclic ratings for distribution
transformers enables us to achieve greater use of the spare
capacity in the network;

. Rebalancing of over loaded phases enables us to improve
network utilisation on peak demand days, and reduce the
need for network augmentation;

e  Use of end of day interval data to enhance load switching
enables us to better manage expected high demand days in
high network risk areas; and

. Improved identification of theft and stolen meters — estimated
at $1m pa together with criminal charges being laid .

. Targeted asset replacement based on condition rather than
bulk replacements

. Reduced risks of a fire start and electrical shocks to
customers

3) Customers have better access to energy consumption data
and a broader range of pricing options:

. Over 7% of our residential customers have made use of
interval data and have taken up flexible network tariffs;
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Clause detail United Energy response

. Access to new demand tariff was made available in 2015

. More than 18,000 customers are accessing detailed
information on their electricity consumption via our web portal;
and more recently third party energy agents are seeking
access to customer data (with their consent) in order to
provide customers with improved pricing options;

. More than 3,000 customers have taken up the use of In
Home Displays to better understand their energy usage and
appliance consumption;

. UE is also undertaking a number of trials — Summer Demand,
Supply Capacity Limiting and Battery Storage to assist with
peak demand reduction in constrained areas of the network.

9. Safety and bushfire related expenditure

9.1 For each safety and bushfire related expenditure, specify and define the relevant asset category to which it Appendix A — Annual Financial RIN Excel Template — Tab 22
relates.

9.2 Identify each material (greater than or equal to 10%) difference, in relation to the asset categories specified in  Appendix A — Annual Financial RIN Excel Template — Tab 22
the response to paragraph 9.1, between:

a) actual and forecast volumes;
b) actual and forecast expenditure; and

c) actual and forecast unit costs.

9.3 Provide reasons for each material (greater than or equal to 10%) difference identified in the response to Appendix A — Annual Financial RIN Excel Template — Tab 22
paragraph 9.2.
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Clause detail United Energy response

9.4 Provide reasons for any difference between the actual volumes submitted as part of the Electrical Safety
Management Scheme to Energy Safe Victoria and that in the Regulatory Accounting Statements.

10. Sponsorship and marketing

10.1 Provide the following information for all advertising/marketing expenditure allocated to the distribution
business:

a)

For expenditure greater than five per cent of the advertising / marketing expenditure allocated to the
distribution business:

Beneficiary
Amount
Purpose

Proportion of the total advertising / marketing expenditure allocated to the distribution business related
to:

1) safety or safety awareness

2) Managing consumer demand

3) Promoting distribution business brand
4) Other

Description of the activities undertaken by the beneficiary, supported by the expenditure.

For all advertising / marketing expenditure allocated to the distribution business not reported under
10.1(a), provide:

list of beneficiaries

total amount

proportion of the expenditure related to:
1) safety or safety awareness

2) Managing consumer demand

Appendix A — Annual Financial RIN Excel Template — Tab 22

Not applicable — there were no expenditure amounts greater than five
per cent of the advertising / marketing expenditure allocated to the
distribution business.

The advertising and marketing expenditure reported represents the
proportion of staff costs incurred to develop communications relating to
safety and safety awareness for project activities.
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Clause detail United Energy response

3) Promoting distribution business brand

4) Other

10.2 For each expenditure item identified in response to paragraph 10.1(a), identify the expenditure item in the Not applicable
statutory accounts from which it is derived.

11. Charts

11.1 Provide a chart that sets out: Appendix K — Charts
a) the group corporate structure of which United Energy is a part; and

b) the organisational structure of United Energy.
12. Audit Reports

12.1 Provide a Regulatory Audit Report in the form of: Appendix J — Audit reports
c) aSpecial Purpose Financial Report in accordance with the requirements set out at Appendix E; and

d) an Audit Report (for non-financial information) in accordance with the requirements set out at Appendix E.

12.2 Provide all reports from the Auditor to United Energy’s management regarding the audit review and / or Appendix J — Audit reports
auditors’ opinions or assessment.

13. Confidential information

13.11f United Energy makes a claim for confidentiality over any information provided in accordance with this Appendix L — Confidentiality template
Notice, United Energy must:

a) comply with the requirements of AER’s Confidentiality Guideline, as if it extended and applied to
responses in this Notice;




&

UNITED ENERGY

Clause detail United Energy response

b) provide, in addition to a confidential version of any information, a version of the information that may be
published by the AER.

13.2 Confirm in writing that United Energy consents to the AER publically disclosing (including on the AER Refer to Annual RIN submission transmittal email
website) all information provided in accordance with this Notice, except the confidential version of information the
subject of a confidentiality claim under paragraph 13.1.

2.2  Compliance with Schedule 2 of the Notice

United Energy confirms that it prepares and maintains all information in accordance with Schedule 2 of the Notice.
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2.3  Compliance with the appendices of the Notice

The table below outlines how United Energy has complied with the requirements of Schedule 1 of the Notice.

Appendix Details United Energy response

A Principles and requirements All information is in accordance with the principles and requirements outlined in Appendix A.

I T 1
B Regulatory accounting statement Appendix A — Annual Financial RIN Excel Template

templates

I T 1
(03 Non-financial information templates Appendix B — Annual Non-Financial RIN Excel Template

I T 1
D Statutory declaration Appendix | — Statutory declaration

I T 1
E Audits Appendix J — Audit reports

I T 1
F Activity areas — Cost categories for Appendix C — Basis of preparation — Operating expenditure

operating expenditure

I T 1
G Asset and capital and maintenance N/A

expenditure categories

H Statement of reasons N/A




Appendix A: Annual Financial RIN Excel ﬂ//
Te m p | at e UNITED ENERGY

Note: Refer attached spreadsheet

Appendix A - Annual Financial RIN Excel Template - Version 1.0



Appendix B: Annual Non-Financial RIN Excel ﬂ//
Te m p | at e UNITED ENERGY

Note: Refer attached spreadsheet

Appendix B - Annual Non-Financial RIN Excel Template - Version 1.0



Appendix C: Basis of preparation — ﬂj
Annual RIN 2015 UNITED ENERGY

1. Overview

United Energy is required to prepare a Basis of Preparation document (this document) which must, for all
information:

a) demonstrate how the information provided is consistent with the requirements of the Regulatory Information
Notice (RIN);

b) explain the source from which United Energy obtained the information provided;

c) explain the methodology United Energy applied to provide the required information, including any assumptions
United Energy made;

d) explain, in circumstances where United Energy cannot provide information:
1) why it was not possible for United Energy to provide the information required;
2) what steps United Energy is taking to ensure it can provide the information in the future;

3) if an estimate has been provided, the basis of the estimate, including the approach used, assumptions
made and reasons why the estimate is United Energy’s best estimate.

In accordance with the requirements above, this appendix provides details to support the information provided by
United Energy in the Microsoft Excel workbooks titled ‘United Energy 2015 - Annual RIN - Financial Information’
and ‘United Energy 2015 - Annual RIN — Non-Financial Information’.

To satisfy the requirements of the Notice, the following information has been provided for each RIN table:

assessment of data quality;

data source;

classification as actual or estimated information, including appropriate justification if estimated;
methodology and assumptions adopted to prepare the information; and

any additional comments to assist users of the information to understand the basis of preparation.

The table below outlines the classifications used to assess data quality.

Table 1: Data quality and classifications

Colour coding Availability of data from | Assumptions / methodology
NSP's Primary System

Available and verifiable Simple — no additional work or minor work around (e.g. data sourced from a
secondary system)

| |
Light green Available with some gaps | Moderate — estimate based on statistically significant sample size

\ | | |
Yellow Little or no data available = Complex — estimate based on formula, standard parameters or other
source
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Colour coding Availability of data from | Assumptions / methodology

NSP's Primary System

Pink Little or no data available  Subjective — based on significant estimates, judgements and assumptions

|
N/A Not applicable to relevant NSP

The table below provides the AER definitions for actual and estimated information.

Table 2: Definitions — ‘Actual and ‘estimated’

Term Table Heading

Actual information Information presented in response to the Notice whose presentation is Materially dependent on
information recorded in United Energy's historical accounting records or other records used in the
normal course of business, and whose presentation for the purposes of the Notice is not contingent on
judgments and assumptions for which there are valid alternatives, which could lead to a Materially
different presentation in the response to the Notice.

'‘Accounting records' include trial balances, the general ledger, subsidiary accounting ledgers, journal
entries and documentation to support journal entries. Actual financial information may include
accounting estimates, such as accruals and provisions, and any adjustments made to the accounting
records to populate United Energy's regulatory accounts and responses to the Notice. 'Records used in
the normal course of business', for the purposes of non-financial information, includes asset registers,
geographical information systems, outage analysis systems, and so on.

[ [ |

Estimated information Information presented in response to the Notice whose presentation is not Materially dependent on
information recorded in United Energy’s historical accounting records or other records used in the
normal course of business, and whose presentation for the purposes of the Notice is contingent on
judgments and assumptions for which there are valid alternatives, which could lead to a Materially
different presentation in the response to the Notice.

The estimated information is produced using the methodology detailed below. This methodology represents United
Energy's best estimate as applied over prior reporting periods and sourced from United Energy's information
systems, audited information (where applicable), internal management reports and subject matter expert
professional judgement based on the nature of United Energy's operations. United Energy is unable to provide
information with greater accuracy than that provided in its response.

Where estimates have been provided, United Energy is currently considering the feasibility of improvement
opportunities to allow actual information to be provided in the future.
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The following tables outline the basis of preparation of the information provided in the Microsoft Excel Workbook titled ‘United Energy 2015 - Annual RIN —Financial

Information’.

Table 3: Annual Financial RIN details

Tab | Table Name | Table | Table Title Data Fin / Data source Actual / Justification (if Methodology (Actual & Assumptions (Actual & Additional Comments
quality | Non-fin Estimate | estimated) Estimated) Estimated)
1a |Income - - F SAP Actual / As per relevant Consolidation of data from tabs |- -
Estimate | Annual Financial contained within the Annual
RIN tabs. Financial RIN.
2 Demand 1 Standard F Based on Actual Sum up annual revenue grouped
and Control reported by each tariff, with adjustments
Revenue Services monthly energy. for Revenue from SAP Financial
SAP Billing Accounts.
Revenue - System extracts
Current Year via SAP HANA.
Additional non
DUOS tariff
Revenue has
been sourced
from SAP
Financial
Accounts
NF SAP Billing Actual Based on reported monthly
System via SAP energy.
HANA Sum annual energy (GWh)
components grouped by each
tariff.
2 Standard F/NF |Annual RIN Actual As per Annual RIN reported
Control 2014 revenue for 2014.
Revenue -
Prior Year
3 AMI - Current F/NF |SAP Financial |Actual Sum transactions based on SAP
Year accounts account extract for the following;

- Meter data services
- Meter Provision Charges
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Tab | Table Name | Table | Table Title Data
quality

Fin/
Non-fin

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if
estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

&

UNITED ENERGY

Assumptions (Actual & Additional Comments
Estimated)

4 AMI - Prior
Year
5 Public Lighting

- Current Year

Individual breakdown to the tariff
categories has been provided by
the business.

NF SAP Billing Actual Sum transactions based on SAP
System account extract for the following;
- Meter data services
- Meter Provision Charges
Individual breakdown to the tariff
categories has been provided by
the Finance MRO from the SAP
billing systems and is based on
categories used in regulatory
submissions.
F Annual RIN Actual As per Annual RIN reported AMI
2014 revenue for 2014.
NF Annual RIN Actual As per Annual RIN reported AMI
2014 meter count for 2014.
F SAP Financial | Actual Sum transactions based on SAP
accounts and account extract for public lighting
GIS Report O&M.
Individual breakdown into tariff
category has been provided in the
GIS monthly report and is based
on categories used in regulatory
submissions.
NF GIS Report Sum transactions based on SAP

account extract for public lighting
O&M

Individual breakdown into tariff
category has been provided in the
GIS monthly report as the number
of MRUs per the tariff category
and is based on categories used
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Tab

Table Name

Table

Table Title

Public Lighting
— Prior Year

Total Annual
Retailer
Charges

3a

Capex (T) -
Total

Standard
Control Service

Material
Difference
Explanation

Data
quality

Fin/
Non-fin

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if
estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

in regulatory submissions.

Assumptions (Actual &
Estimated)

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

F/NF |Annual RIN Actual As per Annual RIN 2014.
2014
F SAP Financial | Actual The total TARC has been calculated as per the table below.
Accounts and . . TARC
. . Tariff categories
information from 9 Revenue
Table 1, 3,5 Distribution * 401,515.73
Rebates -108.00
F' (Fire Factor) 35.42
PFIT/TFIT 18,508.58
AMI 105,382.34
TUOS/Grid Fees 115,656.49
Public Lighting (OMR) 7,655.42
Eroflt from Sale pf Fixed Assets (loss on sale of 1,648.95
fixed assets not included)
Other excluded services 6,527.14
Total 656,822.09
* SAP Financial Accounts have been applied with information from Table
1, 3, 5 where applicable. Only the total number is represented under
Table 7 in the Financial RIN.

F SAP Actual Extracted a list of statutory capital | New customer connections
additions from SAP and (underground elective) adjusted
categorised it based on the SAP | for capital allocated to Other
expenditure type field. The Alternative Control
voltage has predominately been
determined from the asset class
the expenditure resides against
on the fixed asset register.

NF N/A N/A Analysed the makeup of the

forecast and actual capital and
compared the two.
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UNITED ENERGY

Tab | Table Name | Table | Table Title Data Fin / Data source Actual / Justification (if Methodology (Actual & Assumptions (Actual & Additional Comments
quality | Non-fin Estimate | estimated) Estimated) Estimated)

3 Capex by F SAP Actual Dlata generatgd as f'ollows: UE does not capitalise any
Asset Class * ‘Subtransmission’ totals as per | jyierest charges or equity raising
Tablel costs directly to capital
¢ 1HV and 'LV totals as per Table | gxnenditure so the total for this

category is zero
'SCADA/Network Control' total

as per Table 1

'Non network - IT' total as per

Table 1

‘Non network - other' total as per

Table 1

¢ As there is no number reported

in 'Metering - Non AMI' total as

per Table 1this is zero

'AMI' total as per Table 4

'Public Lighting - Total Additions'

total as per Table 4

'Other Alternative Control - Total

Additions' total as per Table 4

'Negotiated Services' total on

Table 4 of this schedule

o Unregulated' total as per Table
4

4 Other Capex F SAP Actual Extracted a list of statutory capital
additions from SAP and
categorised based on the SAP
expenditure type field.

For fields relating to Other - fee
based services,

Other - quoted services,
Negotiated services and
Unregulated SAP data pertaining
to ACS costs and revenue billed,
including external service
providers' unit costs per invoices
applied against ACS service
orders was used.

Service provider
costs

5 Customer F SAP Actual Data download from the United
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Tab

Table Name

Table

Fin/
Non-fin

Table Title Data

quality

Contributions
by Asset Class

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if
estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

Energy general ledger includes
four general ledger accounts:
60400 (Customer Contributions —
General), 60401 (Customer
Contributions - P/L), 60402
(Customer contributions - In Kind)
and 60403 (Customer
Contributions — Quoted). The
data was split by ‘Material type’
enabling the revenue to be
allocated to the appropriate
Customer Contribution by Asset
Class.

Assumptions (Actual &
Estimated)

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

Disposals by F
asset class

3b

Capex (M) -
Total
Margins

SAP Fixed
Asset retirement
report

Actual

Extracted a list of statutory
retirements with proceeds and
categorised it based on the SAP
asset class field.

SCADA disposals relate to funds
received from a legal dispute
which occurred in CY2015.

None

Proceeds from the
sale of assets has
been reported

Standard F
Control Service

SAP

Actual /
Estimate

Reinforcement

Extracted a list of related parties’
statutory capital additions from
SAP and determined the value of
capital related to margin and
categorised it based on the SAP
expenditure type field.

New customer connection

As above

Reliability and quality
maintained

Extracted a list of statutory capital
additions from SAP and
categorised based on the SAP
expenditure type field.

Reinforcement

The voltage split has been
determined by using the actual
total, allocated on the basis of the
voltage split reported on schedule
3a. Capex (T).

New customer connection
Assumed that none of the capital
without a project number
allocated to Other Alternative
Control had a related party
margin.

Reliability and quality
maintained

The voltage split has been
determined by using the actual
total, allocated on the basis of the
voltage split reported on schedule
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«

UNITED ENERGY

Tab | Table Name | Table | Table Title Data Fin / Data source Actual / Justification (if Methodology (Actual & Assumptions (Actual & Additional Comments
quality | Non-fin Estimate | estimated) Estimated) Estimated)

3a. Capex (T)

2 Material NF N/A N/A Analysed the makeup of the
forecast and actual capital and

Difference
compared the two.

Explanation

3 Capex by F SAP Actual Data generated as follows: UE does not capitalise any
Asset Class * fg?:;?:i?ﬁzﬂﬁre totals on Table | interest charges or equity raising
v Y costs directly to capital
e 'HV' and 'LV totals on Table 1 of . .
expenditure so the total for this

this schedule t .
« 'SCADA/Network Control' total on | C3t€90rY IS z€ro

Table 1 of this schedule

o As there is no figure reported in
‘Non network - IT' total on Table 1
it is zero

« 'Non network - other' total on
Table 1 of this schedule

o As there is no figure reported in
‘Metering - Non AMI' total on
Table 1 this is zero

* As there is no figure reported in
'AMI' total on Table 4 this is zero

« 'Public Lighting - Total Additions'
total on Table 4 of this schedule

o 'Other Alternative Control - Total
Additions' total on Table 4 of this
schedule

* As there is no figure reported in
the 'Negotiated Services' total on
Table 4 this is zero. As there is no
figure reported in the
'Unregulated' total on Table 4 this
is zero

4 Other Capex F SAP Actual Extracted a list of related parties’
statutory capital additions from
SAP and determined the value of
capital related to margin and

Service provider
costs
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Tab | Table Name | Table

Table Title

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if
estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

Assumptions (Actual &
Estimated)

Customer
Contributions
by Asset Class

categorised it based on the SAP
expenditure type field.

For fields relating to Other - fee
based services and

Other - quoted services SAP data
pertaining to ACS costs and
revenue billed, including external
service providers' unit costs per
invoices applied against ACS
service orders was used. There
were no quoted services provided
by related parties as such the
number is zero.

For data relating to Negotiated
services and Unregulated
extracted a list of statutory capital
additions from SAP and
categorised it based on the SAP
expenditure type field. There
were no capex costs relating to
negotiated services and
unregulated services and both
fields in the table are zero.

Disposals by
asset class

SAP

Actual

All customer contributions are
directly received by UE with no
related party margin so all actual
fields in this table are zero.

5 Capex Tax |1

Tax Standard
Lives and
Capex
Additions -
Standard

SAP

Actual

All proceeds received on the sale
of fixed assets are either directly
received by UE or received with
no related party margin so all
actual fields in this table are zero.

Proceeds from the
sale of assets have
been reported.

SAP

Actual /
Estimate

Multiple tax lives
are used in this
category,
depending on the
nature of the
capital

Capex additions are actual.

Data generated as follows:

e Schedule 3a. Capex(T), Table 1,
column 'Subtransmission' and
SAP

e Schedule 3a. Capex(T), Table 1,
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Tab | Table Name | Table | Table Title

Data
quality

Fin/
Non-fin

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if
estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

&

UNITED ENERGY

Assumptions (Actual & Additional Comments
Estimated)

Control
Services

2 Standard
Control
Services - Excl
Metering

expenditure.

columns 'HV' and 'LV' and SAP —
Distribution system assets

* As there is Neutral screen
services reported in Schedule 3a.
Capex(T), Table 3 this is zero

o As there is no Distribution
Transformer Upgrades reported in
Schedule 3a. Capex (T), Table 3,
this is zero. '

e Schedule 3a. Capex(T), Table 1,
row 'SCADA/Network Control' &
SAP

e Schedule 3a. Capex(T), Table 1,
row ‘Non network general - IT' &
SAP

e Schedule 3a. Capex(T), Table 1,
row 'Non network general - Other'
& SAP

o As there is no Equity raising costs
reported in Schedule 3a. Capex
(T), Table 3, this is zero.

o As there is no metering reported
in Schedule 3a. Capex(T), table 1,
this is zero

* As there is no public lighting
reported in Schedule 3a.
Capex(T), table 1, this is zero

The tax standard lives have been

determined as a weighted average

from an analysis of the actual tax
rates used on capital allocated to
this category and are subject to
change.

SAP

Actual /
Estimate

Multiple tax lives
are used in this
category,
depending on the
nature of the
capital
expenditure.

Capex additions are actual.
Data generated as follows:

e Schedule 3a. Capex(T), Table 1,
rows 'Demand Related'

e Schedule 3a. Capex(T), Table 1,
row 'Reliability & quality
maintained'
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Tab | Table Name | Table | Table Title Data Fin/
quality | Non-fin

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if

estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

Assumptions (Actual &
Estimated)

«

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

e Schedule 3a. Capex(T), Table 1,

row 'Environmental, safety & legal'

e Schedule 3a. Capex(T), Table 1,
row 'SCADA/Network Control'

e Schedule 3a. Capex(T), Table 1,
row ‘Non network general - IT'

e Schedule 3a. Capex(T), Table 1,
row 'Non network general - Other'

The tax rates have been

determined as a weighted average

from an analysis of the actual tax

rates used on capital allocated to

this category and are subject to

change for the following asset

classes:

* Demand related capital
expenditure

* Environment, safety and legal

o SCADA/Network control

* Non-network general assets — IT

* Non-network general assets -
other

3 Metering F

SAP

Actual /
Estimate

Multiple tax lives
are used in this
category,
depending on the
nature of the
capital
expenditure.

Capex additions are actual. The
tax standard lives has been
determined as a weighted
average from an analysis of the
actual tax rates used on capital
allocated to this category and are
subject to change.

Data generated as follows:

e Schedule 3a. Capex (T), Table 4,
row '‘Remotely read interval
meters & transformers'

e Schedule 3a. Capex (T), Table 4,
row ‘Metering data services (IT)'
e Schedule 3a. Capex (T), Table 4,

row 'AMI communication’

e Schedule 3a. Capex (T), Table 4,
row ‘Metering data services
(Other)

Tax rate is the same as that used
in table 1 of this schedule for this
category.
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Tab

6a

Table Name

Maint (T) -
Total

Table

Table Title

Maintenance
Expenditure

Explanation of
Material
Difference

Other Network
Maintenance
Costs

6b

Maint (M) -
Margins

Maintenance
Expenditure

Explanation of
Material
Difference

Other Network
Maintenance
Costs

8a

Operating
(T) - Total

Operating
Expenditure

Explanation of
Material
Difference

Operating

Data
quality

Fin/
Non-fin

Data source ‘

SAP

Actual /

Estimate | estimated)

Actual

Justification (if

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

SAP download of every WBS
element by MAT code which
determines the line classifications
and regulatory categories.

Assumptions (Actual &
Estimated)

o ACS cost components are non-
routine & condition based.

* Vegetation removal costs are the
same as vegetation removal
revenue and adjusted from
Condition based.

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

NF

N/A

N/A

Analysed the makeup of the
forecast and actual capital and
compared the two.

SAP

Actual

SAP download of every WBS
element by MAT code which
determines the line classifications
and regulatory categories

SAP

Actual

SAP extract by ZNX Limb 2 and
Limb 3 have been deemed as
related party margins.

NF

N/A

N/A

Qualitative analysis of difference
between forecast and actual
figures.

SAP

Actual

SAP extract by ZNX Limb 2 and
Limb 3 have been deemed as
related party margins.

SAP
Audited
statutory
accounts

Actual

Data generated from SAP. All
costs were directly allocated in
line with the United Energy’s
approved Cost Allocation
Methodology — refer to Appendix
F.

NF

N/A

N/A

Qualitative analysis of difference
between forecast and actual
figures.

SAP

Actual

Data generated from SAP. All
costs were directly allocated in
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&

UNITED ENERGY

Tab | Table Name | Table | Table Title Data Fin / Data source Actual / Justification (if Methodology (Actual & Assumptions (Actual & Additional Comments
quality | Non-fin Estimate | estimated) Estimated) Estimated)
costs - Other line with the United Energy’s
standard approved Cost Allocation .
. Methodology — refer to Appendix
control services E
4 Operating Not applicable.
Expenditure -
Non-Recurrent
Network
Operating
Costs
8b |Operating |1 Operating No ma_rgins for
M) - Margin Expenditure operating
M) g P expenditure.

2 Explanation of No ma_rgins for
Material operatlng
Difference expenditure.

3 Operating No margins for
costs - Other operating
standard expenditure.
control services

4 Operating No margins for
Expenditure - operating

expenditure.
Non-Recurrent
Network
Operating
Costs
13 |Avoided - 13. Avoided F SAP Financial | Actual SAP data of all payments made
Cost Cost Payments Accounts by United Energy for embedded
P generation to businesses and
ayments customers during CY2015.
14 |Alt Control |- Alt Control & F SAP Actual SAP data pertaining to ACS ACS - Emergency recoverable




Tab
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& Others

Table Name

Table Title

Others

15

EBSS

Opex for EBSS
Purposes

Explanation of
Capitalisation
Policy Changes

16

Juris
Scheme

Jurisdictional
Scheme
Payments

17

DMIS-DMIA

DMIA
Undertaken

DMIA
Expenditure in
the Previous
Reporting Year

Data
quality

Fin/
Non-fin

Data source

Service provider
costs

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if

estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

costs and revenue billed,
including external service
providers' unit costs per invoices
applied against ACS service
orders.

For ‘operating non-regulated
costs’ refer to cost allocation
methodology.

For efficient / non-energy efficient
luminaries, transaction codes
(MAT codes) attached to each
project code (WBS codes)
element determines public
lighting costs, which are prorated
to efficient or non-energy
efficient on the revenue split
basis.

Assumptions (Actual &
Estimated)

works (recoverable); After hours
truck by appointment (HVLV
shutdown services quoted);
Covering of low voltage mains for
safety reasons (quoted);
assumed costs to be the same as
revenue.

Other - Vegetation removal costs
assumed to be the same as
vegetation removal revenue
(recoverable).

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

F SAP Actual Data extracted from SAP as per
AER definitions.
No Capitalisation in
CY2015
F SAP Actual Data extracted from SAP as per
AER definitions.
F SAP Actual Data extracted from SAP based on
WBS transaction report as per AER
definitions.
F Annual RIN Actual As per 2014 Annual RIN.
2014
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UNITED ENERGY

Tab | Table Name | Table | Table Title Data Fin / Data source Actual / Justification (if Methodology (Actual & Assumptions (Actual & Additional Comments
quality | Non-fin Estimate | estimated) Estimated) Estimated)

3 Foregone
Revenue in the
Regulatory
Reporting Year

18 | Self All - UE does not self-

Insurance insure.

19 [CHAP 1 The Aggregate
Effect of the
Change in
Accounting
Policy on the
Balance Sheet
and Income
Statements

2 Description and
Reason for the
Change in
Accounting
Policy

20 |Related 1 Payments F SAP Actual Zinfra — Contract charges are
Party made by Billing verified through billing

United Energy documents docur_nents. Actual costs exclude

margins.

to Related UEM — Total billing within the
Party under year.
CONTROL or UEDH - Total management fee
INFLUENCING for the year based on DUET

. calculations.
Ownership

2 Composition of
Margins in
Relation to
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&

UNITED ENERGY

Table 1

21

AMI

Standard
Control Asset
Base -
Metering

2a

Number of
meters
installed

2b

Cumulative
number of
meters

AMI meter

o 0
0dolog A al &

Aaditiona 0 e

SAP

Actual

Data extracted from SAP as per
AER definitions.

Cis+
SAP

Actual and
estimate

Adds & Alts
service orders has
no clear detail of
meter type. So we
require estimation
of meter types.
This is only a small
portion of installed
volumes.

Accumulation and MRIM

meters

Based on CIS+ data

AMI meters

Total 2015 installs counted as sum of

below:

¢ ZMRO, ZRNC Service orders in
SAP

e Net AMI transferred to SAP (this is
a negative number as some of
these meters counted in ZMRO
service are part of Type 6to 5
conversion)

e ZRAA service orders where meter
replacements were done. (CIS
Adds & Alts service orders
ignored as majority of orders done
in SAP for 2015). Meter
classification has been based on
the same ratio as installed
volumes obtained from the SAP-
1Q09 report.

As ZRAA service orders do not
completely describe the type of
meter, the total AMI numbers
(129,190) have had their meter
types based on the Installed
report.

NF

Cis+
SAP

Actual

Accumulation and MRIM
meters

Based on CIS+ and SAP data.
Migration occurred during from
CIS+ and SAP.

AMI meters

Based on SAP installed meter
report

NF

SAP

Actual /

The MRO program

Abolishment’s

AMI meter for AMI meter
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Tab

Table Name

Table

Fin/
Non-fin

Table Title Data

quality

reconciliation

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Estimate

Justification (if
estimated)

is in completion
stage. Issues have
emerged in the
transition from CIS
to SAP which has
meant that
estimates are
required

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

Calculated as difference between
closing number of meters and
sum of opening number of meters
and installs less AMI meter for
AMI meter replacements.

AMI meter for AMI
replacements

Based on SAP reports

Assumptions (Actual &
Estimated)

replacements' number is tracked
in SAP for AMI installations. CIS+
replacements are estimated as
zero as they are not tracked
separately for meter
replacements.

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

Number of NF
meter read
guantity — end

of year

22

Safety and
Bushfire

CIS+
SAP

Actual

Accumulation and MRIM
meters

Based on CIS+ and SAP data.
Migration occurred during from
CIS+ and SAP.

AMI meters

Based on SAP installed meter
report

Asset groups: NF

Definitions,
Cost-Allocation
Basis and
Methodology

Spreadsheet of
the agreed
program with
ESV.

Actual

This table is completed based on
the agreed programs with Energy
Safe Victoria (ESV). Country Fire
Authority (CFA) determined the
demarcation of bushfire risk areas
and the corresponding bushfire
risk rating. Programs that
pertained to UE’s assets located
in bushfire risk areas were
categorised as bushfire related.
All other programs were ESMS,
ESL or non-ESL related. The
allocation of cost to asset group
was based on the definition in the
Electricity Distribution Price
Review (EDPR) which is
requested by the Regulatory
Team.

Bushfire NF

Related

ESV Annual
Safety report
EDPR 2011-

Actual

The safety and bushfire related
programs, actual units and
reasons for variance are provided

Categorisation of
each program
(completed in Table
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UNITED ENERGY

Tab | Table Name | Table | Table Title Data Fin / Data source Actual / Justification (if Methodology (Actual & Assumptions (Actual & Additional Comments
quality | Non-fin Estimate | estimated) Estimated) Estimated)

Expenditure
(Volumes)

Safety Related

Other - ESL,

Non ESL and

ESMS
(Volumes)

Bushfire
Related

Expenditure ($

Nominal -
Excluding
Margins and
Overheads)

2015 in the ESV Annual Safety Report. 1) shall be used to
submission Forecast volumes changes may determine whether
have occurred post submission to data for each program
ESV. will be entered into
AER expected volumes were Table 2; only
obtained from the 2011-2015 programs categorised
EDPR submission. as ‘Bushfire’ shall
have data entered in
Table 2. All other
lines shall be entered
as zero or N/A.
ESV Annual Actual The safety and bushfire related Categorisation of
Safety report programs, actual units and each program
EDPR 2011- reasons for variance are provided (completed in Table
2015 in the ESV Annual Safety Report. 1) shall be used to
submission Forecast volume changes may determine whether
have occurred post submission to data for each program
ESV. will be entered into
AER expected volumes were Table 2; only
obtained from the 2011-2015 programs categorised
EDPR submission. as ‘ESL’, ‘ESMS’ or
‘Non-ESL’ shall have
data entered in Table
3. All other lines shall
be entered as zero or
N/A.
SAP Actual AER expected expenditure for Categorisation of
EDPR 2011- each program was obtained from each program
2015 UE General Manager of Asset (completed in Table
Submission Management, based on the 1) shall be used to

AER’s final determination for
years 2011 — 2015.

Actual CY2015 expenditure has
been recorded in SAP and has
been extracted, filtered and
sorted using MAT codes into
categories required by the RIN.

determine whether
data for each program
will be entered into
Table 2; only
programs categorised
as ‘Bushfire’ shall
have data entered in
Table 2. All other




Table Title

Safety Related
Other - ESL,
Non ESL and
ESMS ($
Nominal -
Excluding
Margins and
Overheads)

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if

Appendix C: Basis of preparation — Annual RIN 2015

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

Assumptions (Actual &
Estimated)

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

lines shall be entered
as zero or N/A.

Bushfire
Related
Expenditure ($

SAP Actual AER expected expenditure for
EDPR 2011- each program was obtained from
2015 UE General Manager of Asset
Submission Management, based on the
AER’s final determination for
years 2011 — 2015.
Actual CY2015 expenditure has
been recorded in SAP and has
been extracted, filtered and
sorted using MAT codes into
categories required by the RIN.
Due to RIN categories being a
component of particular MAT
code, the following allocations
have been made to the following
MAT code categories
- HV Xarms replacement - 12% Categorisation of
Installation of 'P' Type Brackets each program
and 88% Replacement of (completed in Table
crossarms - based on age and 1) shall be used to
condition determine whether
- Pole Replacement- Low Voltage data for each program
- 5% ldentification and removal of will be entered into
public lighting switch wire and Table 2; only
95% Replacement of poles - programs categorised
based on age and condition as ‘ESL’, ‘ESMS’ or
- LV Xarms replacement - 5% ‘Non-ESL’ shall have
Identification and removal of data entered in Table
public lighting switch wire and 3. All other lines shall
95% Replacement of crossarms - be entered as zero or
based on age and condition N/A.
SAP Actual Expenditure on Bushfire Related Categorisation of
EDPR 2011- programs has been recorded in each program
2015 SAP and has been extracted,

(completed in Table
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UNITED ENERGY

Tab | Table Name | Table | Table Title Data Fin / Data source Actual / Justification (if Methodology (Actual & Assumptions (Actual & Additional Comments
quality | Non-fin Estimate | estimated) Estimated) Estimated)

Nominal - Submission filtered and sorted using MAT 1) shall be used to

Margins and codes into categories required by determine whether

Overheads) the RIN. The SAP data records data for each program
actual margins and overheads. will be entered into

Table 2; only
No expected expenditure was programs categorised
provided in 2010 as part of the as ‘Bushfire’ shall
2011-2015 EDPR submission and have data entered in
hence, this column shall be Table 2. All other
entered as zero. lines shall be entered
as zero or N/A.
7 Safety Related NF SAP Actual Expenditure on Safety Related

Other - ESL, EDPR 2011- programs has been recorded in

Non ESL and 2015 SAP and has been extracted,

ESMS ($ Submission filtered and sorted using MAT

Nominal - codes into categories required by

Margins and the RIN. The SAP data records

Overheads) actual margins and overheads.

No expected expenditure was
provided in 2010 as part of the
2011-2015 EDPR submission and
hence, this column shall be
entered as zero.

Categorisation of

Due to RIN categories being a each program
component of particular MAT (completed in Table
code, the following allocations 1) shall be used to
have been made to the following determine whether
MAT code categories data for each program
- HV Xarms replacement - 12% will be entered into
Installation of 'P' Type Brackets Table 2; only

and 88% Replacement of programs categorised
crossarms - based on age and as ‘ESL’, ‘ESMS’ or
condition ‘Non-ESL’ shall have
- Pole Replacement- Low Voltage data entered in Table
- 5% ldentification and removal of 3. All other lines shall
public lighting switch wire and be entered as zero or

95% Replacement of poles - N/A.
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Tab | Table Name | Table | Table Title Data Fin/
Non-fin

quality

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if
estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

Assumptions (Actual &
Estimated)

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

based on age and condition

- LV Xarms replacement - 5%
Identification and removal of
public lighting switch wire and
95% Replacement of crossarms -
based on age and condition

the RIN. Actual unit costs are
calculated as the total
expenditure for each program in
CY2015 and divided by the total
volumes.

Expected unit costs are
calculated as the net expenditure
for each program in CY2015 and
divided by the expected total
volumes

) Bushfire F SAP Actual Expenditure on Bushfire Related

Related EDPR 2011- programs has been recorded in

Expenditure ($ 2015 SAP and has been extracted, Categorisation of

unit cost) Submission filtered and sorted using MAT each program
codes into categories required by (completed in Table
the RIN. Actual unit costs are 1) shall be used to
calculated as the total determine whether
expenditure for each program in data for each program
CY2015 and divided by the total will be entered into
volumes. Table 2; only

programs categorised
Expected unit costs are as ‘Bushfire’ shall
calculated as the net expenditure have data entered in
for each program in CY2015 and Table 2. All other
divided by the expected total lines shall be entered
volumes as zero or N/A.
9 Safety Related NF SAP Actual Expenditure on Bushfire Related

Other - ESL, EDPR 2011- programs has been recorded in Categorisation of

Non ESL and 2015 SAP and has been extracted, each program

ESMS ($ unit Submission filtered and sorted using MAT (completed in Table

cost) codes into categories required by 1) shall be used to

determine whether
data for each program
will be entered into
Table 2; only
programs categorised
as ‘ESL’, ‘ESMS’ or
‘Non-ESL’ shall have
data entered in Table
3. All other lines shall
be entered as zero or
N/A.




Table

10

Table Title Data Fin/
quality | Non-fin

Safety NF

Improvement
Outcomes
Reported to
ESV (Volumes)

11

Data source

ESV Annual
Safety report
EDPR 2011-
2015
Submission

Actual /
Estimate

Actual

Justification (if
estimated)

Appendix C: Basis of preparation — Annual RIN 2015

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

The table was populated based
on the ESV annual report t to
ESV in January 2016. The Safety
Improvement Programme
Outcomes column was populated
with AER expected volumes from
2010 (submitted as part of the
2011-2015 EDPR submission)

Assumptions (Actual &

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

Reconciliation NF
of Safety

Improvement

Outcomes

reported to

ESV and AER

(Volumes)

12

There should be no variance
between the safety improvement
outcomes reported to ESV and
AER as AER defers to ESV
safety requirements.

The ESV submission is lodged
prior to the RIN, any differences
reflect changes to data made
after the ESV submission

Bushfire-
Related
Expenditure -
Approved
Under Pass-
Through
Applications
(Volumes)

13

UE has proactively managed
bushfire risks by including
bushfire related programs in the
core programs listed in Table 1.

Bushfire-
Related
Expenditure -
Approved
Under Pass-
Through
Applications ($
Nominal -
Excluding
Margins and
Overheads)

UE has proactively managed
bushfire risks by including
bushfire related programs in the
core programs listed in Table 1.
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Tab

Table Name

Table

14

Table Title

Bushfire-
Related
Expenditure -
Approved
Under Pass-
Through
Applications ($
Nominal -
Margins and
Overheads)

23

Shared
Asset

Total
Unregulated
Revenue
earned with
Shared Assets

Fin/

Non-fin

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if

estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

UE has proactively managed
bushfire risks by including
bushfire related programs in the
core programs listed in Table 1.

Assumptions (Actual &

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

Shared Asset
Unregulated
Services and
Apportioned
Revenue

SAP

Actual

Data extracted from SAP as per
AER definitions.

24

Unmetered
Supply

Unmetered
Supply Tariff
Quantity Data
Template
(Actual t-2)

25

Actual t-2
Distr Tariff

Tariff Quantity
Data Template
(Actual t-2)
Distribution
Tariff Revenue

NF

2015 pricing
proposal model

Actual

Proposed 2015 Unmetered
Supply Tariff

Refer to '2015 Unmetered supply’
worksheet.

Qt-2 (2013) table in 'Proposed
2015 Unmetered Supply Tariff'
section

F/ NF

2015 pricing
proposal model

Actual

Tariff Quantity Data Template
2013 Distribution Tariff Revenue
Refer to 'Prop2015DistTar’
worksheet in 2015 pricing
proposal model.
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Tab | Table Name | Table | Table Title

26 |Actual t-2 - Tariff Quantity
Trans Tariff Data Template

(Actual t-2)
Transmission
Tariff Revenue

27 |TUoS Cost |- TUoS cost

Audit (t-2) audit template
(t-2)

28 |Actual t-2 - Tariff Quantity
Juris Data Template
Revenue (Actual t-2)

Jurisdictional
Scheme Tariff
Revenue

29 | Juris Cost - Jurisdictional
Audit amount cost
Template audit template

Data
quality

Fin/
Non-fin

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if
estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

Assumptions (Actual &

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

F/NF |2015 pricing Actual Tariff Quantity Data Template
proposal model 2013Transmission Tariff Revenue
Refer to 'Act2013TransReV'
worksheet.
F 2015 pricing Actual Actual 2013 TUoS cost audit
proposal model template
Refer to 'TUOS cost audit
template' worksheet.
F/NF |2015 pricing Actual Actual 2013 Proposed
proposal model Jurisdictional Scheme Revenue
Refer to '‘Prop2015JSTar'
worksheet.
F 2015 pricing Actual Actual 2013 Jurisdictional

proposal model

scheme amounts
Refer to 'JS cost audit template'
worksheet.
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&

UNITED ENERGY

The following tables outline the basis of preparation of the information provided in the Microsoft Excel Workbook titled ‘United Energy 2014-15 - Annual RIN — Non-Financial
Information’.

Table 4: Annual Non-Financial RIN details

Tab

la

Table Name

STPIS
Reliability

Table

Table Title

SAIDI
(System
Average
Interruption
Duration
Index)

SAIFI
(System
Average
Interruption
Frequency
Index)

MAIFI
(Momentary
Average

Data
quality

Fin/
Non-fin

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if
estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

Assumptions (Actual &

Estimated)

Additional Comments

NF From 31 Actual Raw data is downloaded from the UE have no 'long
December 2014 Distribution Management rural'.o.r CBD feeder
Database. The data is "cleansed" classification and
to 31 December to remove duplications and information is
2015, the data adjusted for temporary switching therefore not
was sourced arrangements. SAIDI provided.
from the performance is calculated in Calculations are
Distribution accordance with AER definitions. completed in
These events are then filtered accordance with AER
Management further for excluded events and definitions.
System MED. The average
Database. MED and excluded events are distribution customer
determined in accordance with numbers used in
AER definitions. calculations is taken
from RIN 1la Table 4.
NF From 31 Actual Raw data is downloaded from the
December 2014 Distribution Management
to 31 December Database. The data is "cleansed"
2015, the data to remove duplications and
was sourced adjusted for temporary switching
from the arrangements. SAIFI
Distribution performance is calculated in
Management accordance with AER definitions.
System These events are then filtered
Database. further for excluded events and
MED.
MED and excluded events are
determined in accordance with
AER definitions.
NF From 31 Actual Raw data is downloaded from the
December 2014 Distribution Management

to 31 December
2015, the data

Database. The data is "cleansed"
to remove duplications and
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Tab

Table Name

Table

Table Title

Interruption
Frequency
Index)

Distribution
Customer
Numbers

1b

STPIS
Customer
Performance

Telephone
Answering

New
Connections

Streetlight
Repair

Data
quality

Fin/
Non-fin

Data source

was sourced
from the
Distribution
Management
System
Database.

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if
estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

adjusted for temporary switching
arrangements. MAIFI
performance is calculated in
accordance with AER definitions.
These events are then filtered
further for excluded events and
MED.

MED and excluded events are
determined in accordance with

Assumptions (Actual &

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

AER definitions.

NF The customer Actual Customer numbers are extracted
numbers are from our GIS system for the start
extracted from and the end of the reporting
our GIS data period.
base system.

NF Aegis Daily Actual Number of calls received and
Report (raw) — number of calls answered within
Faults Desk 30 seconds is extracted from the

Aegis Daily Report (raw) — Faults
Desk and used to populate the
“Total” column. This report is then
filtered to remove MED and
populate the “Total — after
removing excluded events”
column.

NF Aegis Actual New Connections figure extracted
Connections from the Connections Monthly
Monthly Report Report generated by the GIS
— Number of Database. Number of
connections not connections not provided on or
provided on or before agreed date — sum of
before agreed number of GSL payments for
date. connections based on SAP data.

NF SAP Financial Actual Calculated as average of
accounts streetlights held over 12 months

DMS public

as per SAP as per AER
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UNITED ENERGY

Tab | Table Name |Table |Table Title Data |[Fin/ Data source Actual / Justification (if Methodology (Actual & Additional Comments

Assumptions (Actual &
quality | Non-fin Estimate |estimated) Estimated) Estimated)

lighting report

definitions

Figures relating to street light
repairs and GSL payments
extracted from the DMS Public
Lighting Report as per AER
definitions

) . NF From 31 Actual Raw data is downloaded from the
1c | STPIS Daily Daily December 2014 Distribution Management
Performance Performance to 31 December Database. The data is "cleansed"
Data 2015, the data to remove duplications and
(Unplanned) was sourced adjusted for temporary switching
from the arrangements. MAIFI
Distribution performance is calculated in
Management accordance with AER definitions.
System These events are then filtered
Database. further for excluded events.
) NF Aegis Daily Actual Data is extracted from Aegis
Daily Report (raw) - Daily Report, as per AER
Performance Faults Desk only definition.
Data
(Unplanned)-
Customer
Service
) NF From 31 Actual Raw data is downloaded from the The "Duration of
le Elsllussions Exclusions December 2014 Distribution Management interruption

to 31 December
2015, the data
was sourced
from the
Distribution
Management
System
Database.

Database. The data is "cleansed"
to remove duplications and
adjusted for temporary switching
arrangements. These events are
then filtered further to include
only excluded unplanned events.
The event category column is
filled in manually in accordance
with the definitions in the AER's
STPIS document.

MED and excluded events are
determined in accordance with

(unplanned mins)” is

not applicable as

supply to customers is

progressively
restored.
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&

UNITED ENERGY

1f

STPIS - GSL

Guaranteed
Service
Levels -
Jurisdictional
GSL Scheme

Guaranteed
Service
Levels — AER
GSL Scheme

o 0
0dolog A al &

aled

AER definitions.

Aaaitiona 0 e

Service Desk
Appointments
(provided by
Skilltech),
Connections
Appointments
are listed in the
Connections
Aegis reports.

Estimate

AEGIS Reported
data found to be
inaccurate; review
of data is not
possible in
timeframe for
RIN. Estimate
utilised for RIN on
Connections
Data.

GSL payments for missed
appointments were taken directly
from SAP. As they were reported
separately.

To determine the breakdown of
GSL payments for the remaining
types (connections, reliability of
supply and faulty streetlights), the
proportion of each payment type
as per the Aegis reports and
DMS operational reports were
applied to the SAP GSL
payments total less payments for
missed appointments.

The totals for each GSL payment
type were then further broken
down into each subcategory (e.g.
1-4 day delay or 5+ day delay for
connections) by using the same
proportions as the relevant Aegis
report / DMS operational report.
To determine the number of each
type of payment, the dollar
figures were divided by the
average value of GSL payments
for each subcategory determined
from the relevant Aegis report /
DMS operational report.

The proportions of GSL payment
types in DMS and Aegis systems
are the same as the proportions
of GSL payment types in SAP,
with the exception of GSL
payments for missed
appointments, which are reported
separately.

NF

Appointments
and
connections
Aegis Service
Desk
Appointments
Aegis
Connections

Actual

Appointments

UE makes appointments for the
following:

Service Desk Appointments
made with Skilltech to conduct:
o Meter investigations

o Meter Faults

¢ Re-energisations
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Tab | Table Name

Table Title

Fin/
Non-fin

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if
estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

Assumptions (Actual &
Estimated)

Monthly Report
Streetlight data
SAP (number of
streetlights)
DMS
(streetlights out
during period,
number of
business days to
repair, not
repaired by fix
by date)

New Connections Appointments

made with ZNX and Tenix:

o Adds/Alts

o Abolishments

e Solar connections

Connections

As per AER definition — Data from

Aegis report.

Streetlights

o Number of streetlights -
Average number of streetlights
as per SAP

 Streetlights out during period -
as per DMS

« Not repaired by ‘fixed by date’ —
Number of GSL payments plus
DMS operational data for
streetlights not repaired within 7
working days

o Streetlights not repaired within 2
business days — Number of
GSL payments

o Number of business days to
repair — as per DMS

Planned interruptions

As per DMS data for planned

outages.

2| Customer
service

Quality of
supply

NF

Web Reporter of
ION Enterprise -
UE Database

Actual

PQ analysers are installed at
every zone substation and at the
end of the longest feeder of every
zone substation and collect
voltage variation data. Web
Reporter of ION Enterprise has
been used to define, generate,
and manage comprehensive
reports, based on information
extracted from the meters and
contained in the UE Database.
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UNITED ENERGY

Tab | Table Name |Table |Table Title Data |[Fin/ Data source Actual / Justification (if Methodology (Actual & Additional Comments

Assumptions (Actual &
quality | Non-fin Estimate |estimated) Estimated) Estimated)

Note: The first six rows of the RIN
- Quality Supply Table 1 cannot
be completed due to a lack of
measurement capability for such
events.

) NF Claims The number of complaints
Compl_alnts - Database classified by customer resolution
Technical (1/1/2015 - agents as relating to quality of
Quality of 14/12/2015), supply complaints (recorded by
Supply UE SAP CRM UE as ‘Regulatory Category 1).

(15/12/2015- The complaints sub-categories
31/12/2015) (recorded by UE as ‘Regulatory
Category 2’) and likely causes
(recorded by UE as ‘Regulatory
Category 3’) for quality of supply
complaints recorded in the UE
system are the same as those
requested by the AER. Therefore,
data has been directly extracted
from the system in the relevant
categories.
NF Aegis Actual Timely provision of services
gust_omer Connections A specific date is not agreed with
ervice

Monthly Report
Aegis Daily
Report (raw) -
Faults Desk only
Aegis Monthly
Report (Faults
tab)

(Refer to Tab 1f
details for
streetlight data)

customers; therefore, this number

represents the number of

connections not made within the

agreed period.

Streetlight data

As per Tab 1f — STPIS GLS data

Call centre performance

e Calls to call centre fault line —
total all months (Jan — Dec) for
Total number of calls offered to
the automated switchboard

e Calls to fault line answered
within 30 seconds — the time to
answer a call is measured from
when the call enters the
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UNITED ENERGY

Tab | Table Name |Table |Table Title Data |[Fin/ Data source Actual / Justification (if Methodology (Actual & Assumptions (Actual & Additional Comments
quality | Non-fin Estimate |estimated) Estimated) Estimated)

telephone system of the call
centre (including that time when
it may be ringing unanswered
by any response) and the caller
speaks with a human operator,
but excluding the time that the
caller is connected to an
automated interactive service
that provides substantive
information. This measure does
not apply to:

(a) calls to payment lines and
automated interactive services
(b) calls abandoned by the
customer within 30 seconds of
the call being queued for
response by a human operator
(where the time in which a
telephone call is abandoned is
not measured, then an estimate
of the number of calls
abandoned within 30 seconds
will be determined by taking 20
per cent of all calls abandoned).
— Number excludes Major Event
Days.

Calls to fault line (average
waiting time before call
answered) — average of all
months (Jan - Dec) for average
speed of answer, including Self-
Serve

Calls abandoned (percentage) —
YTD average for abandon calls
over 30 seconds

Call centre (number of overload
events) — total all months (Jan —
Dec) for Number of Overload
Events
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Tab

Table Name

Table Title

da

Network
Performance
- Feeder

Annual
Feeder
Reliability
Data

Fin/
Non-fin

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if
estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

Complaints

Calls that could not be resolved
through initial contact with the UE
call centre and were forwarded to
the Complaints Resolution team
during the year. Note: complaints
do not include financial claim
related calls.

Assumptions (Actual &
Estimated)

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

NF

Network
Planning Team
and Network
Performance
Analyser

Actual

The Feeder ID is obtained from
the Network Planning Team. Both
Description of Feeder and
Classification are obtained from
the Network Performance
Analyser.

Outages both Planned and
Unplanned are not necessarily
recorded at the end of each day.

UE has produced a
number of documents
that contain
instructions on how
the data required for
the RIN category is to
be obtained and
populated. These
documents include
detailed
methodologies to
provide both actual
and estimated data.
The Basis of
Preparation against
each relevant RIN
category is a
summary of the
methodology detailed
within these UE
produced documents.
For this particular
RIN, document UE
PR 2302 was
referenced.

UE have no 'long
rural' or CBD feeder
classification and
information is
therefore not
provided.
Calculations are




Data |[Fin/
quality | Non-fin

Data source

Actual /

Estimate

Justification (if

Appendix C: Basis of preparation — Annual RIN 2015

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

Assumptions (Actual &

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

completed in
accordance with AER
definitions.

The average
distribution customer
numbers used in
calculations is taken
from RIN 1a Table 4.
Feeder classification
is determined in
accordance with AER
definitions.

NF Geographical Actual Asset data in the AM/FM reports
Information is updated monthly from UE’s
System AM/FM GIS and presented in user
Reports friendly tables.

NF Network Actual The Maximum Demand is
Planning Team obtained from the Network

Planning Team who uses actual
metered data.

NF From 31 Actual Raw data is downloaded from the
December 2014 Distribution Management
to 31 December Database. The data is "cleansed"
2015, the data to remove duplications and
was sourced adjusted for temporary switching
from the arrangements. These events are
Distribution then filtered further for Energy not
Management supplied (unplanned) and Energy
System not supplied (planned).
Database.

NF From 31 Actual Raw data is downloaded from the
December 2014 Distribution Management

to 31 December
2015, the data
was sourced
from the
Distribution

Database. The data is "cleansed"”
to remove duplications and
adjusted for temporary switching
arrangements. These events are
then filtered further for total
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Tab

Table Name

Table

Fin/
Non-fin

Table Title Data

quality

Data source

Actual /
Estimate

Justification (if
estimated)

Methodology (Actual &
Estimated)

Assumptions (Actual &
Estimated)

&

UNITED ENERGY

Additional Comments

4c

Network
Performance
- Reliability

Management number of unplanned outages
System and statistics. AER definitions for
Database. SAIDI, SAIFI, MAIFI and MED's
are used in the calculations.
NF From 31 Actual Raw data is downloaded from the
December 2014 Distribution Management
to 31 December Database. The data is "cleansed"
2015, the data to remove duplications and
was sourced adjusted for temporary switching
from the arrangements. The SAIDI for
Distribution each feeder is then evaluated
Management against the SAIDI threshold
System based on the ‘Feeder
Database. classification’ column. If the total
SAIDI for a feeder exceeds the
SAIDI threshold of the feeder
classification, it is deemed a low
reliability feeder (i.e. Yes).
Otherwise, it is not a low reliability
feeder (i.e. No).
NF From 31 Actual Raw data is downloaded from the UE has produced a
Planned December 2014 Distribution Management number of documents
Outages to 31 December Database. The data is "cleansed" that contain

2015, the data
was sourced
from the
Distribution
Management
System
Database.

to remove duplications and
adjusted for temporary switching
arrangements. These events are
then filtered further for planned
outages and SAIDI and SAIFI
calculated in accordance with
AER definitions.

instructions on how
the data required for
the RIN category is to
be obtained and
populated. These
documents include
detailed
methodologies to
provide both actual
and estimated data.
The basis of
preparation against
each relevant RIN
category is a
summary of the
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UNITED ENERGY

Tab | Table Name |Table |Table Title Data |[Fin/ Data source Actual / Justification (if Methodology (Actual & Assumptions (Actual & Additional Comments
quality | Non-fin Estimate |estimated) Estimated) Estimated)

methodology detailed
within these UE
produced documents.
For this particular
RIN, document UE
PR 2302 was
referenced.

UE have no 'long
rural' or CBD feeder
classification and
information is
therefore not
provided.
Calculations are
completed in
accordance with AER
definitions.

The average
distribution customer
numbers used in
calculations is taken
from RIN 1a Table 4.
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United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd
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Directors' report

Your directors present their report on the consolidated entity (referred to hereafter as the Group) consisting of
United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 31
December 2015.

Directors
Mr Peter Lowe
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Mr David Bartholomew
Non-Executive Director

Mr Jason Conroy
Non-Executive Director

Mr Geoffrey Nicholson
Non-Executive Director

Ms Joanne Pearson
Alternate Director (alfernate to Mr Geoffrey Nicholson)

Mr Nicholas Kuys
Alternate Director (alternate to Mr David Bartholomew & Mr Jason Conroy)

Principal activities

During the period the principal continuing activities of the Group consisted of distributing electricity from Victoria's
transmission network to the premises of residential, commercial and industrial electricity users which is enabled
via the ongoing construction, augmentation and maintenance of its electricity network in Victoria, Australia.

Dividends
No dividends were declared or paid during the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014 nil).

Review of operations
The review of operations covers the year from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015.

The profit from ordinary activities after income tax amounted to $85,217k (2014: $904k).

Consolidated revenue for the period was $679,230k (2014: $624,232k). Of this figure, electricity distribution
revenue amounted to $535,391k (2014: $499,181k). The network distributed 7,632 GWh (2014: 7,856 GWh) of
electricity during the year.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has a net current asset deficiency of $259m. The main driver is the
reclassification of US$200m (A$274.4m) in debt from a non-current to a current liability as the debt matures in
April 2016. A new facility with maturities of 7 and 10 years was entered into in order to replace this facility.
Despite the net current asset deficiency, the 12 months cash flow forecast shows that UED can continue to
generate positive operating cash flows and/or has sufficient appropriate debt and equity capital in place to enable
operations to continue as a going concern.

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year
No matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2015 that has significantly affected, or may
significantly affect:

(a) the Group's operations in future financial years, or

(b) the results of those operations in future financial years, or

(c) the Group's state of affairs in future financial years.

Likely developments and expected results of operations
The consolidated entity will continue its policy of providing safe and reliable electricity distribution services.

At the date of this report, there are no likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity that, in the
opinion of the directors, are likely to significantly impact the consolidated entity in the future.



United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd
Directors' report

31 December 2015

{continued)

Environmental regulation

The consolidated entity's operations are subject {o significant environmental regulation under the Environmental
Protection Act 1970 (Vic). The consclidated entity embraces environmental management principles using
compliance with ISO 14001 for proactive planning, sustainable development and self assessment for continuous
improvement. The consolidated entity did not receive any nofification from the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) for violation of the Act for the current or previous period and up to the date of signing this report in 2018.

Auditor's independence deciaration
A copy of the auditer's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is
set out on page 3.

Rounding of amounis

The company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments
Commission, relating to the ‘rounding off of amounts in the directors’ report. Amounts in the directors' report have
been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand doltars, or in certain cases, to the
nearest dollar,

Mr Peter Lowe
Director

Melbourne



United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd
Directors' report
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{continued)

{The Auditor's Independence Declaration will be provided by your Auditor.}
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Revenue from continuing operations

Expenses

Loss on retirement of property, plant and equipment
Grid fees

Jurisdictional Scheme expenses
Operating fees

I'T expenses

Other expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Employee expenses

Consulting expenses

Unrealised foreign exchange gain/loss
Finance costs

Total expenses

Profit before income tax

Income tax (expense)/benefit
Profit for the period

Profit is attributable to:
Owners of United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

5

United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd
Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes

4

Consolidated entity

Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
$'000 $'000

679,230 624,232
{4,193) (2,148}
{115,656) (109,583)
(18,509) (17,703)
(57,387) (65,412}
(22,204) (20,711}
(28,315) (25,957}
(141,462} {134,650)
(27,775) (24,957)
{12,685} (20,189)

219 139
{131,819) (204,066)
{559,786) (625,235)
119,444 (1,003)
{34,227) 1,907
85,217 904
85,217 904



Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income

United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes

ltemns that may reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges
- Gains / (loss) taken to equity
- Transferred to Income Statement

22(a)
22(a)

Income tax on changes in the fair value of cash flow hedge

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the period

Total comprehensive income for the period is attributable to:

Owners of United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to owners of

United Energy Distribution Pty Lid arises
from:
Continuing operations

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive incomne should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

Consoclidated entity
Year ended
31 December 31 December

2015 2014
$'000 $000
85,217 904
15,885 43,414
{39,808) (4,801)
7477 (11,585)
{16,746) 27,028
68,471 27,932
68,471 27,932
68,471 27,932




United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd
Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 205

Consolidated entity
31 December 31 December

2015 2014

Notes $000 $'000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 28,514 22,208
Trade and other receivables 8 95,003 87,206
Inventories a 6,640 6,361
Derivative financial instruments 10 18,431 7,863
Total current assets 148,588 123,638
Non-current assets
Receivables 11 1,279,368 1,335,064
Derivative financial instruments 10 116,208 75,339
Property, plant and equipment 12 2,113,598 2,003,523
Deferred {ax assels 14 51,336 40,536
Intangible assets 13 464,701 476,941
Total non-current assets 4,025,211 3,031,403
Total assets 4,173,799 4,055,041
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 120,260 124,173
Borrowings 16 274,350 -
Derivative financial instruments 10 7,273 32,497
Provisions 17 6,073 8,141
Total current liabilities 407,956 162,811
Non-current liabifities
Borrowings 18 2,138,554 2,338,888
Derivative financial instruments 10 11,539 40,151
Deferred tax liabilities 19 150,465 116,354
Provisions 17 2,748 2,878
Other non-current liabilities 20 167,407 167,300
Total non-current liahilities 2,470,713 2,665,571
Total liabilities 2,878,669 2,828,382
Net assets 1,295,130 1,226,659
EQUITY
Contributed equity 646,459 546,459
Other reserves 22(a} {35,319) (18,573)
Retained earnings 22(b} 683,990 598,773
Total equity 1,295,130 1,228,659

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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United Energy Distribution Pty |.td
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Attributable to owners of
United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

Contributed Retained Totat
equity Reserves earnings Total equity

Consolidated entity $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 January 2014 646,459 {45,601) 597.869 1,198,727 1,198,727
Profit for the year - - 904 904 904
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 904 904 904
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Effective portion of changes in cash flow hedge, net of tax - 27,028 - 27,028 27,028
Balance at 31 December 2014 646,459 (18,573) 598,773 1,226,659 1,226,659
Balance at 1 January 2015 646,459 {18,573) 598,773 1,226,659 1,226,659
Profit for the year - - 85,217 85,217 85,217
Total comprehensive income for the pericd - - 85,217 85,217 85,217
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Effective portion of changes in cash flow hedge, net of tax - (16,7446) - {15,746) {16,746)
Balance at 31 December 2015 646,459 {35,319) 683,990 1,295,130 1,295,130

The above consolidated statement of changes in equily should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
nofes.



Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and services tax)
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and services
tax)

Intercompany receipts / (payments) with UEDH group

interest recsived

Finance cosis paid

Income tax refunded

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payment for intangibles

Net cash (outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net external borrowings
Net cash (outflow) from financing activities

Net increase (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd
Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated entity

Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
Notes $000 $'000
741,712 605,688
(361,416) (349,049)
55,606 (44,073)
77 4,355
{174,635) (195,331}
- 34,395
262,128 145,985
27 262,128 145,985

(216,913) (206,631)
1,876 1,686
(30,571) (34,976)
{245,608) {240,021)

(10,214) (88,543)

(10,214) (88,543)

6,306 (182,579)

22,208 204,787

7 28,514 22,208

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated in
Note 1 (x). The financial statements are for the consolidated entity consisting of United Energy Distribution Pty
Ltd and its subsidiaries.

(a) Financial reporting framework

The Company is not a reporting entity because in the opinion of the directors, it is unlikely that users of the
financial report exist who are unable to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy specifically all
of their information needs. Accordingly, this 'special purpose financial report' has been prepared to satisfy the
directors' regulatory reporting requirements.

The financial report has been prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting and disclosure requirements
specified by all Accounting Standards and Interpretations, except the disclosure requirements of the
pronouncements listed below.

Accounting Standards include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ('AIFRS').

AASB 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures

AASB 8: Segment Reporting

AASB 9 (2014): Financial Instruments (applied from 1 July 2015)
AASB 12: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

AASB 13: Fair Value Measurement

AASB 102: Inventories

AASB 112: Income Taxes

AASB 116: Property, Plant and Equipment

AASB 117: Leases

AASB 119: Employee Benefits

AASB 124: Related Party Disclosures

AASB 132: Financial Instruments: Presentation

AASB 136: Impairment of Assets

AASB 137: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
AASB 138: Intangible Assets

AASB 139: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (applied to 30 June 2015)

(b) Basis of preparation

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has a net current asset deficiency of $259m. The main driver is the
reclassification of US$200m (A$274.4m) in debt from a non-current to a current liability as the debt matures in
April 2016. A new facility with maturities of 7 and 10 years was entered into in order to replace this facility.
Despite the net current asset deficiency, the 12 months cash flow forecast shows that UED can continue to
generate positive operating cash flows and/or has sufficient appropriate debt and equity capital in place to enable
operations to continue as a going concern.

(i) Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss, certain classes of property, plant and equipment and investment property.

(if) Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.
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United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

{continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

{b) Basis of preparation {continued)

(i) Critical accounting estimates (continued)}

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstance, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments.
Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, orin the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of the Group's accounting policies that have significant
effects on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next year
are disclosed, where applicable, in the relevant notes fo the financial statements.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information
satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying
transactions or other evenis are reported.

{c) Principles of consolidation

{iy Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of United Energy
Distribution Pty Ltd ('company' or 'parent entity') as at 31 December 2015 and the results of all subsidiaries for
the period then ended. United Energy Distribution Pty Lid and its subsidiaries together are referred to in this
financial report as the Group or the consolidated entity.

Controlled entities are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than cne-half of the
voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group controls anether entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminaied. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The effect of all transactions between entities in the consolidated entity are eliminated in full.
(d) Foreign currency transiation

{i} Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic envirenment in which the enlity operates (‘the functional currency'). The consalidated financial
statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is United Energy Distribution Pty Lid's functional and
presentation currency.

(i} Transactions and balances

Fareign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevaiting at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setflement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.
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United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Specific commitments: hedging
Hedging is undertaken in order to avoid or minimise possible adverse financial effects of movements in exchange
rates.

Borrowings that are denominated in foreign currencies that are fully hedged have been converted to Australian
currency, using rates of exchange ruling at the end of the financial year, and the related hedge asset or liability is
calculated using the hedge rates.

(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue
are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

(i) Electricity distribution revenue

Distribution of electricity revenue earned from the use of the distribution network is recognised when electricity
and related services are provided. Accrued distribution of electricity revenue is determined having regard to the
period since a customer's last billing date and the customer's previous consumption patterns. Distribution of
electricity revenue includes the cost of transmission services charged by the transmission companies, which is
passed on to the customers.

(i) Customer contributions

Non-refundable contributions and in kind assets received from customers towards the cost of extending or
modifying the electricity distribution network, whether on existing or new assets, are recognised as revenue and
an asset once control is gained of the contribution or asset.

(iii) Meter revenue

Meter revenue is recovered under a Cost Recovery Order in Council. The revenue is recorded as it is earned
from energy consumed.

(iv) Interest revenue

Interest revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue can be reliably measured. Interest income is brought to account on an accruals basis using the
effective interest method.

(v) Other revenue
Other revenue is brought to account as it is earned and is recognised when the goods and services are provided.

(f) Finance costs

Finance costs include interest and ancillary costs incurred in connection with arrangements of borrowings.

Finance costs are expensed during the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs incurred for the
construction of any qualifying asset are not capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.

Long term borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of finance costs incurred. The differences between

the proceeds (net of finance costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate.
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United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

{continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Ilncome tax

income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equily, in which case itis
recognised in equity.

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using {ax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes; the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities {hat affect neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future, The
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred fax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

{i) Tax consolidation

United Energy Distribution Holdings Pty Ltd is the head company in a tax consolidated group comprising it and its
Australian wholly-owned subsidiaries of which United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd is a member. The
implementation date for this tax consolidated group was 23 July 2003.

Current tax expense/benefit, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assels arising from temporary differences of
the members of the tax consolidated group are recognised in the separate financial statements of the members
of the tax consolidated group using the "group allocation” approach by reference to the carrying amounts at the
tax consolidated group level and their tax values as applicable under the tax consolidation legislation.

Any current tax liabilities (or asseis) and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses of the subsidiary is
assumed by the head entity in the tax consolidated group and are recognised as amounts payable/(receivable)
to/{from) other entities in the tax consolidated group in conjunction with any tax funding agreement amounts
{refer below).

The tax consolidated group has entered into a tax funding agreement that requires the wholly owned subsidiary
o make contributions to the head entity for current tax assets and liabilities arising from external fransactions
occurring afer the implementation of tax consolidation. The contribution is recorded as an intercompany
receivable/payable.

Under the tax funding agreement, the contributions are calculated on a "group allocation basis" so that the
contributions are equivalent {o the tax balances generated by external transactions entered into by the wholly
owned subsidiary, The contributions are payable as set out in the agreement and reflect the timing of the head
entity's obligations to make payments for tax liabilities to the relevant tax authorities. The assets and liabilities
arising under tax funding agreements are recognised as intercompany assets and liabilities with a consequential
adjustment to income tax expensefrevenue.
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United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets

(i} Financial assets
A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a
negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

An impairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its current fair
value,

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial
assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any cumulative loss in respect of an available-for-sale
financial asset recognised previously in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost and available-for-sale financial
assets that are debt securities, the reversal is recognised in profit or loss. For available-for-sale financial assets
that are equity securities, the reversal is recognised directly in equity.

(i) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the consolidated entity's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets, are reviewed annually to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For assets that have an indefinite useful life, the recoverable amount is estimated annually. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of assets in the cash generating unit (group of
units) on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the assets of the consolidated entity are assessed as one class of assets
in their entirety.

The estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does
not generate largely independent cash inflows the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss has been recognised.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, depaosits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.
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United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

Notes {o the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

{continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{i} Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within
30 days. They are presented as current assets uniess collection is not expected for more than 12 months after
the reporling date.

Collectahility of trade debtors is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debis which are known to be uncollectable are
written off. A provision is raised for any doubtful accounts. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Cash flows refating {o short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial. The
amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement in other expenses.

(k) Inventories

Transformers and meters are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is measured at actual cost
and provision is made for obsolescence where applicable,

{l) Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent
changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:

* hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment {fair value hedges)

* hedges of a particular risk associated with the cash flows of recognised assets and liabilities and highty

probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges), or
+ hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation {net investment hedges).

The Group documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the relationship between hedging instruments
and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and sirategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoeing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions have been and will continue to be highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

The fair values of varicus derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 10.
Movementis in the hedging reserve in shareholder's equity are shown in note 22. The full fair value of a hedging
derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more
than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or lability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is
less than 12 months, Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or liabitity.

(i) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in profit
or loss, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the
hedged risk. The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings
is recagnised in profit or loss within finance costs, together with changes in the fair value of the hedged fixed rate
borrowings attributable to interest rate risk. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised in
profit or loss within other income or other expenses.

if the hedge no longer meetls the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a
hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss over the period to
maturity using a recalculated effective interest rate.
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United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(I) Derivatives and hedging activities (continued)

(i) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves in equity. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss within other income or other
expenses.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit
or loss (for instance when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place). The gain or loss relating to the effective
portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognised in profit or loss within 'finance
costs'. The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of forward foreign exchange contracts hedging export
sales is recognised in profit or loss within 'sales'. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example, inventory or fixed assets) the gains and losses previously
deferred in equity are reclassified from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset.
The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in profit or loss as cost of goods sold in the case of inventory, or
as depreciation or impairment in the case of fixed assets.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately reclassified to profit or
loss.

(m) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are shown at fair value, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Any accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All other property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or lass during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the case of
leasehold improvements and certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

- Buildings 10 - 40 years
- Plant and equipment 15 - 50 years
- Vehicles 5-10vyears
- Office equipment 3-15years
- Furniture, fixtures and fittings 1-12 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 1(h)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included
in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, it is Group policy to transfer any amounts included in other
reserves in respect of those assets to retained earnings.
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United Energy Distribution Pty Lid

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

{continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) intangible assets

(i) Distribution licences

The consalidated entity has a licence that entitles it to distribute electricity within its region. The licence has been
brought to account having regard o the expected future net cash flows derived from holding the licence. No
amortisation is provided, since in the opinion of the directors, the life of the licence is of such duration, and the
residual value would be such that the amortisation charge, if any, would not be material. To suppori the ongoing
carrying value of this asset, nothing has occurred to suggest the terms and conditions of the issuance of the
licence have not been complied with. The value of this licence is reviewed annually.

(i} Software licences

When the software is not an integral part of the refated hardware, it is treated as an intangible asset. All software
licences are recorded at cost and amortised on a straight line basis over their useful lives, which range from 4 to
5 years.

{o) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilittes unless payment is not due within 12 months from the reporting
date. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amoriised cost using the
effective interest method.

(p} Customer deposits

Customer deposils are recognised as liabilities and represent either refundable deposits that are received in
advance as finance on capital projects or advances from customers held as security over future electricity usage.

{q) interest bearing liabilities

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan {o the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
refates.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The
dividends on these preference shares are recognised in profit or foss as finance costs.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap}, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying amecunt of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at feast 12 months after the reporting period.
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United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Provisions

Provisions for legal and other claims are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cashflows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cashflows.

(i) Environmental provision

Provision has been made in the financial statements for environmental management costs to ensure compliance
with environmental management principles using ISO 14001 and The Environment Protection Act 1970 of
Victoria.

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave
expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken
and measured at the rates paid or payable.

(i) Long service leave

The liability for long service leave expected to be settled in twelve months of the balance date is recognised in
the provision for employee benefits and is measured in accordance with (i) above. The liability for long service
leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future
payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration is
given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government
bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The annual leave, long service leave and any outstanding wages and salaries entitiements are grouped together
as employee benefits in the accounts. These benefits are also analysed between current and non-current
depending on when they are due and payable.

(t) Contributed equity

Contributed equity is recorded at consideration received. The costs of issuing securities are charged against
contributed equity. The terms and conditions of various classes of equities affecting income or capital
entitiements are detailed in note 21.

(u) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred
is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of
GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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{continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{u}) Goods and Services Tax {(GST) {continued)

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating
cash flows.

{v} Rounding of amounts

The company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments
Commission, relating to the 'rounding off' of amounts in the financial statements. Amounts in the financiaf
statements have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars, or in
certain cases, the nearest dollar.

{(w) Comparative figures

When required by Accounting standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in
presentation for the current financial period.

(x) New accounting standards and interpretations

The Group applied several mandatory amendments for the first time in fiscal 2015. However they do not impact
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group. The nature of each new amendment is ocutlined below.

AASB 2012-3 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financiat Liabilities adds application guidance to AASB 132
Financial Instruments: Presentation {o address inconsistencies identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria
of AASB 132, including clarifying the meaning of "currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off" and that
sorne gross setffement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement. The Group does not offset
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets amends
the disclosure requirements in AASB 136 Impairment of Assets. The amendments include the requirement to
disclose additional information about the fair value measurement when the recoverable amount of impaired
assels is based on fair value less costs of disposal.

In addition to the mandatory amendments, AASB 9 Financiat Instruments is required to be mandatorily applied

from 1 January 2017, however the Group has assessed the impact of early adoption and has adopted it from 1
July 2015,

Changes to classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

AASB 9 introduced new classification and measurement models for financial instruments. Held to Maturity (HTM}
and Available for Sale (AFS) asset categories have been removed. For financial instruments, there are only two
madels, amortised cost and fair value. On adoption of AASB 9 financial assets have been classified as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the assets' contractual cash flow
characteristics. There were no changes in classification or measurement of financial fiabilities. There was no
impact on the statement of comprehensive income or the statement of changes in equity on adoption of AASB 9
in relation to classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Changes to hedge accounting

AASBE 8 introduced new hedge accounting requirements. AASB 9 aligns hedge accounting more closely with
common risk management practices. Hedge ineffectiveness will continue to be recognised in profit or loss. The
company is still required to prepare contemporaneous documentation; however, the information to be
documented under AASB 9 differs.

20



United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) New accounting standards and interpretations (continued)

The following summarises the key changes:

risk components that are separately identifiable and reliably measurable will be eligible as hedged items,
including non-financial items;

effectiveness measurement testing is required only on a prospective basis and new hedge effectiveness criteria
includes the existence of an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;
certain requirements must be met for discontinuing a hedge relationship; and

hedging of groups of net positions is permitted subject to certain criteria.

The accounting and presentation requirements for hedge accounting remain largely unchanged; however,
additional disclosures are required under the new standard.

AASB 9 has expanded the range of eligible hedged items, to include aggregated exposures (a combination of
exposures), where derivatives may be a hedging instrument as well as part of a hedged item. This has resulted in
the de-designation of certain existing hedge relationships and re-designation from 1 July 2015 without any
change to the underlying economic objective of the hedging. This did not result in any market transactions.

Under AASB 9, certain costs of hedging, including foreign currency basis spreads, are excluded from the
designation of a financial instrument as a hedging instrument, and accounted for as a cost of hedging. The
cumulative change in fair value of the foreign currency basis spreads is recognised in the hedge reserve
temporarily, and subsequently recognised in the income statement over the life of the hedge relationship.

New accounting standards issued but not yet effective

AASB15 Revenue From Contracts with Customers includes requirements to recognise revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for these goods or services. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of adopting this standard. The application date of this standard for the Group is 1 July 2018.

2 Financial risk management

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.

The Group operates within Australia and is only exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency
exposures to the US dollar on borrowings and equipment purchases.

Cross currency swaps are used to manage foreign exchange risk associated with the US dollar borrowings.

The Group's risk management policy is to hedge 100% of all foreign exchange transactions for the life of the
transaction.
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(continued)

2 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Group’s income and operating cash flows are not
materially exposed to changes in market interest rates although revenues are linked to CPI. The Group does not
hedge revenues but structures a portion of its interest rate hedging to take this into account.

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Group policy is to fix the rates for between 80% and 100% of its borrowings
within the regulatory period.

The Group manages its cash flow interest-rate risk by using floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps. Borrowings
issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Such interest rate swaps have the
economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Generally, the Group raises long-term
borrowings at floating rates and swaps them inte fixed rates that are lower than those available if the Group
borrowed them at fixed rates directly.

Under the interest-rate swaps, the Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals {mainly
quarterly}, the difference between fixed contract rates and floating-rate interest amounts calculated by reference
to the agreed notional principal amounts.

(¢} Creditrisk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. Derivative counterparties and
cash transactions are limited to high credit quality financiat institutions. The Group has policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure (o any one financial institution.

(d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close-out market positions. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs to sell and value-in-use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(i) Provisions
The Group calculates the carrying amount of provisions under AASB 137 based on a variety of available
information, much of which is based on estimates of the likely outflow of economic benefits.

(iii) Meter revenue
Meter revenue is recovered under a Cost Recovery Order in Council. The revenue is recorded as it is earned
from energy consumed.

(iv) Income taxes

The Group applies the criteria stated in AASB 112 with regards to the calculation and recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities. The application of the AASB 112 criteria involves the exercise of judgment surrounding the
calculation of accounting and tax bases for the Group's assets and liabilities. Furthermore, the potential reversal
of temporary differences also requires the use of estimates of future profitability, availability of taxable
profits/losses on both revenue and capital account and potential future changes in accounting and tax bases.

In particular, the expectation of the availability of future taxable profits against which deferred tax assets arising in
respect of revenue losses is subject to estimation and judgment.

(b) Critical judgements in applying the entity's accounting policies

At balance date the Group had not made any significant judgements in applying accounting policies that it
considers critical to the Group's results.
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4 Revenue

From continuing operations
Distribution revenue

Other services

Miscellaneous revenue

Foreign exchange (loss) / gains

Other revenue
Interest - external

5 Expenses

Profit before income tax includes the following specific

expenses:

Depreciation

Buildings

Plant and equipment
Total depreciation

Amortisation

Software

Deferred expenditure
Total amaortisation

Total depreciation and amortisation

Finance costs
Related parties
Other corporations
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(continued)

Consolidated entity

Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
535,391 499,181
140,556 121,314
2,478 599
34 {63)
678,459 621,031
771 3,201
679,230 624,232

Consolidated entity

Year ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

$'000 $'000
360 325
98,373 90,354
98,733 80,679
28,926 29,050
13,803 14,921
42,729 43,971
141,462 134,650
38,994 38,994
92,825 165,072
131,818 204,066




United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

{continued)

6 Income tax expense

(a) Income tax expense

Consolidated entity

Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
Current tax 3,739 (16,743)
Deferred tax 30,488 14,836
34,227 {1.207)
income tax expense is attributable to:
Profit from continuing operations 34,227 (1,907)
Deferred income tax expense included in income tax expense comprises:
(Increase) decrease in deferred tax assets (note 14) (4,301) (6,967)
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities (note 19) 34,789 21,803
30,488 14,836

(b) Tax consolidation legislation

Effective 23 July 2003, for the purposes of income taxation, United Energy Distribution Holdings Py Ltd and its
100% Australian owned subsidiaries, of which United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd is a member, formed a tax
consolidated group. Members of the tax consolidated group entered into a tax sharing and tax funding
arrangement in order o allocate income tax expense to the wholly-owned subsidiaries on a pro-rata basis. These
arrangements have been updated to reflect UIG Interpretations 1052. In addition, the agreement provides for the
allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities shouid the head entily default on its tax payment
obligations. At the balance date, the possibility of default is remote. The head entity of the tax consolidated group
is United Energy Distribution Holdings Ply Ltd.

7 Current assets - Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated entity
31 December 31 December

2015 2014

$'000 $'000
Cash at bank and in hand 28,295 22,162
Other cash and cash equivalents 219 46
28,514 22,208

(a) Terms and conditions

Cash is held at call and earns an average interest rate of 2.06% (2014: 2.64%) per annum.
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8 Current assets - Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables {a) (i}
Provision for impairment of receivables

Other receivables
Prepayments
Interest receivables (a) (ii)

(a) Terms and conditions

(i} Trade debtors are non-interest bearing and generally on 14 day terms.

(it} Consolidated entity's interest receivable is on the following:
- USD leg of cross currency interest rate swaps - $6,186K,

9 Current assets - Inventories

Transformers
AMI meters
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(continued)

Consolidated entity
31 December 31 December

2015 2014
$'000 $000
5,650 1,209
(1,012) (1,410)
4,638 (201)
71,594 68,654
12,585 14,805
6,186 3,948
18,771 18,753
95,003 87,206

Consolidated entity
31 December 31 Decembher

2015 2014

$'oco $'000
3,855 3,215
2,785 3,146
6,640 6,361




10 Derivative financial instruments

Current assets
Derivative financial instruments
Total current derivative financial instrument assets

Non-current assets
Derivative financial instruments
Total non-current derivative financial instruments

Current liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Total current derivative financial instrument liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Total non-current derivative financial instrument liabilities
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Consolidated entity
31 Pecember 31 December

2015 2014

$'000 $000
18,431 7,863
18,431 7,863
116,208 75,339
116,208 75,339
{7,273) (32,497)
{7,273) (32,497)
{11,539) (40,151)
{11,539) (40,151)
115,827 10,554




11 Non-current assets - Receivables

Receivables from controlling entities

(a) Receivables from controlling entities

United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

(continued}

Consolidated entity
31 December 31 December

2615 2014
$'000 $'000
1,279,368 1,335,064

A receivable of $1,267M from United Energy Distribution Holdings Pty Ltd has a maturity date of 23 July 2023.
This is an interest free loan and has fair value equal to the nominal value because the borrower may repay the

loan at any time.

Working capital arrangements amounting to $12M with related parties. These receivables are non-interest

bearing and are generally settled on call.

28



United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

12 Non-current assets - Property, plant and equipment

Consolidated entity

At 1 January 2014

Cost or fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2014
Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge

Disposals - at cost

Disposals - accumulated
depreciation

Transfers to intangible assets
Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2014
Cost or fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge

Disposals - at cost

Transfers to intangible assets
Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2015
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

(continued)

Freehold Plantand In course of
Freehold land buildings equipment construction Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2,658 5,384 2,691,269 187,945 2,887,256
- (2,998)  (1,008,334) - (1,011,332)
2,658 2,386 1,682,935 187,945 1,875,924
2,658 2,386 1,682,935 187,945 1,875,924
- 636 172,446 49,576 222,658
- (325) (90,341) - (90,666)
- - (11,367) - (11,367)
- - 7,635 - 7,635
- 2,001 77,473 (80,135) (661)
2,658 4,698 1,838,781 157,386 2,003,523
2,658 8,021 2,933,817 157,386 3,101,882
- (3,323)  (1,095,036) - (1,098,359)
2,658 4,698 1,838,781 157,386 2,003,523
2,658 4,698 1,838,781 157,386 2,003,523
- 278 147,736 67,397 215,411
- (360) (98,373) - (98,733)
- - (5,986) - (5,986)
- 378 114,861 (115,856) (617)
2,658 4,994 1,997,019 108,927 2,113,598
2,658 8,677 2,990,055 108,927 3,110,317
- (3,683) (993,036) - (996,719)
2,658 4,994 1,997,019 108,927 2,113,598
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13 Non-current assets - Intangible assets

Software  AMl intangibles  Licence Total
Consolidated entity $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 1 January 2014
Cost 214,409 87,938 357,200 658,547
Accumulation amortisation and impairment (132,736) {40,874) - (173,610)
Net book amount 81,673 47,0684 357,200 485,937
Year ended 31 December 2014
Opening net book amount 81,673 47,064 357,200 485,937
Additions - acquisition 23,007 11,309 - 34,316
Amorlisation charge (28,714) (15,259) - (43,973}
Transfers from property, plant & equipment 2,554 {1,893} - 661
Closing net book amount 78,520 41,221 357,200 476,941
Cost 240,306 97,354 357,200 694,860
Accumulation amortisation and impairment (161,786) (56,133) - (217,919)
Net book amount 78,520 41,221 357,200 476,941
Consolidated entity
Year ended 31 December 2015
Qpening net book amount 78,520 41,221 357,200 476,941
Additions - acquisition 27,545 2,410 . 29,955
Amortisation charge (28,928) {13,803) - (42,729)
Transfers fram property, plant & equipment 1,962 (1,345) - 617
Disposals -costs {83) - - (83)
Closing net book amount 79,018 28,483 357,200 464,701
At 31 December 2015
Cost 254,586 98,287 357,200 710,073
Accumulated amortisation {175,568} {69,804) - {245,372)
Net book amount 79,018 28,483 357,200 464,701
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14 Non-current assets - Deferred tax assets

Doubtful debts

Derivative financial instruments
Accident compensation
Environmental

Intellectual property

Other

Movements:
Opening balance
Charged/(credited):
- to profit or loss
- directly to equity
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Consolidated entity
31 December 31 December

2015 2014
$'000 $'000
304 424
42,425 31,815
- 35
825 980
4,638 4,157
3,144 3,125
51,336 40,536
Consolidated entity
40,536 45,154
4,301 6,967
6,499 (11,585)
51,336 40,536
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{continued)

15 Current liabilities - Trade and other payables

Consolidated entity
31 December 31 December

2015 2014

$'000 $'000
Trade payables and accruals 63,030 78,131
Customer deposits 19,392 13,776
Accrued interest 32,627 28,390
Other payables 2 (1)
Payables o controlling entity 3,680 3,680
Goods and services tax (G3T) (receivable)/ payahle 1,529 197

120,260 124,173

{a) Terms and conditions

(i) Trade payables and accruals
Trade payables and accruals are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms.

(i) Accrued interest
Accrued interest payable is non-interest bearing and is settled in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
related loan.

{iii) Payables to controlfing entity
Debt raising costs regarding the stapled securities, payable to UEDH. Non-interest bearing with settlement being
within 12 months.

16 Current liabilities - Borrowings

Consolidated entity
31 December 31 December

2015 2014
$'000 $'000
Unsecured
Guaranteed notes 274,350 -
Total unsecured current borrowings 274,350 -
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17 Provisions
Consolidated entity
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
Non- Nan-
Current  current Total Current current Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'0c0 $'000 $'000
AMI rebate provision 33 . 33 389 - 389
Claims costs 941 - 941 500 - 500
Employee related pravisions 5,009 - 5,099 4,862 - 4,862
Environmental provision - 2,748 2,748 390 2,878 3,268
6,073 2,748 8,821 8,141 2,878 9,019

{a) Employee related provisions

A provision has been created fo reflect contributions required to be paid fo UE & Multinet Pty Ltd if United Energy
withdraws from the current cost sharing agreement.

(b} Environmental provision

Provision has been made in the financial statements for environmental management costs to ensure compliance
with environmental management principles using 1S0 14001 and The Environment Protection Act 1870 (Vic).

A comprehensive review of the contaminated land risk management project was performed in the year and has

resulted in the reduction of the provisions that have been allocated to respond to inherent envirenmental liabilities
on the network.

18 Non-current liabilities - Borrowings

Consolidated entity
31 December 317 December

2015 2014

$'000 $'000
Unsecured
Subordinated loans from controlling entities {a) 263,472 263,472
Guaranteed notes {b) 761,108 714,450
Bank loans (c) 814,500 1,103,500
Loan notes 306,811 264,660
Deferred borrowing costs (d) {7,337} (7,194)
Total unsecured non-current borrowings 2,138,554 2,338,888

{a) Subordinated loans from controliing entities

A payable to Power Partnership Pty Ltd has a maturity date of 23 July 2023 and the interest rate is fixed at 14.8%
per annum.
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18 Non-current liabilities - Borrowings (continued)

(b) Guaranteed notes

UED raised US$365m through a US Private Placement in December 2010, fixed interest at 5.01% for seven
years, maturing 15 December 2017.

UED raised US$100m through a US Private Placement in September 2015, fixed interest at 3.28%, maturing 13
October 2022.

UED raised US$74m through a US Private Placement in September 2015, fixed interest at 3.59%, maturing 13
October 2025.

(c}) Bankloans

The following loan facilities are unsecured:

Asian Debt - $400M (maturity: 24 April 2018), interest BBSY plus margin 1.80%.

Capex Facility Tranche A - $76.5m {maturity: 20 May 2017), interest BBSY plus margin 1.25%.
Revolving Syndicated Facility - $305m (maturity: 20 May 2018), interest BBSY plus margin 1.50%.
WBC Bilateral Facility - $125m {maturity: 01 May 2018), interest BBSY plus margin 1.70%.

Revolving Syndicated Facility - $77m (maturity: 20 May 2018), interest BBSY plus margin 1.30%.
Revolving Syndicated Facility - $120m (maturity: 27 February 2020), interest BBSY plus margin 1.35%.

(d) Loan notes

A$265 million fixed rate notes at 6.25% maturing on 11 April 2017 were issued on 11 April 2012,

UED raised A$42m through a US Private Placement in September 2015, fixed interest at 4.79%, maturing 13
October 2025.

19 Non-current liabilities - Deferred tax liabilities

- Consolidated entity
31 December 31 December

2015 2014
$'000 $'000
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Intangible assets 4,203 5,269
Property, plant and equipment 102,059 85,416
Derivalive financial instruments 41,869 24 961
Other 2,334 708
150,465 116,354

Consolidated entity

Movements:
Opening balance 116,354 94,551
Charged/(credited}):
- profit or loss 34,789 21,803
- directly to equity (678)

150,465 116,354
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20 Non-current liabilities - Other non-current liabilities

Consolidated entity
31 December 31 December

2015 2014

$'000 $'000
Payables to controlling entity 167,407 167,300
167,407 167,300

(a) Terms and conditions

Accrued interest amounting to $167.5M is payable to Power Partnership Pty Ltd and is setfled in accordance with
ihe terms and conditions of the loan {refer note 18).

21 Contributed equity

(a) Share capital

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014
Shares Shares $°000 $'000
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares - fully paid 421,770,972 421,770,972 452,644 452,644
424,770,972 421,770,972 452,644 452,644

There were no movements in ordinary shares during the year.
(b) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the Company, to
participate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up
on shares held.

Ordinary shares entitle their holder to one vote, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the Company.

22 Other reserves and retained earnings

(a) Other reserves

Consolidated entity
31 December 31 December

2015 2014

$'000 $'000
Cash flow hedges {35,319} {18,573)
(35,319) {(18,573)
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22 Other reserves and retained earnings (continued)

(a) Other reserves (continued)

Movements:

Cash flow hedges
Operning balance {18,573} (45,601)
Revaluation - gross 10 {23,923} 38,613
Deferred tax 6, 14, 19 7,177 {11,585}

Balance 31 December (35,319) {18,573}

Hedge reserve - cash flow hedge reserve

The hedge reserve is used to record gains or losses on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that are
recognised directly in equity.

(b) Retained earnings
Movements in retained earnings were as follows:

Consolidated entity
31 December 31 December

2015 2014

$'000 $'000
Balance 1 January 598,773 597,869
Net profit for the period 85,217 904
Balance 31 December 683,990 598,773

23 Remuneration of auditors
During the period the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the parent entity,
its related practices and non-related audit firms:
(a) Ernst & Young
Consolidated entity

Year ended
2015 2014
$ $
Audit and other assurance services
Audit and review of financial statemenis 124,400 122,000
Other assurance services
Audit of regulatory returns 341,700 441,800
Other services 16,300 10,500
358,000 452,300
Total remuneration for audit and other assurance services 482,400 574,300
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24 Contingencies

The Group is subject to claims and other matiers in the ordinary course of business. To the exient these matters
are not provided in the financial report, the matters represent contingencies at 31 December 2015.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities or assets at 31 December 2015 {2014 nif}.

25 Investments in associates

Investments in assaciates are accounted for in the consolidated financial report using the equity method of
accounting and are carried at cost by the parent entily. Information relating to the associates is set out below.

Company's share of:

2015 2014
Ye %
UE & Multinet Pty Ltd 50 50

26 Investments in controlled entities

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liahilities and resuits of the following controlied
entities in accordance with the accounting policy described in note 3:

Country of

Name of entity incorporation Class of shares Equity holding
2015 2014

% %

UEIP Pty Lid Australia Ordinary 10 10
United Energy Finance Pty Lid Australia Ordinary 100 100
Utilities Consulting Services Pty Lid Australia Ordinary 100 100
United Energy Finance Trust Australia Units 100 100
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United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2015

(continued)

27 Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash inflow from operating activities

Consolidated entity

Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
$'000 $000
Profit for the period 85,217 04
Depreciation and amortisation 141,462 134,650
Net (gain) loss on sale of non-current assels 4,193 2,146
Customer contribution in kind (6,808) (7,503)
Discount an loan 151 152
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase} in trade debiors and bills of exchange 50,932 (20,743)
(Increase) in inventories (278) (2,599)
(Increase) decrease in deferred tax assets (4,301) 4,618
(Decrease} increase in trade creditors 1,888 (2,549)
{Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities 34,789 27,871
{Decrease) increase in other provisions (198) 1,346
(Decrease) increase in derivative financial instruments {44,919) 7,692
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 262,128 145,985
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United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd
Directors' declaration
31 December 2015

In the directors' opinion:

(a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 4 to 38 are in accordance with the accounting policies
described in Note 1 to the financial statements, including:

(i) complying with Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements,
to the extent described in Note 1 to the financial statements, and
(i) present fairly, the consolidated entity's financial position as at 31 December 2015 and its financial

performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date, and
(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of directors.

a4
o
Mr Peter Lowe

Director
Melbourne
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Ernst & Young Tel: +61 3 5288 8000
8 Exhibition Street Fax: +61 3 8650 7777
Melbourne VIC 3000 Australia ey.com/au

L GPO Box 67 Melbourne VIC 3001
Building a better

working world

Independent auditor’s report to the directors of United Energy
Distribution Pty Ltd

We have audited the accompanying special purpose financial report of United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd
(“the Licensee™), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the
income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other
explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the Licensee are responsible for the preparation of the financial report and have
determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate to
meet the Regulatory Information Requirements of the Australian Energy Regulator ("AER") and is
appropriate to meet the needs of the directors. The directors are also responsible for such controls as
they determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity’'s preparation of the financial report in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian
professional accounting bodies.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Building a better
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Opinion

In our opinion the financial report of United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd as of and for the year ended 31
December 2015 has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the accounting policies
described in Note 1 to the financial statements and the Regulatory Accounting Information Requirements

of the AER.

Basis of Accounting

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report and which describes
the basis of accounting. The financial report is prepared to assist United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd to
meet the requirements of United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd Regulatory Information Notice issued by the
AER. As a result the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is intended
solely for United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd and the AER and should not be distributed to parties other
than United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd or the AER.

Ernst e ‘/ourus

Ernst & Young
Melbourne
27 April 2016

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation



Appendix E: Reconciliation of Annual RIN to
Statutory Accounts @

UNITED ENERGY
This appendix addresses Section 1c of the Annual RIN.
Revenue
Statutory Accounts Regulatory Accounts Difference

TOTAL 679,230 662,433 16,797
Explanation of difference
Details Amount ‘
AMI Accrual -13,734

T 1
Telvent Settlement 1,770

T 1
Interest 771

T 1
Customer Contributions 27,955

T 1
Unrealised foreign exchange losses 34
TOTAL 16,797
Operating expenditure

l Statutory Accounts l Regulatory Accounts l Difference
Operating Fee 49,179 49,228 -49
T T T 1

Operating Costs 98,968 98,905 63
TOTAL 157,086 157,327 14

Explanation of difference

Detalils ‘ Amount

Overhead Re-classification & Realised 14
Forex gains

Capital expenditure

No difference between statutory and regulatory accounts.

Appendix E - Reconciliation with Statutory Accounts - Version 1.0
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Note: See attached
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UNITED ENERGY

1 Purpose

The purpose of the Fixed Asset Procedure paper is to establish principles by which United Energy
accounts for items of Property, Plant & Equipment and selected Intangible assets in its General
Ledger to ensure fixed asset information is accurately reflected in generating financial and
management reports.

2 Executive Summary

This procedure provides an overview of the capitalisation principles for United Energy. This procedure
has considered accounting, tax, regulatory and business considerations in assessing whether an

asset should be capitalised.

This procedure sets out high level procedures which will enable the fixed asset registers to accurately
record, update, extract and report on fixed asset information in the general ledger for financial and
management reporting, tax, legal and regulatory.

3 Definitions

For purposes of this procedure, unless otherwise stated, the following definitions shall apply:

AASB Australian Accounting Standards Board

Accumulated Depreciation | The total depreciation taken for an asset since it was placed in service.
Also known as life-to-date depreciation and depreciation reserve

Amortisation Amortisation is the systematic allocation of the cost of an intangible
asset over its useful life

AER Australian Energy Regulator

Asset A resource controlled by an entity as a result of past transactions and
from which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the entity.
The common understanding of an asset is that it is an item (tangible or
intangible) that is considered to have an enduring value

Asset Type Either tangible, intangible or in kind

Board The Board of United Energy Distribution Holding Pty Ltd and all of its
subsidiaries, known as UE Group (UE)

Books Shows the financial information regarding the expenditure, depreciation
and treatment of the asset within the Fixed Asset module.

Capex Expenditure incurred on capitalised assets

Capitalised Assets Assets recorded on a fixed asset register that depreciate or amortise
where applicable and have a useful life of more than one year

Uncontrolled when printed
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UNITED ENERGY

Capital Project

A project to build or purchase one or more depreciable or amortisable
fixed assets

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CIRB Capital Investment Review Board

Consumable Spares and spare parts that are consumables are inventory that are
used up/issued/sold or incorporated in other items during construction,
maintenance or repair work. They can be in use over more than one
period.

Depreciate To spread the cost of an asset over its useful life. Depreciation expense
is charged for the asset each period. The total depreciation taken for an
asset is stored in the accumulated depreciation account

DOA Delegation of Authority

Expenditure

This represents costs incurred by United Energy in the operation of the
business

Expenditure incurred is included as operational expenditure attributing

Expensed to the statement of income position for the period (i.e. profit and loss).
It is also referred to as ‘opex’ expenditure.
Fixed Asset An asset owned by the business recorded on the SAP Fixed Asset

Register

Future economic benefit

Is synonymous with the notion of service potential. The future
economic benefit embodied in an asset is the potential to contribute,
directly or indirectly for a period greater than one year, to the flow of
cash and cash equivalents to United Energy

Intangible Asset

An intangible asset is an identifiable asset without physical substance

ITEF

Information Technology Executive Forum

MG

Multinet Group Holding Pty Ltd and all its subsidiaries

Opex expenditure

Refer ‘Expensed’ definition
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UNITED ENERGY

IS Information Systems

IT Information Technology

OMSA Operational and Management Service Agreement. An agreement
between UE and their Service Providers covering multiple issues.

SAP Software used by UE to record and manage it business processes
including the general ledger

Period The time period of 12 months

Procurement policy

This is the policy that provides guidelines and controls for purchasing in
UE & MG

PP&E Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that:
(a) are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes; and
(b) are expected to be used during more than one period

PM Module Plant Maintenance Module of SAP. This module contains operational

information on selected network assets.

Service potential

The total future service capacity of an asset. It is normally determined
by reference to the operating capacity and economic life of an asset.

Spare An item or finished product that is classified as property, plant or
equipment and is not installed or in use. E.g. a spare circuit breaker
Spare part A (replaceable) component or sub-assembly of an item of property,

plant or equipment that is not installed or in use. E.g. Capacitor can

Tangible Asset

Tangible assets are items of PP&E that:

(a) are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes; and

(b) are expected to be used during more than one period

UE United Energy Distribution Holdings Pty Ltd and all of its subsidiaries

Useful life The period over which an asset is expected to be available for use by
an entity

WBS Work Breakdown Structure is a SAP term used to identify expenses

and capital purchases
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UNITED ENERGY

WIP Work In Progress represents capitalised expenditure on assets that are
either not completed, not installed, not available or not ready for use

4 Scope

The procedure is intended to set out guiding principles United Energy should apply when evaluating
whether expenditure should be capitalised or expensed. The procedure identifies types of assets and
covers high level classifications of assets and sets out the significant events that may occur in a fixed
asset register during the life of an asset.

The procedure does not represent a full set of instructions for capitalising an asset but rather a set of
guidelines for assessment. Disclosures are not detailed in this procedure document.

The procedure does not cover intangible assets that are not recorded in the SAP Fixed Asset module
such as goodwill, licences etc.

This procedure does not address:

e Impairment as outlined in AASB136 Impairment of Assets. This is addressed in policy COR-057-
POL

e The justification and approval of expenditure as this is covered in other policies, primarily the
procurement policy, PRO-004-POL

e Insurance of assets as this is covered in insurance policy UE-MGH CI 001
e Leased Assets as outlined in AASB 117 Leases

e Customer Contributions

* Inventories as outlined in AASB 102 Inventories

e Non Current Assets held for sale and Discontinued Operations AASB 5
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UNITED ENERGY

5 Procedure

5.1 Types of Fixed Assets

An asset is a resource controlled by an entity as a result of past transactions and from which future
economic benefits are expected to flow to the entity’. The common understanding of an asset is that
it is an item (tangible or intangible) that is considered to have an enduring value. To be recognised
as an asset it has to have a useful life of more than one year and a measurable value.

Fixed assets on the SAP fixed asset register are categorised as either tangible or intangible assets.

5.1.1 Tangible Fixed Assets:

Where a fixed asset is categorised as tangible, it is classified on the balance sheet as part of
Property, Plant & Equipment and subject to the Australian Accounting Standards Board Standard 116
Property, Plant and Equipment (AASB 116) requirements.

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that:

a) are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for

administrative purposes; and
b) are expected to be used during more than one period.?

A tangible asset is a physical asset i.e. it can be physically seen and touched. Examples include
land, buildings, network assets, plant, equipment, motor vehicles, office furniture etc.

5.1.2 Intangible Fixed Assets:

Where a fixed asset is categorised as intangible, it is classified on the balance sheet as part of
Intangible Assets and subject to the Australian Accounting Standards Board Standard 138 Intangible
Assets (AASB 138) requirements.

An intangible asset is an identifiable asset without physical substance.?

An example of an intangible asset on the fixed asset register is software. There can be other
intangible assets such as goodwill and licences however these are outside the scope of this
procedure.

Refer to the ‘Intangible Expenditure’ section of this procedure for more detail.

5.1.3 In Kind Assets:

" AASB 138, paragraph 8
2 AASB 116, paragraph 6

® Based on the definition in AASB 138, paragraph 8
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UNITED ENERGY

An in-kind asset is an asset or a portion of an asset that is gifted to UE by a customer. The asset
arises where a customer elects to build an asset instead of UE building the asset. Ownership of the
asset to UE is handed over on completion. The customer’s contribution towards the asset is called an
‘in-kind’ contribution.

The value of United Energy’s network assets is increased by the estimate of the value of the ‘in-kind’
portion of the asset and offset with the recognition of revenue for ‘in-kind contributions’. This is similar
to a donation with the distinguishing factor being the customer is required to gift the assets to the
distribution company according to the current regulatory regime. An in-kind asset is also a type of
tangible asset.

5.2 What's the difference between “expensed” and “capitalised”?

Expensed This means that the expenditure incurred is included as operational expenditure attributing
tfo the statement of income position for the period (i.e. profit and loss). It is also referred to as ‘opex’
expenditure.

Capitalised This means that the expenditure is recognised as an asset in the balance sheet and is
depreciated or amortised over the life of the asset which must be greater than one year. lItis also
referred to as ‘capex’ expenditure.

5.3 Identifying Expenditure to be Capitalised

United Energy have no dollar amount threshold for expenditure to be considered of a capex or opex
nature. A common misconception is that the business has a capital threshold of $300, $500 or
$1,000 below which all expenditure is considered to be opex in nature. This is incorrect. All
expenditure must be considered against the statements contained in this procedure for a decision on
whether the expenditure is classified as capex or opex.

Decisions to either capitalise or expense expenditure incurred in relation to the acquisition or
construction of assets is largely a matter of professional judgement. This view is reiterated in the
accounting standards, which offer guidance to help professionals make these decisions but provide
few examples of costs that must be treated as either capital or expense.

If after reading this procedure, further guidance is required, contact the Fixed Asset Accountant.

Recognition Criteria:

There are different criteria for recognising tangible and intangible assets.

Tangible:
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only f,

a) It is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
b) The cost of the item can be measured reliably”.

Intangible:

4 AASB 116, paragraph 7
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UNITED ENERGY

The recognition of an item as an intangible asset requires an entity to demonstrate that the item
meets:
(a) The definition of an intangible asset
i.  Identifiable i.e. it is separable or arises from contractual or other legal rights
ii. — The entity has control over the asset
ii. ~ Future economic benefits must flow from the asset e.g. revenue from the sale of goods or
services, cost savings or other benefits resulting from the use of the asset by the entity
and
(b) The cost of the item can be measured reliably’.

For the elimination of doubt, probable future economic benefits means the asset is expected to be
used during more than one period, i.e. greater than one year.

It is worth noting that expenditure is capitalised until an item of property, plant and equipment is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.® This will need to be assessed on an asset by asset basis as management intentions
may change on completion of an asset. Refer to the ‘Exception’ under ‘Information Services
Expenditure Classification’ section of this procedure for an example.

This means allowable expenditure can be accumulated as capital up to the time the asset is installed
and ready for use, after which, certain expenditure must then be expensed.

Allowable Expenditure for Capitalisation under the Accounting Standards i.e. Capex:

AASB 116 para 11 Items of property and equipment may be acquired for safety and environment reasons.
Such acquisitions although possibly not directly increasing the future economic benefits of
any existing item of PP&E may be necessary for an entity to obtain a future economic
benefit from its other assets. For instance, the expenditure of upgrading plant and
equipment to meet more stringent environmental regulations could be capitalised on the
basis that the business could not operate the assets and derive an income without first
meeting the regulations and incurring the expenditure.

AASB 116 para 13 | Partial replacement of an asset can be capitalised where this contributes to future
economic benefits of the asset in that they either:

o Extend the useful life of an asset

e |mprove its output

e Reduce the operating cost of the asset.
The carrying amount of the parts that are replaced needs to be identified and retired.
Repairs and maintenance costs are excluded from being capitalised, refer to ‘Disallowable
Expenditure for Capitalisation under Accounting Standards’ in this procedure.

AASB 116 para 14 Costs incurred in performing regular major inspections for faults regardless of whether parts
of the existing assets are replaced. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of previous
inspection must first be derecognised.

AASB 116 para 16 | The purchase price of an item of PP&E, including import duties and non-refundable
(@) purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

AASB 116 para | Any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
e for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

5 AASB 138, paragraph 11 to 24

5 AASB 116, paragraph 20
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UNITED ENERGY

AASB 116 para | The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site
16(c) on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either:

e when the item is acquired; or

e as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period.
Note: These costs may arise under a legal or constructive obligation per AASB 137
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, paragraph 14 (a).

AASB 116 para | Costs of employee benefits (as defined in AASB 119 Employee Benefits) arising directly

1¥(a) from the construction or acquisition of the item of property, plant and equipment.
?«_;\(2)8 116 para | Costs of site preparation.
{l’\;\(S)B 116 para | |nitial delivery and handling costs.
C
:;\?(353 116  para | |nstallation and assembly costs.
AASB 116 para | Cost of testing whether the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds
17(e) from selling any items produced while bringing the asset to that location and condition

(such as samples produced when testing equipment).

G)ASB 116 para 17 | Professional fees. Note training is not included as part of professional fees.

AASB 116 para 49 | Depreciation of pre-existing assets employed in the production of a new asset (i.e.
depreciation expense directly attributable to equipment used in the construction of network
asset).

AASB 116 para 22 The cost of a self-constructed asset is determined using the same principles as for an
acquired asset.

This means a self-constructed asset's cost includes direct material, direct labour, any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management and an appropriate proportion
of any directly attributable production overheads.

AASB 123 (12) Interest (or borrowing costs) associated with funds borrowed expressly for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying assets. A qualifying asset is defined in AASB 123 para 5 as ‘An
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale'.

UIG 1031 para 7 GST that is not recoverable from the tax authorities.

In addition to the above expenditure may be capitalised where it has been incurred to remove an
asset and replace it with another asset and this expenditure is incidental, difficult to separate from the
overall expenditure and also incurred to install the replacement asset, E.g. if a pole is being replaced,
the labour cost incurred to remove the old pole before the replacement pole can be installed may be
capitalised. If expenditure is incurred to remove an existing asset without installing a new asset then
this expenditure must be expensed as it has no future economic benefit.

All expenditure to be capitalised is subject to the “measurement at recognition” criteria as per AASB
116 paragraph 15 & AASB 138 paragraphs 18 to 24 which requires all capitalised expenditure to be
measured at its cost.

Disallowable Expenditure for Capitalisation under the Accounting Standards

AASB 116 para12 | The costs of day-to-day servicing of the asset. This may include labour and
consumables and the cost of small parts. The purpose of these expenditures is often
described as ‘repairs and maintenance'. Expenditure that does not increase the level of
economic benefits that flow from the use of an asset in future periods must be treated as
expense when incurred.

%\(5;3 116 para | Costs of opening a new facility.
a

AASB 116 para | Costs of introducing a new product or service (including costs of advertising and
19(b) promotional activities).

):\Q(S)B 116 para | Costs of conducting business in a new location or with a new class of customer.
C
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AASB 116 para
19(c), AASB 138
para 15 and AASB
138 para 67(c)

Costs of staff training. An entity may have a team of skilled staff and may be able to
identify incremental staff skills leading to future economic benefits from training. The
entity may also expect that the staff will continue to make their skills available to the
entity. However, an entity usually has insufficient control over the expected future
economic benefits arising from a team of skilled staff and from training for these items to
meet the definition of an intangible asset.

?g«(ﬁ)B 116 para | Administration and other general overhead costs.
/2‘\(/)*(3)3 116 para | Costs of relocating or reorganising part or all of an entity's operations. This means the
C

relocation costs of moving an existing physical asset from one location to another cannot
be capitalised.

AASB 116 para 20

Costs are excluded from capital once the asset is in the location and condition necessary
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

AASB 116 para 21

Incidental income or expense generated by the asset prior to it being capable of being
used for its intended purposes.

AASB 116 para 22

The cost of abnormal amounts of wasted material, labour or other resources included in
self-constructing an asset.

UIG 1031 para 6

GST that is recoverable from the tax authorities.

AASB 116 para 48

Depreciation expense, unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset as per
AASB 116 para 49.

AASB 138 para 97

Amortisation of intangible assets unless AASB 138 or another accounting standard

permits or requires it to be included in the carrying amount of an asset.

5.4

Capital Expenditure has various types of categories as outlined in the sections above. This section outlines the
framework of documents that establish the procurement and financial controls over the capital expenditure
within the UE business for each category of capital.

Capital Expenditure Financial and Procurement Controls

Some non network projects are also governed by individual steering committees.

5.4.1 Capital Expenditure Procurement Controls

There are a number of documents that create a procurement capital expenditure control framework. Each
document contains specific controls within the capital expenditure process. The documents (other than this
procedure) include:

e Procurement Policy — Provides Guidelines and controls for all expenditure procurement
e Procurement Manual — Provides procedural approach for purchasing

e Delegation of Authority Policy — Establishes purchasing authority

e Accounts Payable Policy — Provides overview of controls over payments for all expenditure

5.4.2 Capital Expenditure Financial Controls

There are a number of documents that establish the financial controls for capital expenditure. Each document
contains specific controls within the capital expenditure process. The documents (other than this procedure)
include:

» Investment Management Procedure — Controls capital allocation in SAP
Annual Budgeting Policy — Controls the total allowed expenditure for the financial year
Forecasting Policy — Provides controls over expected capital expenditure for the forecast period to
compare against the approved budget.

» CIRB Charter — Review of capital expenditure especially capital expenditure greater than $1m and any
capital expenditure that may impact UE's risk profile (this is discussed further below).
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e |T Project Financial Management Process

5.4.3 CIRB Sub Categories and OMSA Capital Expenditure Controls

The CIRB will review and endorse business cases in excess of $1M that fall within its Charter. The categories
of UE capital expenditure are shown below.

Capex Category Definition

Standing Capex This relates to expenditure as detailed in the OMSA where there are prescribed
rates with corresponding thresholds. This expenditure is incorporated into the
annual capital expenditure budget. This is approved prior to the start of the
financial year by the GM — Electricity Networks and General Manager Service

Delivery.
Individual Capex This relates to capital expenditure on individual projects and is governed via a
Projects tiered process.

e Small - less than $20k

e Medium - between $20k and $100k

e Large - greater than $100k

# Refer to the Delegation of Authority Policy for approval thresholds.

Customer Initiated This relates to projects initiated by customers, the expenditure for which is
Capital (CIC) governed by a tiered process under the OMSA.

e Small - less than $50k

* Medium - between $50k and $200k

e Large - greater than $200k

# Refer to the Delegation of Authority Policy for approval thresholds. The
CIRB will review any offer that is greater than $1M and either has major
network implications or is a non-standard Customer Contribution (not in
accordance with Guideline 14 of the Electricity Industry guideline).

Non - Network This relates to any capital expenditure not directly related to the network. For
Distribution example building a new fence at Burwood depot, service provider fleet purchases
etc.

5.4.4 Non CIRB Direct Capital Expenditure Controls

This category of capital Expenditure is governed by budget that are allocated each financial year.

Capex Category Definition
Non Network Other Non Network Other includes work on non network assets paid directly by UE.
It includes

¢ |n house fleet purchases, accommodation fitout and
e Miscellaneous non network capital expenditure.

5.4.5 IT Executive Forum Capital Expenditure Controls

This category of IT capital Expenditure is governed by budget that are allocated each financial year. Refer to the
Delegation of Authority Policy for approval tiers.

Capex Category Definition

IT Executive Forum e All projects over $500k have a business case approved by the Head of
Information Technology and the relevant delegate under the DOA policy.
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ITEF endorses expenditure above $500k. ITEF is the IT equivalent of the
CIRB and consists primarily of Executive membership.

5.5 Capital Work in Progress

At any time, United Energy is involved in the construction of capital projects. Expenditure incurred in
relation to these projects is recorded in one and/or two Work in Progress (WIP) general ledger
accounts, tangible and intangible WIP. The expenditure is recorded against capital projects in SAP
(via the use of a WBS), until the asset(s) under the project are in the location and condition necessary
for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management i.e. physically complete.

As tangible assets are required to be classified in the balance sheet as part of PP&E and intangible
asset are required to be classified in the balance sheet as an intangible, it is necessary for all capital
projects to be established in SAP with separate WBS projects for their tangible and intangible
components. This requirement is most commonly required for IS projects where hardware is
purchased and software is either purchased and/or developed in-house. It is therefore necessary to
also assign the correct tangible or intangible WBS element to all expenditure under the project.

A project is considered complete when the asset(s) are in the location and condition necessary for
them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. When a project is
complete, the value of capital accumulated in WIP must be transferred to final, depreciating or
amortising assets in a timely manner.

There may be projects where there is a difference between physical completion and financial
completion of a project.

Physical completion means the asset(s) are in the location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. For intangible projects, this means the
software has gone live and is production i.e. the ‘go-live’ date.

Financial completion means the project is physically complete and also all expected expenditure
incurred on the project has been charged to the project.

There can be significant time differences on major and even minor projects between physical and
financial completeness. It is not uncommon for differences of 9-12 months.

Projects must be cleared from WIP:

(a) When the project is first considered to be physically complete
(b) Then each month thereafter when further expenditure has been incurred on the physically
complete project.

When the last costs have been incurred on the project, the final transfer from WIP should be
processed and the capital project closed.

It is the responsibility of IT, service providers and other departments within UE to review WIP. The
Management Accountant of each area must provide the Fixed Asset Accountant evidence of the
review on a three monthly basis via email, completed within four weeks of each quarter end. The UE
WIP KPI should be referenced to form the basis of the review.

The Fixed Asset Accountant is responsible for reporting non-compliance with this procedure to their
Manager.
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5.6 Intangible Expenditure

Intangible project expenditure can be capitalised where they meet the definition and recognition
criteria for a tangible asset under AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment or for an intangible asset
under AASB 138 Intangible Assets. Information Technology hardware is a tangible asset, falling
under AASB 116 while software and deferred expenditure is considered an intangible asset, falling

under AASB 138.

Computer software for a computer-controlled machine tool that cannot operate without that specific
software is an integral part of the related hardware and is treated as PP&E. The same applies to the
operating system of a computer. When the software is not an integral part of the related hardware,
computer software is treated as an intangible asset.” This is usually referred to as application
software.

The ability to capitalise intangible expenditure under AASB 138 is a two step process.?
The first step is for the expenditure to meet the identifiability criterion®.

(a) [the item] is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the entity and sold,
transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related
contract, identifiable asset or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or

(b) [the item] arises from contractual or other legal rights, regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.

The second step is for the expenditure to meet the recognition criteria:

(a) it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the entity; and
(b) the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

5.6.1 Internally Generated

Internally generated intangible assets must be classified into either a research phase or a
development phase.

(a) Research is original and planned investigation undertaken with the prospect of gaining new
scientific or technical knowledge and understanding."" In the research phase of an internal
project, an entity cannot demonstrate that an intangible asset exists that will generate probable
future economic benefits so the expenditure is expensed when it is incurred. > Examples of
research activities are'®:

7 AASB 138, paragraph 4

8 AASB 138, paragraph 18

¢ AASB 138, paragraph 12(a) & 12(b)
% AASB 138, paragraph 21 (a) & 21(b)
" AASB 138, paragraph 8

2 AASB 138, paragraphs 54 & 55

* AASB 138, paragraph 56
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i.  activities aimed at obtaining new knowledge
i. the search for, evaluation and final selection of, applications of research findings or other
knowledge
iii. the search for alternatives for materials, devices, products, processes, systems or
services; and
iv.  the formulation, design, evaluation and final selection of possible alternatives for new or
improved materials, devices, products, processes, systems or services.
An example of the research phase would be activities completed prior to the development of a
business case.

(b) Development is the application of research findings or other knowledge to a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved materials, devices, products, processes, systems or
services before the start of commercial production or use.' In the development phase of an
internal project, an entity can, in some instances, identify an intangible asset and demonstrate that
the asset will generate probable future economic benefits. This is because the development
phase of a project is further advanced than the research phase.’® Examples of development
activities are:®

i.  the design, construction and testing of pre-production or pre-use prototypes and models
ii. the design of tools, jigs, moulds and dies involving new technology
iii.  the design, construction and operation of a pilot plant that is not of a scale economically
feasible for commercial production; and
iv.  the design, construction and testing of a chosen alternative for new or improved materials,
devices, products, processes, systems or services.

Expenditure relating to the development phase may be capitalised if the entity can demonstrate
all of the following:"

(a) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale

(b) its intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it

(c) its ability to use or sell the intangible asset

(d) how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits. Among other things,
the entity can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the intangible asset or
the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset

(e) the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

(f) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

5.6.2 Information Services Expenditure Classification

“ AASB 138, paragraph 8
> AASB 138, paragraph 58
" AASB 138, paragraph 59

7 AASB 138, paragraph 57
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The following are examples of Information Services expenditure reflecting scenarios where the
expenditure may be either capitalised or expensed.

e Hardware maintenance support incurred at the same time as the initial capitalisation of the
hardware. This support is typically for a period between twelve months and three years. United
Energy capitalise the expenditure of this support against the asset as it is deemed to be necessarily
incurred in bringing the asset into use.

e Hardware maintenance support incurred subsequent to the initial capitalisation of the hardware.
This is typically support for a 12 month period. United Energy do not capitalise this expenditure.
There are no future economic benefits to United Energy beyond a 12 month period so the
expenditure cannot be considered to be capital in nature. Such expenditure may be initially
classified in the balance sheet as a prepayment and recognised as an expense in the profit and
loss over the 12 months of the maintenance period.

e Software maintenance support incurred at the same time as the initial purchase of the software.
This support is typically for a period of 12 months. United Energy capitalise the expenditure of this
support against the asset as it is deemed to be necessarily incurred in bringing the asset into use.

» Software maintenance support incurred subsequent to the initial capitalisation of the software. This
is treated the same as hardware maintenance support incurred subsequent to the initial
capitalisation of the hardware.

e Software licence fees. If the licence is for a 12 month period United Energy do not capitalise this
expenditure. If the licence is for a period beyond 12 months it may be capitalised and amortised
over the shorter of the period of the license or United Energy’s useful life for software.

5.6.2.1 Exception

The exception to the above is where expenditure that would otherwise not be allowed to be
capitalised is necessarily incurred in bringing the asset into the condition necessary for use. Such
expenditure ceases to be capitalised when the item is in the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

This means that expenditure on items such as 12 month hardware and software maintenance may be
capitalised up to the ‘go-live’ date of the project as part of the overall software asset(s) capitalised for
the project. After the ‘go-live’ date any annual software maintenance cannot be capitalised and must
be treated as outlined above.

5.6.3 Information Services Cloud Expenditure

5.6.3.1 Overview

Broadly, cloud services are computing services provided over the internet, and paid for as they are
used.

In reality, solutions that utilise cloud services will often also include the creation of a capital asset as
part of that solution.

« The solution may include an integration layer, so that the cloud services can interact with
existing UE and MG systems. That integration layer is likely to be a capital asset.
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+ Or the solution may utilise some cloud services, but include built or licensed software capital
assets of various kinds in addition to the cloud service.

So there will be components of the solution that need to be treated as Capex, and components that
need to be treated as Opex.

5.6.3.2 General

Components of a solution that are cloud based, and paid for on a ‘pay as you go’ basis, are treated as
Opex.

Components of a solution that are built or licensed up front are treated as Capex, unless the period of
the license is less than or equal to 12 months, in which case the expenditure is treated as Opex.

If a solution includes Capex components, the project to deliver the solution is a capital project and
those components that are cloud based ‘pay as you go’ components are treated as Capex up until the
go-live date.

* Training is always Opex

* Relocating assets is always Opex

If something is built or licensed as Capeyx, it needs to remain in the ownership of UE in order to
stand as Capex

* The asset must provide future economic benefit for longer than 12 months to be classified as
Capex

If a project commences as a Capex project, but does not proceed, the expenditure should be
reclassified to Opex

Trials, pilots, proofs of concept and research expenditure, for the purpose of learning or
evaluating, are always Opex.

5.6.3.3 General Types of Cloud Services for deployment of software

Type of Cloud Services on | Component Explanation
which business software
can be deployed

1. Business Software on | Deploy/License your own | The applications on top of this platform are Capex,

Infrastructure  as a | applications because UE build or license them as assets that
Service have future economic benefit for more than 12
months.

Deploy/License your own | The platforms on top of this cloud are Capex,
platforms because UE build or license them as assets that
have future economic benefit for more than 12
months.
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Type of Cloud Services on
which business software
can be deployed

Component

Explanation

Infrastructure as a Service
(Cloud)

(Pay as you go alternative
to purchasing hardware.
Eg AWS storage service)

No data centre, instead the infrastructure is
provided as a service.

The infrastructure as a service is Opex, but it can
be capitalized as part of the above Capex project
up until the go live date provided the expenditure
incurred is incremental and is the result of
developing/testing activities post the research
phase.

2. Business Software on
Platform as a Service

Deploy/License your own
applications

The applications on top of this cloud are Capex,
because UE build or license them as assets that
have future economic benefit for more than 12
months.

Platform as a Service
(Cloud)

(Pay as you go alternative
to purchasing tools and
technology systems. E.g.
database systems or
development frameworks
in the cloud.)

No data centre, instead the platforming is provided
as a service.

The platform as a service is Opex, but it can be
capitalized as part of the above Capex project up
until the go live date provided the expenditure
incurred is incremental and is the result of
developing/testing activities post the research
phase.

Includes Infrastructure
(Cloud)

No data centre, instead the infrastructure is
provided as a service.

The infrastructure as a service is Opex, but it can
be capitalized as part of the above Capex project
up until the go live date provided the expenditure
incurred is incremental and is the result of
developing/testing activities post the research
phase.
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Type of Cloud Services on | Component Explanation
which business software
can be deployed
3. Business Software as a | Software as a Service* Everything including the business application is
Service provided as a service.
(Pay as you go for
applications. E.g. The application as a service is Opex. However, it
Procurement System, can be capitalized if it is implemented as part of a
HRIS system, Gmail) Capex project, up until the go live date, provided
the expenditure incurred is for activities post the
*This includes the | research phase.
platform and infrastructure
Integration with existing UE systems might be
required. If so, then the project to build an
integration layer, so that the cloud software can
integrate with existing UE systems, could be a
Capex project, provided that UE build or license an
asset that has future economic benefit for more
than 12 months.

5.7 Easements

5.7.1 Easement definition

An easement is a right held by one entity to make specific, limited use of land owned by another
entity. An easement is granted by the owner of the property for the convenience, or ease, of the
person using the property.

Common easements include

. the right to pass across the property

. the right to construct and maintain a roadway across the property

. the right to construct a pipeline or a power line on or over the land.

Easements may be granted by government bodies, companies or individuals and may or may not be
acquired for a fee.

5.7.2 Easement expenditure classification

Irrespective of whether easements are compulsory acquired or by agreement, amounts paid are
capitalised.

The amounts capitalised do not have a specific fixed asset class, and are capitalised as part of the
relevant project.

Amounts will be classified as land on the fixed asset register where a clear title is secured.
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5.8 Overhead Allocation

Expenditure can only be capitalised to a project where the underlying asset is clearly identifiable. This
means that any overhead expenditure may only be capitalised if it can be directly attributable to an
underlying asset or a group of underlying assets. As a result of this, all capitalised overhead must be
allocated to the individual capital project(s) to which it relates as opposed to accumulating all
overhead into one capital project. If the overhead expenditure cannot be allocated to an appropriate
individual project(s), the overhead expenditure must be expensed when incurred.

As an example the Capital Project Estimator labour time may be included as part of capitalised
overhead attributable to a group of projects in any given month.

In some instances it may be deemed that a portion of an employee’s labour cost may be directly
attributable to a project(s). In these circumstances the capital portion of the project related
expenditure may be capitalised to a group of projects in any given month.

5.9 Allocation of Assets between Entities

One physical asset can only be owned by one company. In some cases the physical asset may only
be a part, but the part must be a recognisable separate component. This means that with the
exception of the below, there can be no percentage allocation of an individual tangible asset between
United Energy and Multinet Gas or any other entity.

If a percentage allocation is required, the value for each individual tangible asset must still be 100%
allocated to one entity but the apportionment can be achieved by assigning individual assets between
the two entities. For example if two vehicles were purchased, with a 50% allocation to United Energy
and a 50% allocation to Multinet Gas, United Energy should be charged with the value of one vehicle
and Multinet Gas charged with the value of the other vehicle. This means United Energy would own
100% of one vehicle rather than owning 50% of two vehicles.

Where the development of the software is unique and for the sole benefit of only one business, no
issue arises with regard to financial allocation of capital expenditure. Where the development of the
software is for the benefit of multiple business, each business will receive an asset on the basis of
either their financial contribution to the total project expenditure or based on their intended use of the
software e.g. user based. The basis for the allocation should be detailed in the business case.

5.9.1 Exception

Shared assets are allowed where there is an agreement covering separation'®. E.g. assets subject to
the Joint Business Agreement Term Sheet. Such assets include IT Services, IT Assets, IT Projects
and accommodation fit-out capital expenditure.

'® As per email from David Strang 24 December 2012 at 11:47am
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5.10 Spares

In summary, spares and spare parts may be transferred to PP&E from inventory where the underlying
asset’s original useful life is extended or improved and where such items are expected to be used for
longer than one period.

Spares and spare parts are initially classified as property, plant and equipment where such items are
expected to be used over more than one period and are a standalone item, however, this excludes
parts and consumables used in day to day servicing of the asset.

If spares and spare parts do not meet this definition, such items are classified as inventory. Spares
and spare parts are initially classified as inventory when they do not result in an extension of the
useful life of an asset or significantly enhance its net value, or improve the asset beyond the asset’s
original condition/specification/modern day equivalent. These parts are normally expensed when
consumed because when used in such a manner they would be considered repairs and maintenance.

Distribution transformers and meters are an exception to the above. These are initially held as
inventory and upon installation are transferred to PP&E, where they are used as a component of or as
a whole of a self-constructed asset. Once transferred to PP&E these are recognised as an expense
during the useful life of the asset via depreciation.

Once classified as PP&E, when the asset becomes idle or is removed from the network from active
use:

* The balance sheet classification does not change; and
o Depreciation does not cease unless the asset is fully depreciated.

Below are some examples of spares and spare parts and their classification when they are initially
purchased:

Spare or spare part description Classified as Classified as
PP&E Inventory

Zone substation transformer v *
Circuit breaker (complete unit) v %
On-load tap changer x v
66kV Bushing (Transformer) x v
22kV Bushing x v
Current Transformer — Outdoor (e.g. 66kV Post Type) v *
Current Transformer — switchboard (Indoor Type) x v
ACR/RCGS/RMU v x
Underground Cable x v
Any switchboard component that is not a cubicle or Circuit x v
Breaker

Capacitor Can x v
Distribution Transformer x v
Meter ¥
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5.11 Depreciation

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the cost of a tangible asset over its useful life.
Land is not depreciated as it is assumed to last indefinitely.

Buildings, machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, computers, cars, and trucks are examples of
assets that will last for more than one year, but will not last indefinitely. During each accounting
period a portion of the cost of these assets is being used up. The portion being used up is reported as
depreciation expense on the income statement. In effect depreciation is the transfer of a portion of the
asset's cost from the balance sheet to the income statement during each year of the asset's life.

A fundamental accounting concept is the matching principle. This principle requires a business to
match expenses with related income in order to report a company’s profitability during a specified time
interval. For tangible assets this is done by depreciation.

This principle requires that the asset's cost be allocated to depreciation expense over the life of the
asset. In effect the cost of the asset is divided up with some of the cost being reported on each of the
income statements issued during the life of the asset. By assigning a portion of the asset's cost to
various income statements, the business is matching a portion of the asset's cost with each period in
which the asset is used.

5.12 Amortisation

Amortisation is the systematic allocation of the cost of an intangible asset over its useful life. In all
other respects the explanation for amortisation is the same as the explanation for depreciation.

5.13 Depreciation / Amortisation Start & Finish

Depreciation and amortisation of an asset should commence when an asset is available for use, that
is, when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. ' Taking this date into account, United Energy commences
depreciation from the first day of the next month.

Depreciation for PP&E spares will commence from the first day of the next month that the spare is
available for use. Although the spare may not be in the location and condition necessary (installed)
for use (or may never be used) the spare should be depreciated over time due to the risk of obsolesce
or technology change, reflecting general deterioration which means there is a decline in future
economic benefit.

Depreciation and amortisation does not cease when an asset becomes idle or removed from active
use, unless the asset is fully depreciated.

Depreciation and amortisation ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for
sale and the date that the asset is retired, subject to materiality.?°

'® AASB 116, paragraph 55

20 AASB 116, paragraph 55 & AASB 138 paragraph 97
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The amount of depreciation or amortisation charged against an asset in the month of disposal is
based on the asset value date used on the asset retirement:

Asset value date used Amount of depreciation or amortisation charge in the
month of disposal

Between the 15t and the 15t day of the month None

From the 16" day to the end of the month A full month

5.14 Method of Depreciation and Amortisation

For tangible assets a variety of depreciation methods can be used to allocate the depreciable amount
of an asset on a systematic basis over its useful life. These methods include the straight-line method,
the diminishing balance method and the units of production method. ?'

For intangible assets the amortisation method used shall reflect the pattern in which the asset’s future
economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the entity. If that pattern cannot be determined
reliably, the straight-line method shall be used.??

United Energy always use a straight line method of depreciation and amortisation for accounting
purposes.

Where an asset’s useful life is changed during the life of the asset, depreciation or amortisation is
then allocated using a straight line method based on the remaining life of the asset.

5.15 Useful Life

Useful life is the period over which an asset is expected to be available for use by an entity?®.

The estimation of the useful life of the asset is a matter of judgement based on the experience of the
entity with similar assets.?* The useful life should be determined taking into account the following
factors:

Physical life This requires an estimate of the period of time the asset is expected to be used. It is usually
an outer limit of an asset’s effective life.

Engineering An analysis of engineering information and manufacturer's specification. The life of a new
information asset may differ from that achieved in the past due to advances in technology, different
materials, intensity of use and the level of repairs and maintenance.

Industry norm The useful life used by other similar business for the same asset obtained via sources such
as the internet, regulatory information or Australian Taxation Office useful lives

21 AASB 116, paragraph 62
22 AASB 138, paragraph 97
# AASB 116, paragraph 6

2 AASB116, paragraph 57

Uncontrolled when printed
FAM-022-PRO — UE Fixed Asset Procedure
© 2015 United Energy Creating the Intelligent Utility 24|Page




Fixed Asset Procedure (Q

UNITED ENERGY

Intensity of use | The intensity of use can have a direct impact on the asset'’s effective life.

Repairs and | The effective life of an asset may end when it is no longer economic to maintain it, even
maintenance though it may be possible to do so.

Renewals The estimate of when the asset will be wholly or substantially physically replaced.

Lease periods Assets such as fixtures and fittings in leased premises should be depreciated over the
shorter of their estimated useful life or the lease term.

Obsolescence Can occur due to a number of factors including technical, regulatory or environmental

Normally the useful life adopted by an asset is the default useful life assigned against the fixed asset
class the asset is held against in the fixed asset module of SAP.

The reason for the actual useful life adopted as the default useful life on an asset class must be
documented and approved by the Fixed Asset Accountant’s manager.

The useful life may differ from the default life for individual assets if, after taking into account the
factors above, it is more appropriate to adopt a different useful life. Where a different useful life is
adopted the reason for the useful life should be documented in the long text description field against
the asset on the fixed asset register. The Fixed Asset Accountant is responsible for making such
decisions. If the individual asset’s life varies from the asset class default and the acquisition cost is:

e below $200k no further authorisation is required for the use of the different useful life
e above $200k the Fixed Asset Accountant should recommend the different useful life and is
required to obtain authorisation from the Fixed Asset Accountant’s manager.

In some cases it is appropriate to adopt a remaining life to an asset. For example IT disk drives fit
within an enterprise storage box/frame. Upon purchase of a frame, the life assigned to the drives held
within the frame should be the same as the life of the frame. If additional disk drives, held within the
same frame, are added at a later date, the life to assign to the additional drive should be that of the
remaining life of the frame. Where a remaining life is adopted no authorisation for the adoption of the
remaining life is required.

Some assets are subject to continuous improvement such as SAP software enhancements. Where
this occurs, such improvements may adopt a useful life from the time of the improvement
implementation recorded in the fixed asset register in calendar year annual blocks, rather than
adopting a remaining life from the initial implementation.

Land and Work In Progress assets are not depreciated or amortised.

5.16 Retirement

Retiring an asset means removing it from United Energy’s balance sheet i.e. derecognising the asset.
This occurs upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Where an asset is no longer contributing future economic benefit to the business, the asset must be
retired from the fixed asset register. This may be at a different time from the physical disposal of the
asset for tangible assets. E.g. a motor vehicle will no longer be in use when it has been sent to
auction but there may be a delay of weeks before the auction occurs, the proceeds from the auction
are received and therefore before the retirement can be processed.
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The most common type of retirement is the scrapping of a network asset (e.g. a pole) where no
proceeds are received from its disposal. Other examples where an asset retirement is required
include where assets are lost, stolen, damaged, sold, traded-in or removed from service with no
intention to be reinstalled or written off as a result of an asset register review (refer Annex C).

Where an asset is removed from service and is cannibalised for spare parts, the asset is unlikely to
contribute any material future economic benefit and so the asset should be retired.

Assets are not retired from the fixed asset register when their accounting written down value becomes
zero. An asset that is fully depreciated and continues to be used in the business will be reported on
the balance sheet at its cost along with its accumulated depreciation. No entry is required until the
asset is disposed of through retirement, sale, etc.

The exception to this is for certain aged assets that are difficult to keep adequate inventory control
over for accounting purposes. These are usually various low value assets grouped on the asset
register under one asset number for each calendar year e.g. miscellaneous tools and equipment. For
these assets no details are kept on the fixed asset register so it will be unknown when each individual
asset making up the original value is physically disposed. An annual review of the fixed asset register
to identify these fully written down assets should occur and these assets retired from the fixed asset
register (refer Annex C).

5.16.1 Sale

For an asset to be sold there must be proceeds. Where an asset can be sold, the amount of the
proceeds requested from the purchaser of the asset should be determined taking into consideration
the market value of the asset. The asking price must be inclusive of GST.

The accounting written down value is not the amount at which the asset should be sold. An asset can
only be sold at the price that a buyer is prepared to pay for it. This may or may not be close to the
accounting written down value.

All assets must be sold in an “as is condition” with no warranty/no guarantee/no support/buyer beware
status.

In the absence of a readily available market value or the goods are not sold at arm’s length then the
sale must document the reasoning for the disposal price.

All sales must have a tax invoice or a recipient created tax invoice which states details of the asset.
The Fixed Asset Accountant must be notified of the sale and provided with a copy of the tax invoice or
the recipient created tax invoice.

Any expenses incurred in disposing of the asset should be deducted from the proceeds for the
purposes of calculating the profit or loss on disposal of the asset.

Computers must have all licensed software and business information deleted before being sold or
disposed. In the case of computers sold, the original operational software is to be re-installed on the
machine. All trademarks or logos must be removed before handover of the asset to the buyer.

5.16.2 Other Proceeds

The Fixed Asset Accountant must be notified of the receipt of any proceeds for any retirement.
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5.16.2.1 Scrap Proceeds

Under the Operational and Management Service Agreement (OMSA), any net proceeds received as a
result of the disposal of United Energy assets belongs to United Energy. Net proceeds means the
gross proceeds received less any costs incurred in disposing of the asset.

If the cost of disposal is greater than the gross proceeds, United Energy pay the Service Provider the
difference. The difference is accounted for as opex expenditure.

Please refer to the procurement policy to appoint an approved seller for scrap material.
Generally there are two types of proceeds received:

(a) Proceeds for the scrap metal value of many former miscellaneous network assets, accumulated
into a skip for disposal. Once the skip is full, proceeds are received for the value of the scrap
metal contained in the skip. As these proceeds are not for individually identifiable assets, the
net proceeds will be accounted for as miscellaneous revenue

(b) Proceeds for the scrap associated with the disposal of larger individually identifiable assets e.g.
transformers in zone substations which contain metals and oil. In such cases the net proceeds
received will be accounted for as proceeds received on the disposal of fixed assets.

All net proceeds are not to be accounted for as an offset against capital expenditure.

The AMI meter contracts allow scrap value to be kept by the contractors installing the AMI meters.

5.16.2.2 Public Lighting Proceeds

Existing public lighting is being retrofitted with sustainable public lighting by some councils. In such
cases the AER annually review the distributors compensation allowed for the early retirement of the
existing public lights. The compensation allowed by the AER is the proceeds on the retirement of the
fixed asset.

5.16.3 Trade in

The Fixed Asset Accountant must be notified and provided with all support documentation when any
asset(s) is traded in.

Any value attributed to an asset on trade in will constitute proceeds on disposal. An accounting
journal will need to be processed which increases the value of the new asset.

The asset being traded in will be retired from the fixed asset register with the trade in value creating a
profit or loss dependant on the written down value.

All trade in transactions must have a tax invoice or a recipient created tax invoice which states details
of the asset. The asking price must be inclusive of GST.

5.17 Authorisation of the retirement of an asset

Assets held in the fixed asset registers are retired by a number of different ways.

Refer Annex A which sets out the various processes applicable to retirement of the different classes
of assets.

Uncontrolled when printed
FAM-022-PRO - UE Fixed Asset Procedure
© 2015 United Energy Creating the Intelligent Utility 27|Page



Fixed Asset Procedure (ﬂ

UNITED ENERGY

5.18 Fixed Assets Registers

United Energy operates three fixed assets registers. These are:

a) Accounting
b) Federal Tax
c) Regulatory

The accounting and tax fixed asset registers are held in SAP.

5.18.1 Accounting Fixed Asset Register

Expenditure is capitalised in order to achieve agreed business outcomes. Assets lives are to be
determined with regard to the expected effective life of the assets. Refer to the ‘Useful life’ section of
this procedure. All assets are depreciated on a straight line basis.

5.18.2 Tax Fixed Asset Register

All items are to be capitalised on the same basis as accounting with the following exceptions:

a) Most historical fixed assets in United Energy are being depreciated using the diminishing value
method of depreciation where allowed. For new fixed assets, if a straight line depreciation
method is used the depreciation rate is based on the effective life. If a diminishing value method
of depreciation is used, depreciation is based on the effective life, with a 200% uplift.

b) Where legislation prescribes an effective life or a set depreciation method

c) Feeder fixed assets replacing an existing asset will be claimed as a repair to the extent that it is
not an improvement or functionally different to the asset being replaced. These assets must be
expended and transferred from work-in-progress within the financial year otherwise they will be
capitalised as additions to the tax fixed asset register

d) The value of the In kind contribution for assets is initially added to the tax fixed asset register but
is reversed out twice yearly in December and June. This means the value of in-kind assets are
not added to the tax fixed asset register

e) Certain assets may need to be allocated to certain classes for depreciation for example low value
assets or assets which form part of a project pool relating to a specific project; and

f) Ifitis not clear how an asset should be depreciated for tax purposes the asset should be referred
to the Tax Manager.

5.18.3 Regulatory Fixed Asset Register

All assets capitalised for accounting should be capitalised to the regulatory fixed assets register on a

straight line basis except for the following:

a) Inkind assets are not capitalised

b) Customer contributions reduce the value of the assets added

c) The value removed from the regulatory fixed asset register for asset retirements is only the value
of proceeds received from the sale of assets.

The regulatory fixed asset register is not held in SAP. The information captured for accounting
purposes on additions and disposals is used to complete the Excel spread sheets used to determine
the regulatory fixed asset values.
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6 Related policies/standards/legislation

The following policies, procedures, guidelines and manuals relate to the Fixed Asset Procedure and
can be read where they are specifically referred to within the Procedure:

Reference Document Name

AASB 5 Australian Accounting Standards Board Non Current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations

AASB 102 Australian Accounting Standards Board Inventories

AASB 116 Australian Accounting Standards Board Property, Plant and Equipment

AASB 117 Australian Accounting Standards Board Leases

AASB 119 Australian Accounting Standards Board Employee Benefits

AASB 123 Australian Accounting Standards Board Borrowing Costs

AASB 136 Australian Accounting Standards Board Impairment of Assets

AASB 137 Australian Accounting Standards Board Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets

AASB 138 Australian Accounting Standards Board Intangible Assets

AASB 1031 Australian Accounting Standards Board Materiality

ACC-002-POL Account Reconciliations

ACC-005-POL Materiality

ACC-007-POL Review of Financial Statements

ACC-010-POL Identification and Recording Provisions and Accruals

ACC-072-PRO Small Capex Procedure

DOA-003-POL Delegation of Authority Policy

FAM-023-PRO MG Fixed Asset Procedure

FAM-042-PRO UE Sustainable Public Lighting Reporting and Accounting

INV-007-POL Inventory Policy

PRO-004-POL Procurement Policy

PRO-004-MAN Procurement Manual

UIG 1031 Urgent Issues Group Interpretation

IT Project Financial Management Process

7 Implementation and Compliance

a) This Procedure will be implemented by Finance.

b)  Any non-compliance under this Procedure must be reported to the Head of Financial
Accounting and Controls.
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c)  There are a number of fixed asset controls in place to ensure the integrity of the fixed asset

register. Refer Annex B.

d) There are a number of controls which effectively monitor the fixed asset register on a monthly,
half yearly, annual basis and other periodic basis. Refer Annex C.

e) UE has the right to, at its absolute discretion, to alter or modify this procedure.

8 Document history

Version

Date

Amended By

Description of Changes

1

16-May-12

Original approved policy

2

30-April-14

Sue
Edwards/Peter
Ajani

Included procurement section

Altered quarterly WIP review requirements,
Altered example of research phase,

Altered allocation of assets between entities

Inserted useful life treatment for assets that
are continuously improved

Updated related policies/standards table

Annex A- Inserted new section for ZABL
retirements & minor changes to other sections

31-Oct-15

Sue Edwards

Included easement section

Totally revised spares section

Included guidance on IT cloud expenditure
Altered the tax fixed asset register section

Included classification of operating verses
application software expenditure

Updated the Capital Expenditure Financial
and Procurement Controls section

Changed the title of the document from ‘Policy’
to ‘Procedure’
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Annex A: Retirement Authorisation Process
All retirements are subject to the DOA 003-POL Delegated Financial Authority Policy.

The following set outs the various retirement processes depending on the type or class of the asset.

Selected Network Assets using the SAP Settlement processes

Most assets retired are network assets. The retirement of these assets is generally processed in SAP
via the use of the ZUSDMO0O01 Settlement Details program used by Service Providers to settle capital
jobs from work-in-progress to final, depreciating assets.

In the ‘Tech Object ID’ field the SAP Plant Maintenance equipment record(s) is input representing the
network asset worked on under the capital job. Against each row an action of N (new), A (abolish) or
| (improve) is required. A fixed asset retirement will be triggered when an action of ‘A’ is input and the
ZUSDMO013 Fixed Asset Write Offs from Settlement Screen Abolishments program is run by the
Fixed Asset Accountant.

éeﬁlement Details

[ Settiement information - TR
Work Order No ]

WBS Element No ————
Total Cost 10.00 }
Seftlement Status
Settlement No
- , j AL | Delete Row | [ insetRow |
’m‘mNo [TechObjectiD [Description [Type |Quantity [UoM[Fxa {Sub No|FXAClass [Description [wcostin [a i ] @
‘ 2 | ‘ 2
| " E

The program has been written to contain a warning if the accounting written down value of the asset
being abolished is greater than $50k.

The retirements processed via the ZUSDMO013 program are reviewed for reasonableness by the
Fixed Asset Accountant each month. Any material write off or assets retired that were recently
capitalised and have a write off value greater than $1k are queried. Any incorrect retirements
identified will be reversed by the Fixed Asset Accountant.

No direct authorisation of these ZUSDMO013 retirements is required.
Selected Network Assets using the SAP Abolishment processes

In addition to the above, there are instances of network assets being retired that are not processed as
part of the SAP settlement process. An example is distribution transformers. These may be removed
from the network due to an upgrade. The removed transformer is sent to Stores to be reviewed to
determine if it can be reused. It is therefore the personnel working in Stores that makes the
abolishment decision so the personnel responsible for the upgrade works never finds out the status of
the removed transformer to input into the ZUSDMO0O01 screen.
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SAP transaction ZABL Fixed Assets Write Offs from Settlement Screen Abolishments is used in UE
SAP to process a financial write off, with the input of just the plant maintenance equipment number or
functional location.

No direct authorisation of these ZABL retirements is required.

Meters

Network meters are not retired via the ZUSDMO001 program.

In the Asset Owner Finance meeting held on 21 December 2009 the decision was made that all non
AMI meters would not be retired when they are removed from service. This was because they are
being depreciated to a maximum of the date the meter installation program is expected to be
complete so for ease of administration and because the remaining life is very short, no retirements
would be processed. These fixed assets will be removed from the fixed asset register when the
program is complete.

Details of AMI meter retirements is sourced from the SAP Plant Maintenance module where the meter
records are held. The meters have already been removed from service for various reasons when the
status of the Plant Maintenance record is updated to indicate the meter is no longer in service. These
are high volume transactions for assets with relatively low individual value. The meters will be retired
by the Fixed Asset Accountant based on the quantity of meters disposed for each meter type, by the
year installed. No direct authorisation of these retirements is required.

Public Lighting

The public lights removed from service as a result of councils retrofitting their existing public lighting
with sustainable public lighting will be removed from the fixed asset register on first-in-first-out (FIFO)
basis with their proceeds. A FIFO basis is used because the actual ages of the lights being removed
are unknown. Confirmation of the quantity of public lights changed over is required before the Fixed
Asset Accountant can process the retirement. The quantity confirmation will be taken as authorisation
for the fixed asset retirement to be processed.

Retirements Arising From Fixed Asset Reviews

Retirement of fixed assets identified from reviews of the fixed asset register, refer Annex C, are
required to be authorised by the Fixed Asset Accountant’s manager. A list of the assets
recommended for write off containing both the accounting and federal tax original acquisition cost and
current written down values must be included in the detail provided by the Fixed Asset Accountant.

Motor vehicles

The Fleet and Inventory Officer is responsible for authorising all motor vehicle related disposals
except where controlled by a service provider.

The Service Providers follow a historical process where the annual budget process identifies vehicles
which may be nominated by them to be disposed. This budget is approved by United Energy. Once
the annual budget is approved, this is the authorisation for the Service Provider to dispose of a United
Energy vehicle. The net proceeds from the sale of the vehicle belong to United Energy.
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Information Technology

Information Technology (IT) hardware asset disposals would normally be identified by United
Energy’s 3™ party service provider. They would normally make a recommendation to United Energy
for the replacement or disposal of an item.

The authorisation for the retirement of an IT hardware asset is required from the Service Delivery
Manager who will make a business decision on whether to proceed with the replacement or disposal.

Where the decision is made for an item to be replaced or disposed, it is the responsibility of the
Service Delivery Manager to ensure:

a) All data has been erased from the hardware prior to disposal
b) The Configuration Management Database (CMDB) has been updated; and

c) The Fixed Asset Accountant has been notified of the disposal and supplied with sufficient
information to ensure the item(s) disposed can be identified on the Fixed Asset Register and also
informed of any proceeds attributable to the disposal.

The Fixed Asset Accountant is responsible for ensuring the assets are removed from the Fixed Asset
Register after receiving written confirmation of the disposal from the Service Delivery Manager.
Other Assets

Any other asset not listed above requires the approval of the Fixed Asset Accountant’s manager in
order to be retired from the fixed asset register.
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Annex B: Fixed Asset Controls

In SAP all network assets are capitalised to the SAP accounting fixed assets register. For Operational
activities selected network assets are reflected in the plant maintenance equipment records. The SAP
Plant Maintenance (PM) module contains hundreds of thousands of records for many, but not all,
network assets. Each record in this module usually represents one physical network asset.

Controls for Allocation of Asset Class — Linked to PM Module

The PM module links into the fixed asset register to ensure that when the assets are recorded from an
operation perspective the information flows into the fixed asset register with predefined business rules
determining the correct allocation to asset classes and financial settlement.

To ensure capital is posted to the correct asset class a SAP program'347 Validate In Service
Equipment’, was implemented. Under this 347 enhancement, table ZUSDMTT004 — FXA Class
Mapping Table — Equipment has been established to provide some business rules to ensure a valid
fixed asset number, plant maintenance category, plant maintenance class and plant maintenance
object type these are assigned to all ‘In Service’ and ‘Out of Service’ plant maintenance equipment.

Below are the columns in the table with a sample of three rows:

Eq. Description Object Type Description Equipment Class Baset Description FHa kh Bctive
Cmt Class Class 1 Sup
tol Dhj
Rfship
{Ind]
Netwark
S Switchzsar SWITCH _DST Switch Distribution SWITCH 30142 SW—EEHEEI' X X
Distob, Netwark
T Transformers DIST TRANS Transformer TRANSFORMER DIST 30141 | SubsTenst X X
Damestic
Z {Zsuh] COOLING Cocling CODLUING _SYSTEM 32000 Network Buildings A X

Controls for Allocation of Asset Class — Not in PM Module

Where an asset is not part of the PM module most assets are created manually by the Fixed Asset
Accountant based on information obtained from relevant personnel. The asset numbers created are
manually input on the settlement rule on the capital project and capital is transferred from work-in-
progress to the final, deprecating asset(s) created. No additional check is completed on these assets
as it is considered that the Fixed Asset Accountant will correctly exercise their professional judgement
to ensure the assets are capitalised to the correct fixed asset class.

Stocktake

United Energy does not undertake periodical physical stocktakes of their tangible assets. For most of
United Energy’s tangible fixed assets this is impractical and would be extremely time consuming to
complete. The risk of a material misstatement in the assets is low due to the nature of the assets
being generally immobile and having very long lives.

An alternative to completing a physical stocktake and still obtaining some confirmation of the accuracy
of the fixed asset records is to periodically reconcile the fixed asset records to sub systems that may
exist for the different types of fixed assets.

The SAP Plant Maintenance (PM) module is used to link selected physical assets and the financial
value for the assets.
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Each record in the PM module usually represents one physical network asset. Each PM record has
one field called the ‘Asset’ field which contains the fixed asset number which corresponds to the fixed
asset register of SAP where the value of the asset is held.

@ Display Equipment : Organiz;ﬁ_on

Equipment 27076 | categoy |P| Poles

Description |QUARRY CRANBOURNE 10N |
Status INST | SERV

Valid From 22 ._93.26‘12] Valid To 31.12.9999

Company Code 8818  UE Distribution Pty Ltd Mount Waverley
Business Area [
Asset 111722 |78 | 30132 Network Pole LV 2009

Rolling reconciliations between these two modules should be completed on a cycle of 5 years.
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Annex C: Monitoring Controls

The following activities are completed periodically that is monthly, half year and yearly to ensure the
accuracy of the fixed asset registers. This process identifies errors and anomalies in a timely manner
designed to ensure reporting packs, half yearly and annual accounts reflect accurate fixed asset
information. There are additional reviews for half year and annual reviews. There are other reviews
undertaken at varying intervals to check various classes of assets.

Monthly Reconciliation Control

Each month the SAP fixed asset module is reconciled to the general ledger. The reconciliation is the
responsibility of the Fixed Asset Accountant to complete in accordance with the reconciliation policy.
Any material variances are required to be investigated and resolved in a timely manner.

The reconciliation is required to be reviewed by a separate member of the Finance Team, usually the
Fixed Asset Accountant’s manager.

Monthly Depreciation & Amortisation Reasonableness Control

Each month the Fixed Asset Accountant will compare the total accounting depreciation and
amortisation charged to the profit or loss against the prior months’ charge. An increase or decrease
in the charge per month in excess of 5% will require further investigation and the explanation
documented in the Excel file used to complete this control.

Such variances are usually caused by significant additions, disposals, significant assets finishing their
useful life or a change in the useful life of an asset or class of assets.

Half Yearly Depreciation & Amortisation Monitoring Control

At six monthly intervals a review of all assets on the fixed asset register is completed to ensure all
assets that should be being depreciated are actually being depreciated in the accounting fixed asset
module. The review is the responsibility of the Fixed Asset Accountant to complete.

These assets are identified by running SAP report ZFAL — Fixed Asset List for all assets and
downloading the report into Excel. The download is reviewed and the following assets are removed
from the list in the order below:

All land and work-in-progress assets

All assets with a written down value of zero

All assets with a depreciation charge in the current year

All assets with a depreciation start date of the next month from the date of the review

The remaining assets are assets with an accounting written down value greater than zero but have no
depreciation charge in the current year when depreciation should be being charged.

A problem that exists within the fixed asset register is that new capital expenditure is allocated to very
old existing assets. Typically this occurs against underground cable assets and poles. It can also
occur on assets which have a depreciation charge of less than $1 per year.
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1. Underground cable

The capitalisation of new capital to old assets is occurring mainly as a result of the replacement of
terminations of high voltage underground cable, required only on paper cable. There is a special
procedure that makes the termination of high voltage underground cable safe. The last five
meters of the cable is filled with oil and over time this drains away making the cable unsafe.
Where this occurs the last five meters of cable needs to be replaced, often at both ends.

A review is undertaken to specifically identify such assets. Once identified the assets are
transferred from the non-depreciating asset to the current yearly grouped asset in the same asset
class.

2. Poles

The capitalisation of new capital to old assets is occurring mainly as a result of the replacement of
pole top structures on the poles. A pole top structure would normally only be replaced where the
pole is assessed to have a minimum of a 15 year remaining life.

A review is undertaken to identify these assets. Once identified the assets life is amended so the
new capital will depreciate over the next 15 years, being the minimum remaining life.

Annual Monitoring Control
Review of useful life and method

On an annual basis, at the end of each annual reporting period, the Fixed Asset Accountant will
reassess the depreciation method, useful life and residual values assigned to the fixed assets.

Typically this review is completed by the Fixed Asset Accountant emailing the appropriate personnel
to confirm the current useful lives and written down value of the assets and receiving a written reply
on their opinion of the reasonableness of the life and written down values.

Review of fully depreciated assets

Certain aged assets are not monitored due to the volume and value of the asset. These are usually
various low value assets grouped on the asset register under one asset number for each calendar
year e.g. Miscellaneous tools and equipment. For these assets minimal details are kept on the fixed
asset register and there is no record of when the assets are physically disposed.

To address this issue, an annual review is undertaken by the Fixed Asset Accountant for these assets
to identify fully written down assets. Once identified, these assets are reviewed and where appropriate
these assets are retired from the fixed asset register, in accordance with the ‘Retirement’ section of
this procedure.

Other Annual Reviews

Motor Vehicles
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Motor vehicle asset are by their nature very mobile and have a regular change over cycle. A
reconciliation of the records on the fixed asset register to Service Provider records and United
Energy’s records should be completed on an annual basis.

Fixture and Fitting in Leased Premises

Fixture and fittings in leased premises should contain the date of the end of the lease term in the ‘Last
Inventory On’ field on the fixed asset module of SAP. Some leases are written with options for lease
extensions. The date recorded in the ‘Last Inventory On’ field should be the date of the next option.
The fixed asset register records for these assets should be reviewed on no less than an annual basis.

Other Periodic Reviews
Three year Reviews

The following types of assets are a valuable asset to United Energy but are quite immaterial
compared to the total value of all of United Energy’s tangible fixed assets:

Office equipment
Mobile Telephones
Laptops and Desktops
Printers

Office Furniture

These assets should be reviewed at least once every three years. Unless an individual physical asset
has a written down value greater than $50k, no stocktake of these items is required. For items with a
written down value greater than $50k, confirmation that they are still in use in the business should be
obtained by the Fixed Asset Accountant from relevant personnel.

Information Technology hardware assets should be reviewed at least once every three years by
sending a list of the relevant fixed assets on the Fixed Asset Register to appropriate personnel and
requesting their confirmation that the assets are still in use.

Five Year Reviews

Building assets should be reviewed at least once every 5 years.

Reconciliations between Plant Maintenance Module and the Fixed Asset Register should be
completed on a staggered rolling cycle of 5 years.

Ten Years Reviews

Land assets should be reconciled to the latest United Energy’s land tax assessment notice at least
once every ten years.
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1. Overview

UE is the licensed entity charged with carrying out the role of electricity distribution in accordance with all
legal and regulatory requirements. The AER has made three final decisions that are relevant for the purposes of
the Annual Financial RIN. These being:

. 2011 to 2015 Distribution determination
. 2011 to 2015 Public lighting determination
. 2012 to 2015 AMI Final Decision

These decisions provide the benchmarks against which actual expenditure is measured against, opening
regulatory asset bases and depreciation allowances for the 2015 calendar year.

The information contained in the documents submitted to the AER was prepared is in line with United Energy’s
approved Cost Allocation Methodology.

The financial information has been reconciled with the relevant regulatory accounting statements and statutory
accounts, and the principles underpinning the calculation of figures are in line with statutory accounting policies.

The remaining sections of this appendix provide details of United Energy’s approach as follows:

e Section 2 — Cost allocation approach
e Section 3 — Cost Allocation Methodology
e Section 4 — Capitalisation Policy
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2. Cost allocation approach

The following table provides details of United Energy’s cost allocation. All costs have been directly allocated.

Table 1: Operating expenditure — Allocation approach

Direct Allocation Indirect Allocation Overall
opex
SCS AMI ACS Public Negotiated Non- Public Negotiated Non- TOTAL
1 1 ‘ Lighting Services | Regulated ‘ Lighting Services | Regulated

Network Operating Costs 17,432 161 17,594 0 0 0 0 0 0 Of 17,594

I T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
GSL payments 917 917 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 917

I T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
AMI 0 19,729 19,729 0 0 0 0 0 0 Of 19,729

I T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
Customer Service 8,315 3,470 54 217 12,056 0 0 0 0 0 0 Of 12,056

I T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
Business Services 1,410 1,410 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,410

I T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
CEO 1,319 1,319 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,319

I T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
Commercial 5,667 5,667 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,667

I T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
Corporate Affairs 695 695 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 695

I T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
Facilities 4,096 4,096 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,096

I T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
Finance 11,783 74 530 12,387 0 0 0 0 0 0 0§ 12,387

I T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
HR 2,263 2,263 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,263

I T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
Internal Audit 994 994 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 994
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Direct Allocation Indirect Allocation Overall
opex
ACS Public Negotiated Non- Public Negotiated Non- TOTAL TOTAL
‘ Lighting Services | Regulated ‘ Lighting Services | Regulated

Advanced Metering 888 888 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 888

I T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
Regulatory 3,477 3,477 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,477

I T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
Customer Innovation 1,869 1,869 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,869

I T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
IT 13,548 13,548 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13,548
TOTAL 74,670 19,803 4,000 0 215 217 98,905 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 98,905
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3. Cost Allocation Methodology

See attached document.
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1 Introduction

United Energy Distribution (UED) is one of five electricity distribution network
service providers operating under licence within the State of Victoria, with
assets totalling approximately $3.0 billion. UED’s network provides services to
some 630,000 end-use customers in Melbourne’s southern and eastern
suburbs, with its area of operation confined to geographically defined
boundaries set out in the Distribution Licence. A map is provided below;

Healesville

Lilydale
Melbourne

PORT PHILLIP

- Electricity Distribution Territary

WESTERN
Piinders PORT

UED is ultimately owned 66 per cent by Diversified Utility and Energy Trust
(DUET) and 34 per cent by SPI (Australia) Assets Pty Ltd (SPIAA). Refer
section 5 for more details.
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2 Cost Allocation Methodology

a. Version History

Under clause 11.17.5 of the National Electricity Rules (Rules) UED is required to
submit to the AER for approval a Cost Allocation Methodology (CAM) as part of its
regulatory proposal. UED has chosen to submit a CAM to the AER for approval
prior to its formal regulatory proposal so that the regulatory proposal can be
submitted without any amendments required due to a change in the CAM.

This CAM is version 1.0.
The date of issue is the date of approval.
The date of commencement is 1 January 2011.

On approval UED will post this CAM on UED’s website
(www.unitedenergy.com.au)*.

! See clause 6.15.4(h) of the Rules
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3 Nature Scope and Purpose of the document

The purpose of this document is to set out the Cost Allocation Method (CAM) to be
adopted by UED for the purposes of allocating costs in accordance with the
requirements of the NER from 1 January 20112,

As required by clause 6.15.4(c) of the Rules and clause 3.1(b) of the Cost Allocation
Guidelines for Victorian electricity distribution network service providers dated June
2008 (CAG), this CAM gives effect to and is consistent with the CAG.

Specifically,

. Clause 2.2.1(a) — the CAM contains detailed principles and policies to
attribute costs directly to, or allocate costs between, different categories of
distribution services to enable the AER to replicate reported outcomes and for the
DNSP to demonstrate it is meeting the requirements of the CAG;

. Clause 2.2.1(b)(1) — the CAM contains two tables, titled capital activities and
maintenance activities, that describe the nature and characteristics of each cost
item and which distribution service they are attributed to. The CAM separately
describes UED'’s record keeping;

. Clause 2.2.1(b)(2) — a list is provided of cost centres and how these shared
costs are allocated to distribution services. The nature of the allocators and the
reasons for the selection of those allocators is described, as is the treatment of
those allocators that will change during the regulatory period. The allocators are
appropriate as they are causal or, if non causal, the basis of allocation is described
(and is consistent with clause 2.2.4);

. Clause 2.2.2 — costs are attributed or allocated based on the substance of
the underlying transaction or event

. Clause 2.2.5 —the CAM is deigned to ensure there is no double counting of
shared costs;

. Clause 2.2.6 — the CAM is consistent with the distribution ring fencing
guidelines;

. Clause 2.2.7 — costs will not be re-allocated during the course of a regulatory

control period;

. Clause 2.2.8 —the CAM has regard to previous cost allocation in accordance
with the ESC distribution pricing determination and allows effective
comparison of historical and forecast cost allocation between the period to

% See clause 1.4(b) and 5.1(b) of the CAG.
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which the ESC distribution pricing determination applies and later regulatory
control periods. There is an allocation of costs between operating
expenditure and capital expenditure (as was relevant to the ESC distribution
pricing determination) and between Direct Control Services (Standard and
Alternative Control Services) and Negotiated Services (which accords with
the allocation to Regulated by Price Cap and Excluded Services during the
ESC distribution pricing determination period) ;

Consistency with Cost Allocation Principles

Having met the requirements of the CAG, it follows that the CAM is consistent with
the Cost Allocation Principles required by clause 6.15.2 of the NER. For
completeness, however, we note that the CAM meets those principles as follows:

. Clause 6.15.2 (1) — this CAM contains sufficient detailed principles and
policies to allocate costs between different categories of distribution services to
enable the AER to replicate reported outcomes;

. Clause 6.15.2 (2) — costs have been allocated according to the substance of
a transaction or event rather than its legal form;

. Clause 6.15.2 (3) — costs have been allocated either directly attributed to the
services or costs have allocated using an appropriate allocator;

. Clause 6.15.2 (4) — cost allocations are clearly described in the CAM
including reasons for using specific allocators;

. Clause 6.15.2 (5) — costs are not allocated more than once

. Clause 6.15.2 (6) — the principles, policies and approach used to allocate

costs are consistent with the Distribution Ring-Fencing Guidelines;

. Clause 6.15.2 (7) — costs allocated to a particular service will not be re-
allocated to another service during the course of a regulatory control period.

Requirements of clause 11.17.5(d)(3) of the Rules

Clause 11.17.5(d)(3) is also relevant as UED’s proposed CAM differs from the
method previously used by it.

In July 2003, UED entered into an Operating Services Agreement (OSA) with
Jemena Asset Management (JAM6) under which Jemena provides to UED
construction and maintenance services. These services relate to Regulated by
Price Cap and Excluded Services and the fee paid by UED is fixed according to
various provisions of the OSA.

UED allocates this fixed operating fee paid between Regulated by Price Cap and
Excluded Services by using allocators derived from 2002. That year was the last full
year of operation prior to the OSA and therefore applying the allocation from that
year provides a positive correlation between the basis of allocation and the
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services that the costs represent. It is an allocation methodology that has been
accepted by UED’s auditors and by the Essential Services Commission in the
preparation of UED’s Regulatory Accounts.

This allocation methodology will apply until 30 June 2011 after which the current
OSA will not continue. From 1 July 2011, the policies and principles set out in the
CAM will apply.

Mapping

Current Description Proposed description
Regulated by price cap Standard Control
Excluded services Alternative Control
Prescribed Services AMI OIC

Other Non regulated
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Comparison of historic cost allocation methodology compared to proposed CAM

ltem

(current)

Current methodology

ltem
(proposed)

Proposed methodology

83%

81.0%

Regulated by | Costs are directly allocated where possible. Standard Costs are directly allocated in accordance
price cap Shared costs are allocated in accordance with Control with the description provide in this CAM.
the benchmark allowances in the 2001 EDPD Shared costs are allocated based on
revenue.
Excluded Costs are directly allocated where possible. 9% | Alternative | Costs are directly allocated in accordance 5.2%
services Cost not directly allocated are based on 90% of Control with the description provide in this CAM.
revenue earned. Shared costs are allocated based on
revenue.
Prescribed Costs are directly allocated where possible. 7% | AMI OIC Costs are directly allocated in accordance 13.8%
Services Shared costs are allocated in accordance with with the description provide in this CAM
the benchmark allowances in the 2001 EDPD and the CROIC. Shared costs are
allocated based on revenue.
Other Not applicable 0.0% | Non Not applicable 0.0%
regulated
100.0% 100.0%
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4 Accountabilities

The board of UED is responsible for ensuring the overall performance and
governance of UED and its subsidiaries.

In order to assist the board in effectively discharging its powers and duties, it has
delegated responsibility for the day-to-day operation and management of UED to
the CEO, and the senior management team. The board retains the ultimate legal
responsibility for the exercise of powers delegated to senior management. The CEO
and senior management are required to report to the board on the exercise of these
powers on an ongoing basis.

As described in section 5 of this CAM, UED has appointed Pacific Indian Energy
Services (PIES) as its agent to perform management services for it. As its agent,
PIES is responsible for providing the ‘Services’ set out in the Management Services
Agreement to UED. In summary, these include (without limitation), developing the
regulatory strategy for UED, and ensuring compliance by UED with all legal and
regulatory matters. These services are provided pursuant to the delegation and
under the authority of the board.

The CEO, CFO & Company Secretary, COO and other senior management (who
are employed by PIES) are appointed as officers of UED pursuant to this agency
arrangement. Specific responsibilities delegated to management are summarised in
Section 5 of this CAM. The agency arrangement does not, at law, impact on their
accountability as officers of UED, or on the board’s legal obligations.

UED’s detailed principles and policies for attributing costs to, or allocating costs
between, different categories of distribution services that meet the requirements of
clause 2.2 of the CAG is described in this CAM.

Responsibility for updating, maintaining and applying this CAM is with the Chief
Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer is also responsible for internally
monitoring and reporting on the application of this CAM.

In meeting these responsibilities, the Chief Financial Officer is accountable to the
board of UED, as outlined above.

UED is committed to implementing this CAM.
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5 Description of UED’s corporate and operational structure

UED’s organisational and operational structure has been developed so that it aligns
with business strategy and stakeholder expectations.

The roles and responsibilities of each general manager are described below:

CEO - company management, strategic planning, business structure,
stakeholder relations, board management

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary — Statutory and
management reporting, financial planning, annual budgets, taxation,
treasury, accounts payable, accounts receivable, payroll, regulatory
accounting, accounting policies, company secretary

IT Manager — Strategic IT management and planning, IT contractor
management, desktop management, help desk

Legal Counsel - Legal services, easements, contract management

Chief Operating Officer - Distribution asset planning, control room
operations, asset management, maintenance planning, engineering,
capital construction, field maintenance activities, contactor management,
meter reading, call centre, meter data services, fault room management

Regulatory Manager - Regulatory compliance, pricing submissions,
regulatory policy, performance reporting

UED also has a Chairman and Board of Directors comprising representatives from
its major shareholders.

10
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UED’s organisation structure as at 1 December 2010 is provided below:.

/Hugh Gleeson\

CEO

\_ /

KMichaeI Fajdiga\

Chief Operating

Officer

\_ /

/Andrew Schille\

Regulatory
Manager

K David Strang \

Chief Financial

Officer &
Company

Secretary

K Brian Eaves \

IT Manager

|
/Michael Thomson\

Legal Counsel

N )

11
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Jemena Asset Management (6) Pty Ltd (JAM6) provide the bulk of the operating,
maintenance and construction services to UED. JAM6 are 100% owned by SPIAA.
in accordance with an Operating Service Agreement (OSA.)

UEDH ownership structure is the same as UED. UEDH provides strategic
management and treasury services to UED. These services are provided by the
shareholders and are for regulated services. UEDH charges these services at cost
to UED.

UEDH is a holding company that sits above UED and the other companies in the UE
group and was established to be the focal point for the management of UED’s
electricity distribution business and the UE group. For example, the Board operates
from the UEDH level. UEDH’s responsibilities include but are not limited to:

e General management and corporate governance;

e Financial management, accounting and reporting;

e Corporate strategy and planning;

e Corporate relations and stakeholder management

e Risk and quality management

e Treasury management

e Regulatory management

e Overseeing customer and back-office management

e Overseeing operations, network planning and investment decision making;
e Insurance management; and

e Contract management, including the operations contract between UED and
JAM6

UED fulfils these responsibilities through resources directly employed by it, through
resources contracted by it (including PIES and AMP Capital Investors) and through
support provided by it's shareholders: DUET and SPIAA

All related party transactions are disclosed in UED’s audited statutory and regulatory
accounts.

12
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UED Corporate Structure Diagram

DUET UNIT

N

Diversified Utility & Energy Di

ied Utility & Energy

Trust (‘DUET") No 1 Trust (‘DUET") No 2

I

Singapore Power Ltd

100%

Singapore Power
International Ptv Ltd

100%

SPI (Australia)
Assets Pty Ltd

66%
UEDH Pty Ltd

UED

100%

50% 100%

100%

100%

34%

ERH | | UEIP Pty Ltd | | United Energy | |

Utilities

UED is a stand-alone distributor and does not retail electricity, nor provide

| UE Finance Trust |

construction or maintenance services to any other business. UED has a contract
with a third party (JAM6) for the construction, maintenance and operation of its

distribution network.

13
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6 Categories of distribution services

Distribution services provided by UED must be classified as either:
e adirect control service; or
e a negotiated distribution service
Direct control services are further divided into:
e standard control services; and
e alternative control services.
1. Direct Control Services - Standard Control Services

Services provided as Standard Control Services are recovered via Distribution Use
of System tariffs and make up the bulk of services provided by UED. These services
are ultimately provided to all end-use customers connected to UED’s electricity
distribution network. Services include the maintenance and operation of UED’s
distribution system including vegetation management, fault restoration, asset
inspection, planned maintenance, reactive maintenance, emergency management,
and the 24 hour control room. Capital expenditure is incurred to provide Standard
Control services including ensuring capacity requirements are met, replacement
capital, asset refurbishment, new connections services (in accordance with
Guideline 14) and network growth

2. Direct Control Services - Alternative Control Service

Alternative Control Services are recovered via specific prices to those customers
that have requested the service. Alternative Control Services are not recovered via
Distribution Use of System tariffs. These services include; public lighting
maintenance and replacement, energisation of new connections, temporary
supplies, service truck visits, elective undergrounding, low voltage covers — most of
the services previously referred to as excluded services are now referred to as
Alternative Control Services.

3. Negotiated Services

Services provided as Negotiated Services are recovered via specific prices to those
customers that have requested the service. Negotiated Services are not recovered
via Distribution Use of System tariffs. Negotiated services include relocation and
alteration of public lighting assets and new public lighting.

14
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4. Non-regulated Services
UED does not provide any non-regulated services.
5. AMI services — Cost Recovery Order in Council

Metering services that are recovered under a specific Victorian Order in Council
(AMI OIC). The activities for which costs are recovered pursuant to the AMI OIC
are set out in schedule 2 section 2.1 of that document.

UED will amend this Section of the CAM in accordance with clause 4.2(a) of the
cost allocation guidelines so as to apply the AER’s final classification of services.

15
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7 Detailed principles and policies for cost attribution

Overview of systems and costing principles

UED utilises SAP as its financial management and works management system.
UED’s SAP system is fundamentally structured that it complies with statutory
reporting requirements utilising various job ledgers in order to prepare management
reports. It will also be structured so that it complies with this CAM.

Each expense (capital and non-capital) must be coded with a general ledger
account code and a cost centre code. Some expenses will also be allocated to a
job ledger code in order to collect costs in more detail. The broad grouping of
general ledger account codes are as follows:

e Labour;

e Materials;

e External services;

e Contracts;

e Direct overheads;

e Transport & logistics; and
e Miscellaneous

For more detailed reporting, costs are then coded to a job ledger code. Each job
ledger code is assigned to an activity code (activity codes will summarise multiple
job ledger codes). This allows UED to group individual jobs by like activities which
in turn allows UED to prepare management and regulatory reports.

Typically cost centres will be used for corporate, overhead type services and those
services that provide one service only e.g. finance, network management, control
room or regulatory costs. Job ledger codes are created for more detailed reporting
for capital and maintenance type activities.

Directly allocated costs

Each cost centre and activity code (job number summary) has costs directly
attributed to it. These are the general ledger account codes described above. The
manner in which general ledger account code costs are attributed to either cost
centre or activities is described below:

16
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Labour

Labour related costs include salaries paid to employees, superannuation, payroll on-
costs such as work care levy, payroll tax and other allowances. Labour costs are
directly attributed to cost centres. Individual cost centres are able to have any
number of people attributed to them, based on the type of work performed by the
individual and who they report to in the organisation structure.

Labour may be job costed to individual projects as required. In the case that labour
is job costed each cost centre has its own specific average rate that is costed to
individual projects based on the hours worked and recorded via manual time sheet
process. The average rate is designed to recover total labour costs described above
plus an additional allowance for leave and other specific job related tools such as
mobile phones, tools etc. Labour recovery does not include recovery of general
overheads such as supervision, accommodation, IT related costs etc.

The net labour amount attributed to cost centres are allocated to various relevant
headings based on the rule for the individual cost centre.

External labour will be directly charged to cost centre or job ledger codes. These
costs will then be allocated based on the rule set up for the cost centre or job ledger
code.

Materials

UED does not currently have a central stock system for day to day stock
requirements but does hold stock for strategic spares. Materials supplied for capital
construction and maintenance activities are provided by the service provider
performing the works in almost all cases.

Strategic spares are held by UED for stock that has a long lead time or for
equipment that can no longer be purchased. Inthese cases spares are attributed
directly to the job as required at book value.

As from 1 July 2011 UED plans to have a stock system and issue materials directly
to external service providers as required. Materials will be allocated directly to job
numbers at cost plus a surcharge to recover the cost of managing the logistics
function. This will include:

e the cost of purchasing;

e warehousing costs;

e premise costs; and

e delivery costs

17
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Jobs will attract a flat rate surcharge rate for each six monthly period designed to
recover the cost of handling materials. This rate comprises of costs associated with
the storage of strategic spare parts for the network. The surcharge rate applied to
jobs is the total forecast costs associated with the storage of strategic spares
divided by the forecast expenditure of related jobs. This reflects the average cost of
storing strategic spares based on the cost of the job. The rate will vary depending
on actual costs incurred and inventory turn-over. Twice per annum any under or
over recovery of actual costs compared to the surcharge recovery will be reconciled.
The rate will be adjusted to reflect the actual cost of the provision of inventory costs,
subject to materiality.

All other services

Services provided by external parties or for other goods and services are all directly
attributed to either a cost centre or specific job number. This includes the payment
of service providers for capital construction and maintenance, payment for licence
fees, and payment for audit and other professional services.

Attribution Process

Costs are allocated to the required distribution services as described in the diagram
below. In summary all costs will be coded to a general ledger costs. All costs are
also coded to either a cost centre or a job ledger code. Cost centres will attribute
their costs to a distribution service based on the allocation rules provided for in
section 8 table titled “allocated costs” and job ledger codes are allocated based on
the rules in section 8 tables titled “capital activities” and “maintenance activities.”

GL code cost type:

Labour, materials, contracts and
miscellaneous etc

GL Code allocated to job GL Code allocated to cost
ledger code. Cost directly centre. Cost attributed or
attributed to required service allocated to required service
based on activity type based on specific rule for
each cost centre

18
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8 Directly attributed costs

The table below contains the detailed activity codes for which the costs are directly
attributed to a category of distribution services.

Capital Activities

Consistency
Internal category Service Comments with current

approach

Customer Initiated

SC Allocated to standard | Yes
control in accordance

Customer Business Supply with Guideline No. 14

CROIC | Unclassified AMI Cost | Yes
Recovery  Order in
Metering Council

SC Allocated to standard | Yes
control in accordance

Dual & Multiple Occupancy with Guideline No. 14

SC Allocated to standard | Yes
Co-Generation & Renewable control in accordance

Energy Projects

with Guideline No. 14

Medium Density Housing

Allocated to standard
control in accordance
with Guideline No. 14

Public Lighting - includes
public lighting at the request
of customers including the
replacement  of  existing
lighting with new energy
efficient lighting

Charged directly to
developers as a
negotiated service

Minor Capital Lights

Charged directly to
developers as a
negotiated service

Special Capital
Works/Recoverable Works

Allocated to standard
control in accordance
with Guideline No. 14
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Consistency
Internal category Service Comments with current

approach

Customer Initiated

SC Allocated to standard | Yes
Low Density/Small Business control in accordance
Supply (<10kVA) with Guideline No. 14
Replacement
Sub/T Comms & Protect Sys | SC Directly allocated Yes
Replacement
Network High Voltage | SC Directly allocated Yes
Installation Replacement
Public Lighting Replacement | AC Directly allocated Yes
— only includes a like for like
replacement. Where existing
lighting is replaced with new
energy efficient lighting this is
costed and funded by
customer initiated capital
Service Replacements SC Directly allocated Yes
Network  Overhead Line | SC Directly allocated Yes
Replacement
Network Pole Replacement SC Directly allocated Yes
Pole Reinforcement SC Directly allocated Yes
Sub/T Installation | SC Directly allocated Yes
Replacement
Network Underground Cable | SC Directly allocated Yes
Replacement
Pole Top Replacement SC Directly allocated Yes
Other SC Directly allocated Yes
Demand
Distribution System | SC Directly allocated Yes
Augmentation

20
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Internal category

Service

Comments

Consistency
with current

approach

Customer Initiated
Sub/T Overhead Line | SC Directly allocated Yes
Augmentation
Distribution System | SC Directly allocated Yes
Augmentation
Zone Substation | SC Directly allocated Yes
Augmentation
Performance
Distribution System | SC Directly allocated Yes
Performance
Environmental Management | SC Directly allocated Yes
Network  Fire  Mitigation | SC Directly allocated Yes
Capital
Quality or Supply SC Directly allocated Yes
Remote Monitoring & Control | SC Directly allocated Yes
Schemes
Sub/T System Performance | SC Directly allocated Yes
Other Capital
SC and | Directly allocated and | Yes
CROIC | Unclassified AMI Cost
Recovery Order in
Information Technology Council
SC and | Allocated based on Yes
AC weighted revenue
Vehicles average
SC and | Directly allocated Yes
Property AC

Maintenance Activities

21
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Consistency

Internal category Service Comments with current
approach

NS & | Directly allocated Yes

Fixed Charges AC

Distribution Faults SC Directly allocated Yes

TVI's SC Directly allocated Yes

Voltage complaints SC Directly allocated Yes

Pole inspection and | SC Directly allocated Yes

treatment

Overhead asset inspection | SC Directly allocated Yes

Vegetation Control SC Directly allocated Yes

Environmental SC Directly allocated Yes

maintenance

Pole top & oh line|SC Directly allocated Yes

maintenance

Distribution SG | SC Directly allocated Yes

maintenance

Distribution HV installation | SC Directly allocated Yes

maintenance

Meters & time-switch | CROIC | Unclassified AMI  Cost | Yes

maintenance Recovery Order in Councll

UG cable maintenance SC Directly allocated Yes

Claims SC Directly allocated Yes

Routine maintenance SC Directly allocated Yes

Condition based | SC Directly allocated Yes

maintenance

Meter reading CROIC | Directly allocated Yes

Special meter reading AC Directly allocated Yes

SC = Standard control

AC = Alternative Control

22
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CROIC = Victorian Cost Recovery Order in Council
NS = Negotiated Services
Allocated costs

Those costs that are not specifically job-costed are charged to cost centres. These
costs generally relate to corporate or support activities and are charged directly to
specific cost centres. Cost centre costs are then allocated between standard control
services, alternative control services, CROIC, or negotiated services based on the
table below. Services provided by PIES are included as per the activity they
provide. E.g. UED’s CEO is part of the PIES group and the CEO costs charged
from PIES to UED will be allocated based on the table below. The charge from
PIES to UED will be in accordance with this.

23
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Consistency

S Description Services BaS'S.Of with current
C allocation
approach
CEO
CEO & EA NC | The office of the | Standard control Allocated No —
(**) Chief Executive , based on previously
Officer Alternative control | \yeighted allocated
Negotiated revenue directly to
services average standard
control
Strategic NC | Annual strategic | Standard control Allocated No —
Planning (**) planning process _ based on previously
Alternative control weighted allocated
Negotiated revenue directly to
services average standard
control
Stakeholder C Communications | Standard control Directly No — refer
relations and stakeholder , allocated — allocation
management Alternative control | g function | approach in
with major Negotiated has specific_ section 3
stakeholders services tasks and will
be costed to
the specific
service
Human C Management of | Standard control Allocated No — refer
resources recruitment and _ based on allocation
HR policy Alternative control |\ eighted approach in
Negotiated revenue section 3
services average
UEDH C United Energy Standard control Allocated No —
Distribution , based on previously
Holdings Alternative control | \yeighted allocated
provides Negotiated revenue directly to
treasury services | services average standard
and control
management,
strategic
services, UED
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C/N

C

Description

Services

Basis of
allocation

Consistency
with current

approach

board costs. This
category also
includes Pacific
Indian Energy
Services —
provides
services to
UEDH and
Multinet. Fee
determined
based on asset
value.
CFO
CFO (**) NC | The office of the | Standard control Allocated No —
Chief Finance _ based on previously
Officer Alternative control | \yeighted allocated
Negotiated revenue directly to
services average standard
control
Annual NC | Annual planning | Standard control Allocated No —
planning (**) and budgeting , based on previously
process Alternative control | \yeighted allocated
Negotiated revenue directly to
services average standard
control
Statutory NC | Half yearly and Standard control Allocated No — refer
reporting (**) annual statutory _ based on allocation
reporting Alternative control |\ eighted approach in
process. Negotiated revenue section 3
services average
Management | NC | Monthly Standard control Allocated No — refer
reporting management , based on allocation
reporting Alternative control | \eighted approach in
Negotiated revenue section 3
services average
Tax NC | Preparation of Standard control Allocated No — refer
tax returns and based on allocation
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C/N
C

Description

Services

Basis of
allocation

Consistency
with current
approach

tax compliance | Alternative control | Weighted appr_oach in
revenue section 3
Negotiated average
services
Payroll NC | Management of | Standard control Allocated No — refer
payroll system to , based on allocation
ensure payment | Alternative control |y aighted approach in
of salaries Negotiated revenue section 3
services average
Accounts NC | Payment of Standard control Allocated No — refer
payable external service _ based on allocation
suppliers of Alternative control | \eighted approach in
goods and Negotiated revenue section 3
services services average
Audit services | NC | Independent Standard control Allocated No — refer
review of , based on allocation
systems, Alternative control |\ eighted approach in
process, Negotiated revenue section 3
reg_ulat_ory services average
obligations and
financial
reporting
Purchasing NC | Raising Standard control Allocated No — refer
purchase orders _ based on allocation
for external Alternative control |\ eighted approach in
providers of Negotiated revenue section 3
goods and services average
services.
Insurance & C Insurance costs | Standard control Insurance Yes
risk including , costs that
management of | Alternative control | rojate solely
function CROIC to standard
control
services will
be allocated
directly to
standard
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C/N

C

Description

Services

Basis of
allocation

Consistency
with current

control
services (e.g.
bushfire
liability).
Other
insurance
items that
cover
liabilities
across
various
categories
will be
allocated via
weighted
average
revenue.

approach

Chief
Operating
Officer (**)

Asset
Management

Planning for
demand and
replacement
activities.

Standard control

Directly
allocated —
this function
relates solely
to the
planning of
the network
and standard
control
services.

Yes

Maintenance
planning

Development
and review of
maintenance
asset strategies

Standard control

Directly
allocated —
this function
relates solely
to the
planning of
the network
and standard
control

Yes
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Consistency
with current
approach

Basis of
allocation

Description Services

services

Control room | C 24 hour control Standard control Directly Yes
room managing allocated —
electricity load this function
relates solely
to the
planning of
the network
and standard

control
services
Despatch C Despatching Standard control Directly Yes
crews and allocated —
service providers this function
to fault calls and relates solely
other network to the
activities planning of

the network
and standard

control
services
Call Centre C Call centre for Standard control Based on call | No — refer
faults and other , volumes allocation
enquiries Alternative control approach in
section 3
Property NC | Property Standard control Allocated No — refer
management, _ based on allocation
rates, land tax, | Alternative control |\ aighteqd approach in
and o_ther Negotiated revenue section 3
outgoings services average
OHS C Health and Standard control Allocated No — refer
safety based on allocation
management weighted approach in
revenue section 3
average
Customer C Customer Standard control Directly No — refer
enquiries and allocated — allocation
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Consistency

Sl Description Services Ba5|s.of with current
C allocation
approach
service _ombudsm_an Alternative control requirec_l appr_oach in
investigations predominatel | section 3
y for standard
control
services
Billing and NC | Revenue Standard control Allocated No — refer
Revenue collection and , based on allocation
collection billing function. | Alternative control |\ aighted approach in
Negotiated revenue section 3
services average
GSL C Payment of Standard control Directly Yes
payments guaranteed _ allocated
service levels for | Alternative control
relevant services
Meter data C Metering CROIC Unclassified | Yes
services services AMI Cost
allocated to Recovery
Order in
Council
Jemena OSA
contract
OSA - capital | C Payment to Standard control Directly Yes
Jemena under _ attributed
the OSA for Alternative control | h5sed on the
indi_vidual capital Negotiated activit_y _
projects services described in
table above
CROIC
OSA - C Payment to Standard control Allocated Yes
operating & Jemena for , based on
maintenance services Alternative control | 5005 resylts
fee provided Negotiated up until June
services 30 2011
CROIC

Regulation
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Consistency
with current
approach

Basis of
allocation

C/N

Services
C

Description

Regulatory NC | Management of | Standard control Allocated No —

Manager (**) regulatory _ based on previously
function Alternative control | \eighted allocated

Negotiated revenue directly to
services average standard
control

Regulation NC | Regulatory Standard control Allocated No —

(**) compliance, , based on previously
market Alternative control |\ eighted allocated
operations, etc Negotiated revenue directly to

services average standard
control

Information

technology

IT Manager NC | Management of | Standard control Allocated No —previously

**) IT services , based on allocated to

Alternative control weighted standard
Negotiated revenue control
services average

Information NC | Provision of Standard control Allocated No — refer

Technology maintenance _ based on allocation
and support of IT | Alternative control | eighted approach in
systems and Negotiated revenue section 3
services. services average

Legal

Counsel

-Legal NC | Legal counsel Standard control Allocated No —previously

Services (**) and compliance _ based on allocated to
with relevant Alternative control | \yeighted standard
law. Negotiated revenue control

services average
C = Causal

NC = Non-Causal
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(*) The current reporting arrangements in place for the Jemena fixed operating fee
paid under the OSA is based on the 2002 allocation of costs. 2002 was the last full
year of operation prior to the OSA and therefore has been used as a basis for
allocating costs. This allocation is explained in the 2002 regulatory accounting
statements as required by Guideline No. 3. This allocation methodology will cease
June 30 2011.

(**) Services currently provided by PIES

An example of the weighted revenue average is contained in the table below. The
weightings are based on the 2008 regulatory accounts. This table will be updated
annually based on forecast budget data.

Weighted Revenue Table: Based on 2008 Regulatory Account Information. The
weightings in this table will be applied to those costs centres costs not directly
allocated to job codes.

Standard N Negotiated
Allocator Control
Control ontro Services
Revenue Exc 412,074 13,534 2,010 427,618
CROIC
96% 3% 1% 100%

Note: Costs are not allocated to CROIC based on an allocation rule. All costs
charged to CROIC are directly charged via invoices or timesheets.

This table will be updated annually based on prior year results.
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Balance Sheet Allocation

All property plant & equipment (i.e. capital expenditure) is directly allocated.

A summary of allocators applied to other parts of the Balance Sheet is contained in

the table below:

Item Method Service Basis of allocation ‘
Receivables — | Causal | Standard Relate to standard Yes
Use of System control control services
charges only.

Receivables — | Causal | Alternative Allocated on basis of | Yes
non use of control revenue.
system charges Negotiated
distribution
CROIC
Inventory Causal | Standard Directly allocated. Yes
control
Prepayments Causal | Standard Prepayments are Yes
control allocated based on
Alternative the nature of the
control prepaid expense.
. For example,
Negptlated prepaid insurance
Services premiums are
CROIC allocated on the
basis of insurance
premiums,
regulatory licence
fees are allocated to
distribution services.
Creditors Causal | Standard Creditors and Yes
control accruals are
Alternative allocated on the
. operating and
Negptlated capital expenditure.
services
CROIC
Leave Causal | Standard Annual and long Yes
Provisions control service leave
Alternative provisions are
control allocated between
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Method Service Basis of allocation
Negotiated the relevant
services headings based on

revenue
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9 Compliance monitoring

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for monitoring UED’s compliance with the
CAM and the CAG. UED has a risk and audit committee whereby compliance is
monitored on a quarterly basis. Compliance with the CAM will be included as part of
that reporting and management process.

The Chief Finance Officer’'s accountabilities for this responsibilities are described in
section 5.

External auditors will be required to provide the necessary representation that this
CAM has been complied with when preparing Regulatory Accounts and any
Regulatory Pricing Proposal.

The cost allocation methodologies described in this CAM will be provided to all
related parties — specifically PIES, UEDH and Jemena Asset Management (JAM)
(noting that for JAM) they will only apply as from 1 July 2011, in accordance with
new contractual arrangements). Major contractors and related parties will also be
provided a copy of the approved CAM, however noting that the price paid by UED
for individual services will be based on the contractor cost structure and cost
allocations. Contractors and related parties will be required to comply with this CAM
to the extent the law requires them to comply.

Contractors and related parties will provide sufficient detail to enable UED to cost
services directly to specific job ledgers in accordance with this CAM.

This CAM complies with the existing ESCV ring fencing guidelines. This CAM will
be amended (if required) when the AER replaces the existing ring-fencing
guidelines.

An item is material if its omission, misstatement or non-disclosure has the potential
to prejudice the understanding of the financial position of UED, gained by an
assessment of financial information relating to UED.

UED does not apply an avoided cost allocation.
All queries regarding this CAM can be directed to:

Andrew Schille

Regulatory Manager — United Energy
aschille@ue.com.au

(03) 8540 7818
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10 Records Maintenance

In order to demonstrate the attribution of costs to, or allocating costs between,
different categories of distribution services in accordance with this CAM to the AER
under clause 5.2 of the CAG and to allow that attribution or allocation to be audited
or otherwise verified by a third party, including the AER, as required, UED will
maintain records of that attribution or allocation as follows:

e All financial records will be kept in UED’s financial systems (SAP)

e UED’s Statutory accounts will form the basis of all reporting requirements

e All records will be kept for at least seven years

e All records will be made available to external auditors and the AER

e Any changes to this CAM will be supported by working papers and signed off
by UED management prior to being submitted for AER approval

e Any changes to this CAM will be approved prior by the AER

35




Cost Allocation Methodology

@

UNITED ENERGY
Distribution

11 Date of effect

The date of effect for this CAM is 1 January 2011.
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1. Revenue and expenditure
This section addresses Sections 1.4 to 1.5 of Schedule 1 of the Annual RIN.

Table 1: Revenue

Percentage

: Reason for material difference
difference

Benchmark Difference

($m) ($m)

Standard Control 401 403 -2 -0.4% | Not applicable

Table 2: Energy sales

Percentage

: Reason for material difference
difference

Actual Benchmark Difference

Energy Volume 7,604 7,836 -232 -3.0% Not applicable

Table 3: Operating and maintenance

Percentage

: Reason for material difference
difference

Actual Benchmark Difference

(3m) (3m) (3m)

Standard Control 118 128 -10 -8.2% Not applicable

Table 4: Capital expenditure

Percentage

- Reason for material difference
difference

Actual Benchmark Difference

($m) ($m) ($m)

Standard Control 219 184 36 19.3% Refer to Table 5 below

Table 5: Capital expenditure — Reasons for material difference

Actual Benchmark | Difference Percentage | Reason for material difference
difference

($m) ($m) ($m)

Local maximum demand growth being
lower than expected, which resulted in an
economic deferral of capital. Planned
projects being abandoned due to a lower
cost alternative project being identified and
delivered. A change in business focus in
response to deteriorating SAIDI that
prioritised asset replacement and
performance expenditure over
Augmentation.

Reinforcement 18.2 49.5 -31.3 -63%
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Benchmark | Difference Percentage | Reason for material difference

difference
($m) ($m)

Higher number of connections. Unit costs
increase from more complex works and
higher number of customer projects
requiring upstream augmentation works

New customer connection 65.0 53.4 11.7 22%

I ] T ] ]

Overspend for year was predominantly
driven by increasing replacement of assets
at their end of life (as can be seen in the
network performance data with asset

41.2 25.3 15.9 63% | failure the leading cause of outages in
recent history) to address reliability
problems which have seen us consistently
miss regulatory targets for the prior 3

Reliability & quality
maintained

years.
I ] T ] T
Eg\g{ S, S 62 70.2 455 24.7 54% Catch up for underspend in previous years.
I ] T ] T 1
SCADA/Network control 0.0 0.0 0.0 0% | Immaterial
Non network general - IT 23.1 8.2 14.9 183% | Brought forward IT projects
O MER@I gRmErE - 1.6 2.0 -0.4 -21% Miscellaneous Deferrals

other

Standard Control - Total

Additions 219 184 355 19%
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2. Performance targets
This section addresses Sections 1.6 to 1.7 of Schedule 1 of the Annual RIN.

Table 6: Urban feeder parameters — SAIDI, SAIFI, MAIFI

Benchmark | Difference | Percentage |Reason for material difference

difference

SAIDI 60.07 55.09 4.99 9% | See EDPR proposal

SAIFI 0.85 0.90 -0.05 -6% See EDPR proposal
MAIFI 0.84 1.07 -0.23 -22% See EDPR proposal

Table 7: Rural short feeder parameters — SAIDI, SAIFI, MAIFI

Actual Benchmark | Difference | Percentage |Reason for material difference

difference

SAIDI 126.49 99.15 27.34 28% See EDPR proposal

] ] ] ] ] 1
SAIFI 1.50 1.74 -0.24 -14% | See EDPR proposal

] ] ] ] ] 1
MAIFI 2.59 212 0.47 22% See EDPR proposal

Table 8: Customer service parameter — Telephone answering

Actual Benchmark | Difference | Percentage |[Reason for material difference

difference

Telephone answering 63.19% 62.83% 0.36% 1% Not applicable
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1 Introduction UNITED ENERGY

During the 2015 calendar year, United Energy (UE) continued two projects under the Demand Management
Incentive Scheme (DMIS). These were:

¢ Virtual Power Plant (VPP) Project; and
e Summer Saver (Demand Response) Trial.

This report and its attachments deliver the annual reporting requirements of the DMIS for work undertaken
on these projects during 2015 and documents the outcomes and learnings of each project. Further details of
each project are presented below.

1.1  Virtual Power Plant (VPP) Project

In September 2013 UE submitted a request to the AER to seek indicative up-front approval to use part of the
2011-2015 allocation of Demand Management Incentive Scheme (DMIS) funding (part A) to support the
development of UE’s Virtual Power Plant (VPP) 50kW Residential Pilot Project.

With the price of solar photovoltaic (PV) falling dramatically and the price of battery storage forecast to
decrease sharply in future years, UE was eager to explore the use of PV and battery storage technology for
addressing immediate capacity shortfalls and deferring traditional network augmentation solutions on the UE
network. By utilising the energy stored in batteries, VPP technology can be used by UE to shave peak load
and defer augmentation projects in regions of the network where the future peak demand growth is uncertain
or where peak demand is forecast to decline (potentially leading to under-utilised network assets). VPP can
also be used to add capacity in regions of the network where the cost of adding capacity through traditional
solutions is higher than average.

The aim of the project is to validate or otherwise, the use of a VPP to manage embedded generation and
storage in a residential setting for the provision of efficient and prudent non-network augmentation.

The VPP integrates the operation of both supply and demand-side assets to meet customer demand for
energy services in both the short and long-term. To match short-interval load fluctuations, the VPP is
intended to make extensive and sophisticated use of information technology, advanced metering, automated
control capabilities, and electricity storage.

In 2014 there was significant work completed as part of the stage 1 pilot. UE successfully installed a total of
thirteen VPP units distributed across our network. The installations were completed in July 2014, and
significant testing, refinement and learnings have been established through the operations of these units in
2015.

UE identified new manufacturers that had entered the Australian market whose battery technology could be
controlled by UE to operate as a VPP asset. To keep at the forefront with the latest advances in battery
technology, UE commenced a pilot project to assess the technical and operational suitability of the Tesla
Powerwall hardware. UE has set up the Burwood field depot to replicate a standard residential solar and
battery installation and installed 2x Tesla Solar Storage systems with different control architectures in a test
environment. UE intends to use the Burwood Tesla pilot to firstly validate that the Tesla batteries can be
controlled as required by UE to operate as a network asset and secondly to identify the most technically
suitable and least cost architecture for the use of the Tesla batteries within residential customers’ premises.
Field testing of the Tesla batteries over the 2015/16 summer period will identify any issues/risks and will
allow UE to put in place appropriate controls before the batteries are considered for installation within
customers premises.

Ongoing operations and lessons learned across each of the phases will be used going forward on the
continuing VPP demand management projects.

Refer to Appendix 1 for further details on this project.
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1.2 Summer Saver (Demand Response) Trial S —

Demand response seeks to incentivise the end customer to reduce their demand on a small number of peak
demand days through a variety of mechanisms. These mechanisms include voluntary load reduction, utility
load control, supply capacity limiting and dynamic peak pricing. Sustained reliable demand response from
residential and commercial/industrial customers has been proven to be effective and efficient at managing
peak demand can be used to defer network augmentation.

The Summer Saver Trial' is an investigation of how effective and efficient customer demand response is as
a non-network alternative at addressing demand at peak times. The trial investigates demand management
options. The outcomes of this trial will enable UE to develop a demand management model that describes
the best combination of mechanisms that will result in the biggest peak demand reduction at specific
locations based on customer demographics and load profiles.

UE launched the trial in February 2014 targeting 6,500 customers on four Bulleen zone substation feeders.
Customers were offered $25 if they reduced their load during the UE nominated three hour event period. UE
anticipated calling on average four events per summer with the customer having the opportunity to earn
$100 for the summer if they participated in all events.

UE expanded the trial for summer 2014/15 to include 4,000 more customers in areas of the network that are
likely to experience an interruption from electrical asset overload. Also, the trial introduced new demand
management options to existing trial members: direct load control of pool pumps and supply capacity
limiting.

The trial was expanded again this summer (2015/16) to include a total of 13,000 customers in areas of the
network that are likely to experience an interruption from electrical asset overload. On top of the pool pump
load control and supply capacity limiting options, the new option of load control of air-conditioners was
added to this summer’s service offerings.

The trial aimed to engage more closely with customers and help customers understand their electricity
usage better while participating in demand response events. To this end customers were offered the Smart
Energy app that provided individual usage information to customers. Selected customers offered an Energy
Monitor device that provided more in depth and real-time energy data including appliance disaggregation
information on electricity bills.

The majority of the costs incurred by the trial this year have been on technology to support the Smart Energy
app and the registration website. Other costs include marketing, participation incentives and load control
technology.

Refer to Appendix 2 for further details on this project.
2 Regulatory Requirement and Compliance

The AER, in its Demand Management Incentive Scheme applied to UE for the 2011-2015 regulatory period,
sets certain criteria and reporting requirements for expenditure from the DMIA. These are detailed below
along with a description of how UE complies with each of these requirements for each project.

2.1 VPP Project

“1. Demand management projects or programs are measures undertaken by a DNSP to meet
customer demand by shifting or reducing demand for standard control services through non-
network alternatives, or the management of demand in some other way, rather than increasing
supply through network augmentation.”

1 http://uemg.com.au/customers/your-electricity/summer-saver-trial.aspx
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The VPP project attempts to combine the capabilities of solar PV generation and battery storage to flatten UNITED ENERGY
out the demand profile by charging the battery overnight from the network or from PV during the middle of

the day when solar PV generation is at its maximum and discharging the battery during the early evening

when residential demand is at its maximum. Aggregating VPP units will provide a system that can be

dispatched to manage network capacity constraints.

“2. Demand management projects or programs may be:

(a) broad-based demand management projects or programs—which aim to reduce demand for
standard control services across a DNSP’s network, rather than at a specific point on the network.
These may be projects targeted at particular network users, such as residential or commercial
customers, and may include energy efficiency programs and/or

(b) peak demand management projects or programs—which aim to address specific network
constraints by reducing demand on the network at the location and time of the constraint.”

The VPP aims to address specific network constraints by reducing demand on the network at the location
and time of the constraint. If the VPP concept is proven, it is intended to locate such units in areas where
there are identified network constraints. In the first instance, this is likely to be in areas where there are
significant distribution transformer constraints by clustering the VPP units in localised areas. Ultimately the
goal is to alleviate constraints higher up in the network such as at the distribution feeder or zone substation
level.

“3. Demand management projects or programs may be innovative, designed to build demand
management capability and capacity and explore potentially efficient demand management
mechanisms, including but not limited to new or original concepts.”

The VPP offers a new solution for a constrained network area, particularly where load growth is low,
uncertain or is expected to plateau in future. The ability to provide incremental amounts of capacity through
combining renewable generation and storage to meet the demand as it materialises could be economic
against a more traditional network solution that provides significant step increases in capacity at higher cost.
The VPP is intended to test this concept.

“4. Recoverable projects and programs may be tariff or non-tariff based.”
The VPP project is non-tariff based.

“5. Costs recovered under the DMIS:

(a) must not be recoverable under any other jurisdictional incentive scheme

(b) must not be recoverable under any other Commonwealth or State/Territory Government scheme
and

(c) must not be included in forecast capital or operating expenditure approved in the distribution
determination for the regulatory control period under which the DMIS applies, or under any other
incentive scheme in that determination.”

Costs recovered under the DMIS for the VPP project are costs incurred by UE in procuring expert consulting
services, equipment and installation services for the trial. These costs have not been recovered from any
other scheme. The costs do not include labour for UE employees’ time toward this project. This cost is
absorbed by the organisation and is regarded as in-kind contribution towards the project.

“6. Expenditure under the DMIA can be in the nature of capital or operating expenditure. The AER
considers that capex payments made under the DMIA could be treated as capital contributions under
clause 6.21.1 of the NER and therefore not rolled into the regulatory asset base (RAB) at the start of
the next regulatory control period. However the AER’s decision in that regard will only be made as
part of the next distribution determination.”
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All costs incurred by UE under the DMIS for the VPP project are classified as operating expenditure. ST S
2.2  Summer Saver Trial

“1. Demand management projects or programs are measures undertaken by a DNSP to meet
customer demand by shifting or reducing demand for standard control services through non-
network alternatives, or the management of demand in some other way, rather than increasing
supply through network augmentation.”

The Summer Saver Trial seeks to incentivise customers to reduce their load during peak times. Voluntary
trial customers are rewarded $25 per event for reducing their load during the UE nominated three hour event
period. Customers on the pool pump load control program were incentivised $40 per event for load reduction
and Supply Capacity Limiting customers were incentivised $50 per event for load reduction.

5 event days were called in February and March 2015 although not on very hot days due to the mild summer
weather. Event results are summarised in Appendix 2.

“2. Demand management projects or programs may be:

(a) broad-based demand management projects or programs—which aim to reduce demand for
standard control services across a DNSP’s network, rather than at a specific point on the network.
These may be projects targeted at particular network users, such as residential or commercial
customers, and may include energy efficiency programs and/or

(b) peak demand management projects or programs—which aim to address specific network
constraints by reducing demand on the network at the location and time of the constraint.”

The Summer Saver Trial seeks to address specific network constraints and is therefore targeted at
customers directly impacted by those constraints. The trial targeted approximately 6,000 customers on four
Bulleen feeders that were close to capacity as well as about 4,000 customers in areas of the network which
are likely to suffer an interruption this summer or had suffered an interruption in previous summers due to
electrical plant overload. Through the trial, UE wishes to understand if sufficient numbers of customers
participate in the trial with the right level of behaviour to reduce sufficient load to prevent an interruption.

“3. Demand management projects or programs may be innovative, designed to build demand
management capability and capacity and explore potentially efficient demand management
mechanisms, including but not limited to new or original concepts.”

Residential demand management as a concept is not new however trialling it in metropolitan Melbourne
certainly is. Other DNSPs in Australia and internationally have found success with demand management in
regional areas where communities display more social capital. Since UE’s network is predominantly
metropolitan, demand management such as demonstrated by this trial is a crucial option to be explored.

“4. Recoverable projects and programs may be tariff or non-tariff based.”
The Summer Saver Trial is non-tariff based.

“5. Costs recovered under the DMIS:

(a) must not be recoverable under any other jurisdictional incentive scheme

(b) must not be recoverable under any other Commonwealth or State/Territory Government scheme
and

(c) must not be included in forecast capital or operating expenditure approved in the distribution
determination for the regulatory control period under which the DMIS applies, or under any other
incentive scheme in that determination.”

2015 DMIS Report
Version: 01/2016 Page 5 of 13



DMIS Report - 2015

&

Costs recovered under the DMIS for the Summer Saver project are costs incurred by UE in marketing the UNITED ENERGY
trial, creating a registration website, customer participation incentives, and procuring and installing

technology. These costs have not been recovered from any other scheme. The costs do not include labour

for UE employees’ time toward this project. This cost is absorbed by the organisation and is regarded as in-

kind contribution towards the project.

“6. Expenditure under the DMIA can be in the nature of capital or operating expenditure. The AER
considers that capex payments made under the DMIA could be treated as capital contributions under
clause 6.21.1 of the NER and therefore not rolled into the regulatory asset base (RAB) at the start of
the next regulatory control period. However the AER’s decision in that regard will only be made as
part of the next distribution determination.”

All costs incurred by UE under the DMIS for the Summer Saver Trial are classified as operating expenditure.
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2.3 DMIS Reporting UNITED ENERGY

The information contained in this report and its attachment appendices is suitable for public publication.

The AER requires that a DNSP’s annual report must include the following for each project.
2.3.1 VPP Project

1. The total amount of the DMIA spent in the previous regulatory year, and how this amount has been
calculated.

UE had $363,564 excl. GST of expenses during the 2015 calendar year on activities associated with the
DMIA for VPP projects. The costs were associated with engaging external consultants, procurement,
installation and maintenance of equipment and ongoing operational expenses associated with the pilot.

These costs can be categorised as follows:

e $177,880 excl. GST for the VPP Sunverge pilot project including hardware maintenance costs,
retention of operational data, ongoing operational expenses associated with the pilot (such as sim
cards to enable remote control and continuous live monitoring of the systems by UE etc.) and
software maintenance.

e $99,746 excl. GST for the Burwood Tesla pilot including procurement costs for the solar, batteries and
associated hardware, installation costs, audit of the installation by a licenced electrical inspector for
compliance to standards, security assessment of the IT infrastructure, technical risk assessment,
structural assessment for mounting the batteries and installation of communications infrastructure at
the Burwood depot for enabling monitoring and control.

e $35,000 excl. GST for market research to understand customer demographics and likelihood of
customers agreeing to host assets in constrained areas of the UE network.

e $50,938 excl. GST for project management services.
Accrued costs of $31,194 are included in the above breakdown.

UE has used the costs to assess the financial feasibility of implementing future VPP projects at scale on
constrained distribution substations.

Further costs associated with the VPP pilot project are likely to be incurred by UE in the 2016 calendar year,
drawn from the 2016-2020 DMIA allowance.

2. An explanation of each demand management project or program for which approval is sought,
demonstrating compliance against the DMIA criteria in section 3.1.3 with reference to:

(a) the nature and scope of each demand management project or program

A VPP can be defined as a cluster of grid-connected distributed generation and storage plants that are
monitored and controlled by an operator for energy trading and grid benefits. When combined, the cluster
can then be treated as a single power plant. For UE’s VPP project we intend to use solar PV and battery
storage technologies which when combined can act to reduce peak electricity demand.

(b) the aims and expectations of each demand management project or program

The aim of stage 1 of the project is to test the VPP concept and its ability to control peak demand through
the dispatch of battery storage optimised against solar PV generation.

Traditional network solutions usually result in sunk capital; the resulting augmented asset cannot be easily
recovered and used elsewhere if future demand falls. This project’s aim is to validate or otherwise, the use
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of a VPP to manage embedded generation and storage in a residential setting for the provision of efficient UNITED ENERGY
and prudent network augmentation. The solution will be validated if it:

o Effectively avoids/defers CAPEX/OPEX requirements in a prudent and efficient manner.
¢ |s the most economic outcome when actual costs and benefits are known.
¢ Is a technically appropriate solution with appropriate mitigation of any risks.

The objectives of this project are to validate VPP as a suitable approach for managing augmentation on the
UE distribution network with no adverse impacts to network reliability and safety. The VPP project aims are:

e To test the current state of the technology and its ability to scale.

To identify the risks.

To test and assess the level of control that can be achieved with commercially available devices
currently on the market.

To develop an understanding of the economics of the solution and validate the solution is a viable
load management tool by exploring and then testing the business model(s), taking the generation,
retail and distribution aspects into consideration.

To explore and test the contractual and commercial agreements with 3rd parties and Residential
Hosts (customers).

(c) the process by which each project or program was selected, including the business case for the
project and consideration of any alternatives

This project proposes VPP as a solution to address peak demand issues in low voltage feeders when
augmentation costs using traditional solutions are high. It is anticipated that in the future, distributed
generation and storage will have application for the entire network as costs continue to fall.

(d) how each project or program was/is to be implemented

The overall VPP project has been broken into three key stages to ensure that appropriate governance over
costs, risks and benefits and associated gating and review are applied at each stage, with each stage being
subject to independent approval. Stage 1 (present stage) consists of a VPP system comprising between
eight and fourteen installations at residential sites totalling 50kW. The installation sites have been limited to
UE employees and VPP project team members’ premises within the UE distribution area to manage
identified risks. Stage 1 is being operated over a period of 12 to 15 months to test the economics and
commercial models and understand the technology’s capabilities, limitations and suitability for larger scale
deployment. This stage will provide a full year of energy flow data through seasonal variations.

(e) the implementation costs of the project or program and

In September 2013 UE submitted a request to the AER to seek indicative up-front approval to use part of the
2011-2014 allocation of Demand Management Incentive Scheme (DMIS) funding (part A) to support the
development of UE’s Virtual Power Plant (VPP) 50kW Residential Pilot Project. This was endorsed by the
AER on the 2" October 2013. The overall VPP project stage 1 was estimated to cost $1.75M.

(f) any identifiable benefits that have arisen from the project or program, including any off peak or
peak demand reductions.

We have identified a number of constrained locations around the UE network where deployment of VPP is
able to achieve peak demand reductions economically. These sites will be targeted for Stage 2.

3. The costs of each demand management project or program:

(a) are not recoverable under any other jurisdictional incentive scheme,

2015 DMIS Report
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(b) are not recoverable under any other state or Commonwealth government scheme, and UNITED ENERGY

(c) are not included in the forecast capital or operating expenditure approved in the AER’s
distribution determination for the regulatory control period under which the DMIS applies, or under
any other incentive scheme in that determination.

e Expenditure under the demand management incentive scheme is not eligible for recovery under any
other jurisdictional incentive scheme

e Expenditure under the demand management incentive scheme is not eligible for recovery under any
other state or Commonwealth government scheme

e Expenditure under the demand management incentive scheme has not been approved in the AER’s
distribution determination for the regulatory control period under which the scheme applies, or under
any other incentive scheme in that determination.

4. An overview of developments in relation to projects or programs completed in previous years of
the regulatory control period, and of any results to date.

Not applicable.
2.3.2 Summer Saver Project

1. The total amount of the DMIA spent in the previous regulatory year, and how this amount has been
calculated.

UE had $527,170.34 excl. GST of expenses during the 2015 calendar year on activities associated with the
DMIA for the Summer Saver Trial comprising of the following:

- $527,170.34 excl. GST for costs associated with marketing the summer saver trial, creating a
registration website, paying customer participation incentives, procuring and installing technology
and conducting market research.

2. An explanation of each demand management project or program for which approval is sought,
demonstrating compliance against the DMIA criteria in section 3.1.3 with reference to:

(a) the nature and scope of each demand management project or program

This Summer Saver Trial is an investigation of how effective and efficient customer demand response is as a
non-network alternative at addressing demand at peak times.

Different mechanisms of demand response can be utilised to motivate and/or incentivise customers to
change their energy usage behaviour and reduce load during peak times. These include:

e Voluntary Demand Side Participation (DSP): incentivises customers to reduce/shift their load during
peak times with a single-rate reward paid to those who reduce usage by any amount.

e Direct Load Control: gives the utility more certainty in managing load by allowing the utility to manage
appliances (RCAC and/or pool pump) during peak times to a known and predictable maximum.

e Critical Peak Pricing: electricity is priced significantly more during peak times to induce customers to
reduce load and save money on their bill.

e Supply Capacity Limiting: sets a limit on the customers supply during peak times. This mechanism
targets high users by enforcing a reasonable limit on their supply during peak times. Signing up to
this option is voluntary and it is envisioned that such customers are genuinely keen to save energy
and be more comparable to their neighbours.

(b) the aims and expectations of each demand management project or program

2015 DMIS Report
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The key objectives of this trial are to investigate and assess the benefit provided to the network through:
e demand management tools:

o investigate the take-up and impact of the three demand management mechanisms on
customer load at peak times

o incentivise customers to reduce their load during peak times via one or more demand
management tool

¢ Informing and empowering the consumer:

o provide consumers with the tools and information they need to take an active role in
managing their consumption and to reduce energy costs and environmental impact

To this end, the trial intends to:
¢ investigate the take up of the different demand management mechanisms and their
e attractiveness/value to the customers managing/reducing their load
e attractiveness/value to UE in managing peak load

¢ investigate the value of the different demand management mechanisms compared with network
solutions

¢ identify risks with the technology in installation and operation
e develop UE knowledge and capability in leveraging AMI benefits
e develop relationships with UE customers

e explore and test contractual and commercial agreements with 3rd parties (retailers, contractors,
suppliers)

The outcomes of this trial will enable UE to develop a demand management model that describes the best
combination of mechanisms that will result in the biggest peak demand reduction at specific locations based
on customer demographics and load profiles.

This model will then be incorporated into business-as-usual activities to manage peak demand.

(c) the process by which each project or program was selected, including the business case for the
project and consideration of any alternatives

Approximately 85% of UE’s network services residential customers. This trial investigates various demand
management options that can be employed by residential customers. The results of this trial will help UE
define which demand management mechanisms have the biggest customer take-up and participation and
yield the biggest load reductions at a given incentive value.

(d) how each project or program was/is to be implemented

UE undertakes analysis to identify trial areas that are likely to experience an interruption and could benefit
from load reduction through demand management. Customers in these areas are sent letters informing
them of the trial with a call for action to register via the UE website.

UE accepts registrations from customers within the trial area who have either a mobile phone or email
account to receive UE event alerts.

UE sends SMS and/or email alerts to customers:

e 48 hours notification of an event day

2015 DMIS Report
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e 24 hour notice of the event period UNITED ENERGY

e And a reminder on the morning of the event day.

Following the event, UE analyses customer smart meter data to verify load reduction during the three hour
event period. Successful customers are informed via email that they will be rewarded. Rewards are
processed and sent following an event.

UE undertakes further analysis of customer data to evaluate individual customer and total load reduction
achieved for the event.

(e) the implementation costs of the project or program and

In 2015 the DMIA costs were spent on marketing activities that included:
e Letters mailed to customers
e Flyers dropped in letter boxes
e Advertisements in local newspapers.

Funds were also spent on market research of customers within the trial area to understand the best
channels to inform customers of the trial and motivations for signing up (or not) to the trial. Research was
conducted on trial members to learn about their experience on the trial and find ways of improving the trial.

A large body of work was undertaken to create an automated registration website for customers that linked
to the Smart Energy app as well as procuring and setting up the Smart Energy app.

Funds were spent on testing DRED technology before deploying it on a handful of customers over the
summer.

(f) any identifiable benefits that have arisen from the project or program, including any off peak or
peak demand reductions.

UE called five event days last summer.

Event data showed that:

e 25% of registered customers participated in all 5 events and 50% participated in 4 or 5 events. This
is confirmed by post summer customer research that shows that a significant portion of customers
tried to participate but data shows that they did not manage an energy reduction during the event.

e 96% of registered customers participated in at least 1 event. It may be that 100% of customers took
actions to participate but those actions did not result in a saving during the event period

e 7 people turned (almost) everything off for all 5 events. Several customers turned (almost)
everything off on several events.

e The most number of customers participated on the third event in one week (registrations were static
in that week).

3. The costs of each demand management project or program:
(a) are not recoverable under any other jurisdictional incentive scheme,
(b) are not recoverable under any other state or Commonwealth government scheme, and

(c) are not included in the forecast capital or operating expenditure approved in the AER’s
distribution determination for the regulatory control period under which the DMIS applies, or under
any other incentive scheme in that determination.

e Expenditure under the demand management incentive scheme is not eligible for recovery under any
other jurisdictional incentive scheme
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e Expenditure under the demand management incentive scheme is not eligible for recovery under any YNITED ENERGY
other state or Commonwealth government scheme

e Expenditure under the demand management incentive scheme has not been approved in the AER’s
distribution determination for the regulatory control period under which the scheme applies, or under
any other incentive scheme in that determination.

4. An overview of developments in relation to projects or programs completed in previous years of
the regulatory control period, and of any results to date.

Not applicable.
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3 Attachments UNITED ENERGY

3.1 Appendix 1 - VPP Pilot Project Stage 1 Report

e Background

¢ Virtual Power Plant Project - Stage 1
e Modelling

e Technology Selection

¢ Risk Management

e Peak Day Operation

e UE Burwood Tesla Pilot Project

e Market Research

e Future Initiatives

3.2 Appendix 2 - Summer Saver Project Report

e Customer Letter

e Customer Registration

e Frequently Asked Questions
e Promotional Flyer

e Terms and Conditions

e UE Website Content

e Trial Results

2015 DMIS Report
Version: 01/2016 Page 13 of 13



Appendix I: Statutory Declaration ﬂ_//

UNITED ENERGY

Note: See attached

Appendix | 1 - Statutory Declaration - cover page - Version 1.0



STATUTORY DECLARATION

Evidence (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1958, VIC

|, Antonio Narvaez,
of Level 3,6 Nexus Court, Mulgrave
Inthe State of Victoria
do solemnly and sincerely declare that :-

1. lam an officer, for the purposes of the National Electricity (Victoria) Law (NEL), of United
Energy Distribution Pty Ltd (ACN 064 651029) (United Energy), a regulated network service
provider for the purposes of section 28D of the NEL. | am authorised by United Energy to
make this statutory declaration as part of the response of United Energy to the Regulatory
Information Notice dated 18 December 2013 (Notice), as amended by the AER on 6 August
2014 served on United Energy by the Australian Energy Regulator (AER).

2. The response of United Energy regarding the information required to be provided and to be
prepared and maintained as specified by Notice, with the exception of the information
specified to be audited under Appendix E to this Notice, is to the best of my information,
knowledge and belief, and exce pt where expressly stated otherwise:

a) inaccordance withthe requirements of the Notice; and
b) true and accurate.

3. Where itis not possible to provide the information required by the Notice United Energy has
provided an estimate, or an explanation of its inability to provide the required information.
Where the information provided is an estimate, United Energy has used its best endeavours
to generate the most appropriate estimate, and has provided the AER with the basis for this

estimate and reasons why itisthe most appropriate estimate.

| acknowledge that this declaration is true and correct,and | make it with the understanding and
belief that a person who makes a false declaration is liable to the penalties of perjury.

Declared at Mulgrave

This 2 8 dayof April 2016 T e
Signature erson making this declaration
(to be signed in front of an authorized witness)

AUDREY WALDEGRAVE
6 Nexus Court Mulgrave Victoria 317¢
An Australian Legal Practitioner
RELT D L fedoni e s within the meaning of the
Signature”of Authorised Witness Legal Profession Uniform Law (Victoria)

Before me,

The authorised witness must print or stamp his or her name, address and title under section 107A of the Evidence
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1958 (as of 1January 2010), (previously Evidence Act 1958), (eg. Justice ofthe Peace,
Pharmacist, Police Officer, Court Registrar, Bank Manager, Medical Practitioner, Dentist)
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Ernst & Young Tel: +61 3 9288 8000
8 Exhibition Street Fax: +61 3 8650 7777
Melbourne VIC 3000 Australia ey.com/au

e GPO Box 67 Melbourne VIC 3001
Building a better
working world

Independent auditor’s report to the directors of United Energy
Distribution Pty Ltd

We have audited the Financial Information within tables 1a, 2, 3a, 3b, 5, 6a, 6b, 8a, 8b, 13, 14, 15, 16,
17,18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28 and 29 in the data template entitled “United Energy
Annual RIN 2015 - Financial” (the “Financial Information™) attached, which has been prepared in
accordance with United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd's Basis of Preparation (the “Basis of Preparation™) in
response to the Annual Regulatory Information Notice (“the Notice™) issued by the Australian Energy
Regulator on 6 August 2015, for the requlatory year ended 31 December 2015. In accordance with the
requirements of the Notice, information presented in the Financial Information before this date range has
not been subject to audit.

In addition, we have audited the compliance of the Basis of Preparation as it relates to the Financial
Information, with the requirements of the Notice and the Principles and Requirements in Appendix E of
the Notice, for the regulatory year ending 31 December 2015.

The Australian Energy Regulator requires the Financial Information and the accompanying Basis of
Preparation for the performance of a function conferred on it under Division 4 of Part 3 of the National
Electricity (Victoria) Law, namely conducting various benchmarking exercises as outlined in the
Regulatory Information Notice issued to United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd on 6 August 2014.

Management's Responsibility for the Data Template and Basis of Preparation

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Information in
accordance with the requirements of the Notice and United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd's Basis of
Preparation, and for such internal controls as management determines are necessary to enable the
preparation of the Financial Information that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Financial Information based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Information is free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the Financial Information. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Information, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
Financial Information in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls.

Our responsibility is also to express a conclusion on compliance, in all material respects, of the Basis of
Preparation with the requirements of the Notice that relates to the Financial Information. Our audit has
been conducted in accordance with applicable Standards on Assurance Engagements (ASAE 3100
Compliance Engagements). Our procedures have been undertaken to form a conclusion as to whether the
Basis of Preparation has complied, in all material respects, with the Notice.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation



EY

Building a better
working world

Independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian
professional accounting bodies.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Financial Information of United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd for the year ended 31
December 2015 has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of the
Notice and United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd’s Basis of Preparation. In addition, the Basis of Preparation
as it relates to Financial Information has complied, in all material respects, with the requirements of the
Notice and the Principles and Requirements in Appendix E of the Notice.

Basis of Accounting

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the Basis of Preparation which describes the general
approach to collecting and preparing information. The Financial Information is prepared to assist United
Energy Distribution Pty Ltd to meet the requirements of UED Regulatory Information Notice issued by
the Australian Energy Regulator. As a result, the Financial Information may not be suitable for another
purpose. Our report is intended solely for United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd and the Australian Energy
Regulator and should not be distributed to any other parties.

Erngt e Touruy

t--s”

Ernst & Young
Melbourne
28 April 2016

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation



Ernst & Young Tel: +61 3 9288 8000
8 Exhibition Street Fax: +61 3 8650 7777
Melbourne VIC 3000 Australia ey.com/au

e GPO Box 67 Melbourne VIC 3001
Building a better
working world

Independent auditor’'s Report to the members of United Energy
Distribution Pty Ltd

We have audited the Non-Financial Information within tables 1a, 1b, 1c, 1e, and 1f in the data template
entitled “United Energy Annual RIN 2015 - Non-Financial” (the “Non-Financial Information™) attached,
which has been prepared in accordance with United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd's Basis of Preparation
(the "Basis of Preparation™) in response to the Annual Regulatory Information Notice (“the Notice™)
issued by the Australian Energy Regulator on 6 August 2015, for the requlatory year ended 31
December 2015. In accordance with the requirements of the Notice, information presented in the Non-
Financial Information before this date range has not been subject to audit.

In addition, we have audited the compliance of the Basis of Preparation as it relates to Non-Financial
Information, with the requirements of the Notice and the Principles and Requirements in Appendix E of
the Notice, for the regulatory year ending 31 December 2015.

The Australian Energy Regulator requires the Non-Financial Information and the accompanying Basis of
Preparation for the performance of a function conferred on it under Division 4 of Part 3 of the National
Electricity (Victoria) Law, namely conducting various benchmarking exercises as outlined in the
Regulatory Information Notice issued to United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd on 6 August 2014.

Management's Responsibility for the Data Template and Basis of Preparation

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Non-Financial Information in
accordance with the requirements of the Notice and United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd's Basis of
Preparation, and for such internal controls as management determines are necessary to enable the
preparation of the Non-Financial Information that is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Non-Financial Information based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Non-Financial Information is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the Non-Financial Information. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Non-Financial Information, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the Non-Financial Information in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal controls.

Our responsibility is also to express a conclusion on compliance, in all material respects, of the Basis of
Preparation with the requirements of the Notice that relates to Actual Financial Information. Our audit
has been conducted in accordance with applicable Standards on Assurance Engagements (ASAE 3100
Compliance Engagements). Our procedures have been undertaken to form a conclusion as to whether the
Basis of Preparation has complied, in all material respects, with the Notice.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Building a better
working world

Independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Australian professional
accounting bodies.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Non-Financial Information of United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd for the year ended 31
December 2015 presents fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of the
Notice and United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd’s Basis of Preparation. In addition, the Basis of Preparation
as it relates to Non-Financial Information has complied, in all material respects, with the requirements of
the Notice and the Principles and Requirements in Appendix E of the Notice.

Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the Basis of Preparation, which describes the general
approach to collecting and preparing information. The Non-Financial Information is prepared to assist
United Energy Distribution Pty Ltd to meet the requirements of the Notice. As a result, the Non-Financial
Information may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is intended solely for United Energy
Distribution Pty Ltd and the Australian Energy Regulator and should not be distributed to any other
parties.

Erngt e Touruy

t--s”

Ernst & Young
Melbourne
28 April 2016

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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UEDH Corporate Structure Diagram
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Appendix L — Confidentiality template

This appendix addresses Section 13.1 of the Annual RIN.

Table 1: Confidentiality template

Title, page and Description of Topic the Identify the

paragraph number of the confidential |confidential recognised
document containing information. information
the confidential
information capex, opex, the |confidential

rate of return
etc.) within.

confidential.

Annual Financial RIN Related party
Excel Template margins cost inputs

Provide a brief explanation of
why the confidential
confidentiality information falls into the
relates to (e.g. category that the |selected category.

If information falls within
information falls | ‘other’ please provide further
details on why the information
should be treated as

Capex and opex Market sensitive Related party margins data is
market sensitive information.

Specify reasons supporting
how and why detriment
would be caused from
disclosing the confidential
information.

Disclosing related party
margins would affect United
Energy’s ability to obtain
competitive prices in future
transactions.

Vg

UNITED ENERGY

Provide any reasons supporting
why the identified detriment is not
outweighed by the public benefit
(especially public benefits such as
the effect on the long term
interests of consumers).

The information is not required to
understand United Energy’s total
costs.

Table 2: Proportion of confidential information
Submission Title Number of pages of

submission that include

information subject to a subject to a claim of

confidentiality

claim of confidentiality

Number of pages of submission |Total number of pages of |Percentage of pages of
that do not include information submission

submission that include

Percentage of pages of
submission that do not include

information subject to a claim of [information subject to a claim of

confidentiality

confidentiality

Annual Financial RIN 5 280 285
Excel Template

1.8%

98.2%
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United Energy Distribution Pty Limited (ACN 064 651 029)
Extract of minutes of the Meeting of Directors

| certify that:
. The following is a resolution passed at the Board meeting held on 27 April 2016; and
. The resolution will be recorded in the Company’s minute book as required by section

251A of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cwilth) (“Corporations Act”).

%—m 25’/‘1’//6 .....

Signature of Company Secretary Date

Robert Sarafian

. Name of Company Secretary

8. Approval of 16/37 | IT WAS RESOLVED THAT the Board:

Annual RIN:
approves the Regulatory Information Notice (RIN) for submission to
the Australian Energy Regulator, noting that to the best of the Board’s
information, knowledge and belief:

- itis in accordance with the RIN dated 6 August 2014; and

- that the information provided in the RIN is true and accurate
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